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Financial Summary
R E

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2012 2013 2014 2015* 2016
T IZT—= —E-mNE ZZE-RHF ZB-XRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHT FET
Revenue PN 801,574 442,312 509,250 145,944 163,856
(Loss)/profit for the year & A RIEA AREAS
attributable to the FE(BER), #H
owners of the parent 115,988 94,120 (174,565) (56,480) (68,015)
At 31 December
W+=—B=+—A~
2012 2013 2014 2015* 2016
—T——F —T-=ZF —T-NFE —T—HE ZB-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FAT FAT FHET FHET
Assets and liabilities BENMBE
Total assets BEE 1,625,170 1,987,066 2,961,339 3,226,035 LR
Total liabilities BEE (830,658)  (1,085,883)  (1,028,648) (429,272) BELIAVE)]
794,511 901,183 1,932,691 2,796,763 VRAKN YY)
Equity attributable to BREESR A
owners of the parent FEfG HE 2R 592,099 695,985 1,723,520 2,711,373 PRI LW.LL
Non-controlling interests ¥R HE 2 202,412 205,198 209,171 85,390 137,061
794,511 901,183 1,932,691 2,796,763 2,701,466
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 included the revenue * BHE-_Z—AF+-A=+—RHLFEZRARE

generated from the discontinued operations.
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Chairman’s Statement
TS

F

On behalf of the board of
directors of Beijing Enterprises
Medical and Health Industry
Group Limited, | am pleased to
present the operating results of

the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2016.

KABRRIEEERE
EEXEBERRARIES
g MAOBTEZLEE
BE-ZE—XE+=ZH=
T—HLEMBREENLE
K-
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Chairman’s Statement @ £/E3RE

In 2016, adhering to the policy direction of the Chinese government
and keeping abreast of the ever-changing market trend, the Group
aims at bringing the maximized value to the shareholders by rapidly
facilitating the development of its geriatric care, medical and health
related segments and continuously expanding its market shares. As
of 31 December 2016, the Group has already extended its reach to
more than 10 cities in China, including Beijing, Shanghai, Fuzhou,
Longyan, Nanping, Shijiazhuang, Wuhu, Wuxi, Suining and Yiwu.
Currently, the number of members of geriatric care and medical
services has been increasing with a good development momentum,
which demonstrates that 2016 was a critical and meaningful year to
the business development of the Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

China has large population and a huge economic volume. Along with
the continuous progressing of China’s economic and political system
reforms, the unceasing improvement of living standard of citizens,
the constant increase of the level of aging and the gradual change of
consuming concept, it is foreseeable that the market prospect of the
future geriatric care-, medical- and health-related industries of China
is promising.

In 2016, the Chinese government continued to promulgate a number
of policies and emphasized on the reform and development of
the medical, geriatric care and health industries, so as to actively
encourage the entry of social capital into the relevant industries
mentioned above.

Capitalizing this market opportunity, the Group replicated and
expanded its “Golden Sun” brand and its urban integration
pattern of geriatric care services to various cities, such as Beijing
and Shijiazhuang. At the same time, we successfully cooperated
with the local government of Yiwu City, Zhejiang province and
established and operated diagnostic and treatment hierarchy as
well as an informatizationed platform for the family doctor services,
representing a breakthrough in the market landscape and business

development.
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Chairman’s Statement @ £/E®RE

With respect to the geriatric care service, the number of elderly
members of the Group reached 581,500, the number of community
service centers was 367 and the number of beds provided by
institutions was 1,028. In relation to the medical service, the
Group has built 14 community healthcare centers, 182 healthcare
service stations with over 400 contracted family doctors and 87,000
contracted service residents. The unique city intelligent geriatric care
and health model of the Group has been sustainable, replicable and
rapidly expandable as a successful and profitable business model
and has been swiftly penetrating into the geriatric care and medical
market of the PRC and has reached a nationwide coverage.

With regards to the new health industrial parks, with our management
team devoting much effort and seizing the change of the PRC's land
policies, our planning in different projects continued to gain approval
successfully. Therefore, the new industrial parks can better align with
the market demands and fully reflect its potential values. As such, it is
expected that each industrial park project can record a considerable
capital value appreciation.

In the fourth quarter of 2016, the Group commenced financial
business in relation to asset management, and Aviation Industrial
Fund Management Limited was established jointly with Guangzhou
Aerotropolis Investment and Construction Co. Ltd and Guangzheng
Lingxiu Investment Company Limited (EZFEFZEKREERAA)
through capital contribution, which will bring long-term, sustainable
and stable income stream for the Group.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to capitalize and fully utilize the ideal external
environment for the geriatric care, medical and health industry in
China in order to speed up its business deployment in the market. We
will emphasize the promotion of diagnostic and treatment hierarchy,
family doctors, unified geriatric care service systems and other health
segments, so as to grasp the resources of different cities in a swift
manner, constantly increase our market shares and establish a leading
brand. We will fully leverage on the financial capital to support
and promote the rapid development of each business, while at the
same time, we will proactively attract and train talents for relevant
sectors and continuously create long-term and stable returns for
Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, the
management and all staff, and to express heartfelt gratitude to all
colleagues for their hard work and contribution to the development
of the Group in the past year. Meanwhile, | would also like to express
appreciation to all shareholders, the banking sector, the investment
community and business partners for their full confidence and strong
support to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE R B AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

At the National Health and Well-being Convention held in 2016,
the CPC Central Committee General Secretary, State President and
Central Military Commission Chairman Xi Jinping had in his speech
placed strong emphasis on people’s health by advocating that it
should be the first strategic priority of the nation. In the same year,
the”Healthy China 2030” had been announced and implemented,
which requires faster promotion of health across the nation.

The Group is principally engaged in geriatric care, medical care and
health care related businesses, which is in line with the government’s
huge support on the development of health care industry. We
strives to map out an overall plan that integrate both industrial and
financial elements by applying financial capital as a driving force
to complement the development of our fundamental health care
business. During the year under review, the Group actively extended
its footprint to various major cities in the PRC and expanded its
market share. It has currently become one of the most influential
enterprises in the domestic health care industry.

Geriatric Care Business

As indicated in the information from the National Bureau of Statistics
of the PRC, the current number of population at the age of 60 and
above in the PRC reaches approximately 230 million, representing
16.7% of the total population. It is expected that such number will
subsequently remain at approximately 400 million for a long term,
representing approximately one-third of the total population. From
2014 to 2050, the purchasing power of the elderly population in the
PRC will increase from approximately RMB4 trillion to approximately
RMB106 trillion, and its proportion to the GDP of the PRC will increase
from 8% to 33%.

Coping with the nation’s policies regarding the reformation of the
geriatric care industry, the Group focuses on the socialization of
geriatric care services as advocated by the PRC by setting up an
intelligent, ecologically chained system incorporating information
platform, home care, community care and institutional medical
support. The system delivers systematic and intelligent geriatric care
solutions to cities (government) for the provision of one-stop services
to the elderly.

The Group has built up a prestigious geriatric care brand, the
“Golden Sun” through gradual reorganizations of its subsidiaries
including Fujian Fu Ling Golden Sun Health and Geriatric Company
Limited, I RPREREBEZRE AT and IHEH AREZRBE LA

Currently, the geriatric care operations of the Group spans across
numerous cities, namely Beijing, Fuzhou, Shanghai, Longyan,
Nanping, Shijiazhuang, Wuhu, Wuxi, Suining, etc.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Strategic Development of the Geriatric Care Business

-1 Beijing
» i 2 8

Sichuan
i

(Suining) #==========
(=)

During 2016, the PRC government devoted much effort to promote
market orientation of the geriatric care industry. A series of policies
had been implemented for the open tender of the community services
of home and geriatric care, which include direct purchase of services
by the government, government subsidies and purchase of services
by welfare organizations. Leveraging on the “Golden Sun” brand
image and professional services, the Group seized the opportunities
and successfully won new bids of government orders and other
subsidies of approximately RMB12 million in 2017.

As of 31 December 2016, the number of elderly members of the
Group reached 581,500, representing a year-on-year surge of 158%,
the number of community service centers was 367, up 35% over last
year, and the number of beds provided by institutions was 1,028,
representing an year-on-year increase of 98%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis @ i E71:
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Table 1: Operational Status Z*— EEN L
2016 2015
ZE-NE —T-1f
Number of Number of
Number ~ Community Number of Number ~ Community Number of
of Elderly Service Beds provided of Elderly Service  Beds provided
Members Centers by Institutions Members Centers by Institutions
R EA HEEE BEHE RHEA HEEZ BERE
SEAB(A)  REBIEH(E) KUB(R) @EAR(A)  RiuH(E) RAE(R)
- Beijing 75 131,098 5,566 9 0
- Fujian -fE 450,321 219,990 263 520
- Wuxi* — & = - - -
- Other regions —Hp iR - - - -
Total Azt 581,419 225,526 272 520
Rate of Increase BRE
# This project is owned by an associate with 40% of equity interest # RIEH BIh40% 2 B & A RIFA

Medical Care Business

The PRC government has promulgated policies of “Guiding Opinions
on Propelling the Building of a Hierarchical Diagnosis and Treatment
System” (KEARHEEBSRZEHFNEEXZMNIBEEER)) and "Guiding
Opinions on Propelling the Family Doctors Contracted Service” ({#
REBREZEEBZHNRBONIEEER)). These policies aim to expand
the coverage of the family doctors contracted service to more than
30% of the country and more than 60% of the target group by 2017
and strive to reach a complete coverage by 2020, and eventually
establish a long-term and stable contracted service relationship
between the family doctors and residents and achieve a preliminary
complete coverage of Family Doctors Contracted Service System. The
policies also clearly point out to leverage the strength of information
technology and proactively utilize the mobile internet and wearable
devices to enhance the service efficiency.

During 2016, the Group has been grasping the direction of China’s
reform in medical care sector, and has focused on building platforms
for hierarchical diagnosis and family doctors in cities and developing a
commercial model for social medical care with unique differentiation
in an innovative way.

BEEX
TEBFERLE T CARERD A2 EHIERE
FOEEER) (R EBRERERNREH
BEER)EHE  RE-_ZFT—tHFRERLE
BHIRBBEEEFET0%IA L - EEARFED
%ﬁ%%ipﬂw%ut 312020 W F KK 52
BERORBEAZ2AR PRAEFREHNR
EMRZORGEE  EAERREBERORYE
HENDEE - FFHAE  BREERCEE
A ERNABSERE I FRRESRR
BRE -

E%ﬁﬁrﬁ@i}ﬁm i& Ffﬂ%ﬁi 3F£§$&i£r%
% THEHBERERCNLSBEREPHELRR -

EEEREFEXERERAR —E-RFER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group has successfully cooperated with the Yiwu City, Zhejiang
Province in development and operation of a platform for hierarchical
diagnosis and family doctors service information, which developed
as the first service charging platform connecting with the municipal
"internet
+medical” product. As of 31 December 2016, the platform has
covered 14 community healthcare centers, 182 healthcare service

medical insurance system and become an innovative

stations and some third-tier hospitals in the city, formulating a
three-level linkage mechanism. On the platform, there are over 400
contracted family doctors and 87,000 contracted service residents.
Leveraging on the successful experiences gained from Yiwu City, the
Group has replicated this model and expanded it to other cities and
kicked off the development of city hierarchical diagnosis platform in
Beijing, Shanxi and Guangdong.

Being the first step of delivery the overall medical care service in
a city, the family doctor service platform is of huge commercial
potential as it keeps abreast of the health condition and diagnosis
and treatment updates of all residents in the city, which facilitate the
precise promotion and distribution of the services. “Top Doctor”
family doctor service platform has been working with renowned
suppliers of medicine, equipment and medical service standards, and
proactively seeking collaboration with medical insurers and wearable
devices manufacturers, all of these indicating the platform is gradually
achieving its commercial value.

Moreover in 2016, in order to align with our expansion of industrial
footprint in medical care, geriatric care and health care, the Group
has acquired a leading company engaged in manufacturing and
sale of the medical and geriatric furniture, which is well known for
the superior design and high applicability of its products and has
secured orders from over 30 hospitals and geriatric care institutions in
China. By the end of 2016, the total revenue of it was RMB96,280,000,
representing a year-on-year growth of 115%.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis @ &% &5 S0

New Industrial Park

As the reform of the national land policy proceeds, the property
market in China has been transformed from a unitary residential and
commercial model to an industrialized property model. The Group
purchased high quality lands in first-tier cities such as Beijing and
Shanghai based on the policies and directions on land planning
adjustment of central and local governments. Leveraging on the
transformation and upgrading, it introduced advanced industrial
construction philosophy to fully satisfy the needs of the government
and market users. Focus has been placed on the developing new
industrial parks such as healthcare industrial park as well as science
and technology industrial park. Currently, the Group owns four land
projects in Beijing and Shanghai, with a total site area of 235,000
square meters. The implementation plans of the projects have
obtained governmental supports from where the projects locate. The
positioning of the projects are in line with market demands, thus the
commercial value increased considerably.

Table 3: Operational status

As of 31 December 2016, the status of the projects under
development of the Group is as follows:

EEZR

BEEERTMBERNNE  BRBEMSC MG
RE-—WEERBEEREAGREXR(CHETRA -
REBAR BRI M E M 77 BUF 5 LR 8GR
BEMITEA » E2AEIR - EBE R THER
BE L BEERAR  SIAKENEEER
B REWMRB - MEAPHFER - BT
EHARFEER  MREXESHLERE- B
RIASEEAEILLRE LB BAELMIER - 414
WHI2358EFIIK - BEERSRCEISER T
2 BT H - BEEMMTAMSEHER B
BERABRET -

*=: ZERK

HIEZZE—RE+A=+—Hik XEEZH
FIREERWT ¢

Location Project Name Gross area Percentage Status

b 26 HE AW THEE i ER

Beijing Chaoyang Port Project 161,498m? 82.24%  Will be developed in three phases,
the first phase will commence in 2017

b BN FIEA 161,498F 75K 82.24% H=HIFH%E  FHBEAR_FT—£F
BT

Beijing Changping Port Project 13,490m? 70%  Properties are on lease

I &¥IEAE 13,490 73 K 70% HIEREMEET

Shanghai Sanlu Road Project 20,480m? 100% Completed the structural construction
in December 2016 and product
promotion is expected to commence
in 2017

s =BKIER 20,480 73 K 100% RZZE-—RF+_R#&HHEHE =T
—LFETERMER

Shanghai Chunshen Road Project 39,448 mt 100%  Preliminary construction-related
planning procedures are in place

L HFHERIER 39,448 75 K 100% IEFEHETTAIHIREMEFE

The Group will continue to seek and identify appropriate land
projects through Beijing Enterprises Group Company Limited or
in the market for developing its geriatric care, medical care and
general health businesses. By means of extensive negotiation with
local governments and grasping golden opportunities arising from
the industrial transformation conducting by the local governments,
it would thereby gradually creating the Group’s unique series of
products under the investment of industrial park.

AEEHEERBIL IERERFRATLNT
SEMERERERREE  BEIKEREE
ZETHWIEB - EERMWBUFEIZEH  LESMEK
REXEWNBNEE  ZLERTVAAEEE
BENenEXE R EmR -

EEEFEFEXEEERAT —2-AFFR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance Business

The Group has prioritized to develop the financial business as one of
its core businesses, aiming to accelerate its “Industry + Finance” two-
wheeled drive strategy and achieve market expansion with industrial
and financial integration through developing financial funds and
investment platform business.

In February 2017, the Group, Guangzhou Aerotropolis Investment
and Construction Co. Ltd (a state-owned company) and Guangzheng
Lingxiu Investment Company Limited* (EZEFZHEER QA
(a listed company) jointly contributed to establish Guangzhou
Aviation Industrial Fund Management Limited (“Industrial Fund”),
the registered capital of which is RMB100,000,000, and the Group
contributed RMB44,000,000, representing 44% of the equity interest.

The amount of the Industrial Fund is no less than RMB50,000,000,000
and the Group, being the second largest single shareholder of the
Fund Management Company, is responsible for the overall daily
management and operation.

The Guangzhou Airport Economic Zone is a national airport economic
demonstration area, the establishment of which was approved by the
National Development and Reform Commission and Civil Aviation
Administration of China pursuant to the Reply on Supporting the
Construction of Guangzhou Airport Economic Demonstration Zone
(AR EMNEE =B REREROE L)), covering a total area of
135.5 square kilometers. It is planned to become the national airport
economic demonstration area, international aviation industrial city
and international shipping hub, and will focus on the development
positioning of being one of the global consolidated aviation hub
and logistics and distribution centre of Asia. The Airport Economic
Area is an international aviation hub relying on Baiyun International
Airport and serving itself as a core medium. It is an important
airport economic centre and airport economic demonstration
area in China, and vital motivation and a new growth driver for the
future development of Guangzhou. The key development industries
of Airport Economic Zone include cross-border e-commerce,
aviation headquarters, aviation logistics, trade exhibition, aviation
maintenance and manufacturing, financial leasing and so on.

FUTURE PROSPECT

By keeping in line with the government approach and policies
regarding health care industry, the Group will adhere to its “Industry
+ Finance” two-wheeled drive strategy, seize market opportunities
and expedite market expansion, in order to achieve sustainable and
rapid business development.

*  for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In respect of the geriatric care business, the Group will continue to
promote quality geriatric care operation and services with key focus
on six major regions including Southern China, Shandong Peninsula,
Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei, Jiangsu-Zhejiang-Shanghai, Central China and
Southwest region, targeting at becoming the city pension operator
with the most elderly served and the most members in the PRC, so as
to ensure the first-brand position in the operation of pension service
in the PRC. In 2017, the number of elderly members will reach 790,000,
and there will be 461 community service centers for geriatric care and
1,500 beds to be provided by geriatric care institutions.

The development priority of the medical care sector will be rapid
promotion of the information platform of family doctor services in
cities. It is planned to expand its reach to more cities and gradually
promote the platform to users from corporates and communities as
well as medical practitioners from different medical institutions, so
as to accelerate the increase of usage by residents and doctors. In
addition, the Group will actively introduce relevant business partners
and adopt innovative operation model. In 2017, there will be over
1,000 family doctors to be contracted and residents contracted to
receive the services will be 200,000.

Regarding the new industrial park, apart from achieving good
performance in the existing projects, the Group will continue to
explore the opportunities in first-tier cities such as Beijing, Shanghai
and Guangzhou, negotiate with the local governments, grasp the
golden opportunities arising from the industrial transformation
conducting by the local governments, thereby gradually creating the
Group's unique series of products under the investment of industrial
park.

The finance business sector of the Group will place its emphasis on
the operation of funds for the aviation industry of Guangzhou and will
actively explore new financial segment. The Group plans to establish
a strong self-operating financial service system and facilitate the
business development strategies through acquisitions and by using its
own financial platform.
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Management Discussion and Analysis @ 3% Ex

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
Acquisitions

The Group has completed several acquisition transactions during
the year and details of the acquisitions were disclosed in Note 34.
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES.

Disposal

Sun Vision Consultants Limited

On 21 November 2016, United Win and Super Peace Holdings
Limited ("Super Peace”), an independent third party to the Group,
entered into a share transfer agreement, pursuant to which United
Win agreed to sell and Super Peace agreed to purchase all the
issued share capital of Sun Vision Consultants Limited (“Sun Vision"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, for a total consideration
of RMB110,000,000 (approximately HK$122,969,000). Sun Vision
holds 55% equity interest of Choice Development Inc.. At the date
of the share transfer agreement, Choice Development Inc. and its
subsidiaries own a land in Shanghai, the PRC, to be used for re-
development of medical care and geriatric care facilities.

On 12 December 2016, pursuant to the share transfer agreement,
the entire issued share capital of Sun Vision was transferred to Super
Peace. As at 31 December 2016, the disposal was not completed and
the consideration deposits received of RMB33,000,000 (approximately
HK$36,891,000) were included in the Group’s other payables and
accruals in the consolidated statement of financial position.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Continuing Operations

Revenue from continuing operations

After the business restructuring in year 2015, The Group start
to earn revenue from continuing operation in 2016, revenue of
HK$154,767,000 and HK$9,089,000 was generated from the sales of
goods and rendering of services respectively.

Cost of sales, gross profit and gross profit margin from continuing
operations

For the year ended 31 December 2016, cost of sales generated from
continuing operations was HK$117,261,000 (2015: Nil). The cost of
sales mainly consists of the cost of the medical and geriatric related
furniture and fixture. Gross profit for the year ended 31 December
2016 was HK$46,595,000 (2015: Nil), which represented a gross profit
margin of approximately 28%.
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Other income and gains generated from continuing operations

For the year ended 31 December 2016, other income and gains
generated from continuing operations was approximately
HK$98,052,000, representing a substantial increase by 1.16 times
comparing with HK$45,489,000 over the year ended 31 December
2015. Other income and gains generated from continuing operations
mainly included bank interest income of HK$4,644,000, other interest
income of HK$13,474,000 and the gain of fair value change of financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss of HK$49,160,000.

Selling and distribution expenses from continuing operations

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the selling and distribution
expenses generated from continuing operations was HK$24,995,000
(2015: Nil). The selling and distribution expenses mainly consist of (i)
staff cost for our sales representative; (ii) promotion fee; and (iii) office
expenses of the sales department, as a result of the acquisition of the
manufacturing and sales of the furniture business at the beginning of
the year.

Administrative expenses generated from continuing operations

For the year ended 31 December 2016, administrative expenses
generated from continuing operations was HK$189,405,000,
representing a increase by 27% comparing with the expenses
of HK$149,185,000 over the year ended 31 December 2015. The
increase was mainly due to the increase of staff costs, depreciation
and amortisation, rental expenses and general office expenses in
aggregate of HK$45,299,000 as a result of the completion for the
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year.

Finance cost from continuing operations

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the finance cost of continuing
operations was HK$4,632,000 (2015: HK$3,992,000). The finance cost
was mainly attributable to the interests of the bank loans and other
borrowings of HK$6,122,000, of which HK$1,490,000 was capitalised
to the cost of a construction project in Beijing. The effective annual
interest rate ranged from 2.40% to 5.60%.

Net assets

As at 31 December 2016, the net assets of the Group was
approximately HK$2,701,466,000, whereas the net assets as at 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$2,796,763,000, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$95,297,000. The decrease of net assets
is mainly attributable to the loss of approximately HK$88,008,000
incurred during the year.

KEFEEEEFBMBAR Y2
HE-Z—XF+-A=1+—HIFE kB
BB F S 2 HA A I ik 2% 49 498,052,000
T hHEE-E-RAFT-A=t—HLEFEZ
45,489,00078 TR EFH1.1615 « REIFELE
E¥BzEMBRARKEEZEERITHELA
4,644,000 7T « EAhFIE U4 A13,474,0007% 7T K
FEBBREUATEIEZEMEEZ ATFEES
549,160,000/ 7T -

REFEEEEBFHERDHEE
HE-Z—XRF+-A=1+—HIFE kB
B ETS 2 HE RO R 524,995,000 T
(ZZE—RF &)  cHERHHEAZEEZRE)
HERKRCBINA : (NVHERBER  K(i)HEE
BPIZHAETHAY  NERFVIKEBEERBER
BEBE -

KEFEEEEF TR
HE_Z—XE+-_A=+—HItFE %5
BB T 2 1T 2 5189,405,000% 7T -
HEBEE-_E-—HEFE+t-_A=+—RIFEZRH
149,185,0008 7T L FH27% - (TR MEE
AR B ITAAEI - IrEREE HeM k—
MR AZERF R E R UIEN B A R M a £1g i
45,299,0007 JTCFT 8L ©

KEFEEEEFBERK
HE_Z—XE+-_A=+—HItFE %5
BEKEER ZEKAB4,632,0008 (=%
—AF ¢ 3,992,000%7) - BEKAEZRAR
TERRHEABEE 27 86,122,0008 7T © EH
1,490,000 7L Ty E AL Bl R —TBREZEEE 2
R o BEFFIENTF2.40%%E5.60% °

BEEFHE

RZTB—XRE+-A=+—8 KEAZEEF
BE4942,701,466,0008TC B=_ZT—HF+=A
=+ —HZEBEFEL2,796,763,000/8 7T D4
95,297,000/ 70 - BEFERD EZHRFNE
A 5518 4988,008,00078 TR 2K -

ItERBREEFEXEBERAR —B-—AFFR

17



18

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's cash in hand was
HK$298,204,000 (2015: HK$628,952,000). The Group's long-term and
short-term loan was HK$182,835,000 in total (2015: HK$127,384,000).
Total debt increased by HK$55,451,000 mainly due to the drown dawn
of working capital loan of HK$53,000,000 during the year 2016.

The Group agreed that meticulous management on cash flow is the
key to success. To ensure that there is sufficient capital to handle the
Group's rapid growth, the Group remains good relationships with
each of the banks from time to time, so that the Group gains easy
access to applications for loans.

Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and Customers
The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable development in
the long term, continuously create value for its employees and
customers, and foster good relationships with its suppliers. The
Group understands that employees are its valuable assets, and the
realisation and enhancement of employees’ values will facilitate
the achievement of the Group's overall goals. For the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group provided generous social security
benefits to its employees to motivate them while heightening their
sense of belonging. The Group also understands the importance of
maintaining good relationships with its suppliers and customers to
the overall development of the Group. The Group places emphasis on
supplier selection and encourages fair and open competition to foster
long-term relationships with quality suppliers on the basis of mutual
trust. To maintain the competitiveness of its brand and products, the
Group abides by the principles of honesty and trustworthiness and
commits itself to consistently provide quality products to establish
a reliable service environment for its customers. For the year ended
31 December 2016, there was no significant and material dispute
between the Group and its suppliers and/or customers.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’'s capital
expenditure was approximately HK$346,714,000 (2015:
HK$1,906,998,000), consisting of addition of property, plants and
equipment, investment properties, prepaid land lease payments
and other intangible assets, including assets from acquisition of
subsidiaries.
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Capital Structure

The Group took full advantage of the financing platform as a listed
company by striving for a constant optimization of the capital and
financing structure, so as to obtain sufficient funds to finance the
future projects of medical and geriatric care businesses. During
the year, the Group's operations were mainly financed by internal
resources.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledge the following assets
as security for bank loans:

(i)  the investment properties situated in the PRC with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$320,047,000 (2015: HK$303,175,000);

(i) the land use right with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$282,215,000 (2015: Nil);

(i) the Group's receivable from a related company amounting to
HK$111,875,000 (2015: Nil);

(iv)  the pledge of certain of the Group's time deposits amounting to
HK$21,900,000 (2015: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

On 26 May 2015, the Company received a writ issued by Lucky
Creation Limited (the "Plaintiff”) in the High Court (the “Action”)
against the Company and Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, an executive
director of the Company. In the Action, the Plaintiff claims against the
Company for specific performance of an alleged agreement to issue
and allot 1,236,615,482 new shares at the price of HK$0.25 per share,
loss and damages to be assessed for the alleged breaches, interest,
costs of the Action and further and/or other relief. The Company
filed its defence on 20 July 2015. Due to the inherent uncertainties of
litigation, the directors of the Company, based on the advice from the
Group's legal counsel, believe that the Company has a valid defense
against the allegation and, accordingly, has not provided for any claim
arising from litigation, other than the related legal and other costs.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risks was primarily
related to other receivables, bank balances, other payables and
other borrowings denominated in Canadian dollar, USD and RMB.
In respect of the Group’s exposure to potential foreign exchange
risks arising from the currency exchange rate fluctuations, it did not
make any arrangement or use any financial instruments to hedge
against potential foreign exchange risks. However, the management
will continue to monitor foreign exchange risks and adopt hedging
measures where necessary.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND TRAINING

The Group regards high-quality employees as its most important
resource. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately
879 employees (2015: 129 employees), of which, 49 employees were
management staff. The average age of the employees was 37. The
increase in the number of staff was mainly due to the acquisition of
subsidiaries during the year.

The Group’s overall remuneration system is adhered to the principle
of market orientation, offering competitive salary to retain and
attract high caliber persons. The salaries of the Group’s senior
management are determined with reference to market level as well as
the Group's overall operating results. The remuneration of directors
and supervisors not employed by the Group were determined by the
shareholder’s general meeting.

The staff costs (including remunerations of the Directors) generated
from continuing operation were approximately HK$76,399,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$46,530,000). Employee
remuneration is determined with reference to individual performance,
work experience, qualification and current industry practice. Apart
from basic remuneration and statutory pension benefit scheme,
employee benefits also include discretionary bonus and share
options.

The Group places emphasis on the recruitment, motivation and
retention of suitable talents. Directors and some of the senior and
middle management executives enjoy share options under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 24 May 2013, which are
to motivate staff, to encourage them to work hard to enhance the
value and foster better long-term development of the Group. The
Company has also adopted a restricted share award scheme to grant
restricted shares to eligible employees.
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The Group makes great efforts to enhance the quality of staff. During
the year, the Group organized internal training courses for staff
at all levels. Topics of the training courses included moral, ethic,
languages, technical and management skill trainings.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group strives to offer investors access to updated and accurate
information on the Group's latest major development. The Group
believes that effective communication is built on a two-way basis,
and therefore welcomes feedbacks from investors to the Group. To
facilitate an easy access to information on the Company’s latest major
development, a number of measures have been taken to ensure all
necessary information and appropriate updates are made available
to investors in a timely manner through the Company’s website at
www.bemh.com.hk, under the column of the “Investor Relations”.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’'s Annual
Report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The manner in which the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) are applied and implemented as explained below.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group acknowledges the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group's success and sustainability. We are
committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance as
an essential component of quality and have introduced corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of our
business.

The Company has applied most of the principles set out in the CG
Code.

The Company has adopted different measures to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance and has put in place corporate
governance practices that are considered to be relevant to the Group,
to meet the CG Code.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except
for the deviation from code provisions A.4.2 and A.6.7.

Code Provision A.4.2

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Mr. Gary Zhao who was appointed as director of the Company to fill
casual vacancies, did not retire and offer for election by shareholders
at the first extraordinary general meeting of the Company after their
appointment held on 15 March 2016. Nevertheless, Mr. Gary Zhao has
retired and re-elected at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 20 May 2016 in accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides
that any director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as
an additional director shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at the meeting. To abide Article 112, the Company will
arrange for the directors appointed by the Board to retire only at the
next annual general meeting, but not at any extraordinary general
meeting after their appointment.

Code Provision A.6.7

Code provision A.6.7 provides that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Three independent non-executive directors and
one non-executive director of the Company did not attend the
extraordinary general meeting held at 15 March 2016, and three
independent non-executive directors did not attend the annual
general meeting held at 20 May 2016.

The Company has reviewed its corporate governance practices and
has taken appropriate actions to comply with the CG Code which are
explained in the relevant paragraphs of the Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company has applied the Model Code to the relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the
Model Code by the relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company was
informed that:

o By a resolution passed by the remuneration committee
of the Company, Mr. Zhu Shi Xing is entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$2,065,000 and discretionary bonus which
is determined by the Board with reference to his experience,
duties and responsibilities with effect from 1 January 2017;

o By a resolution passed by the remuneration committee of
the Company, Mr. Liu Xue Heng is entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$1,990,000 and discretionary bonus which
is determined by the Board with reference to his experience,
duties and responsibilities with effect from 1 January 2017;

o By a resolution passed by the remuneration committee of
the Company on 15 December 2015, Mr. Gu Shan Chao, an
Executive Director of the Company is entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$1,964,000 and discretionary bonus which
is determined by the Board with reference to his experience,
duties and responsibilities with effect from 1 January 2017;
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS B

Board Composition EFEESHMK

The Board currently comprises 12 members, consisting of 7 Executive EERRNATEKEMAK  BELERITE
Directors, 1 Non-executive Director and 4 Independent Non- B —RIIRTEERNR B IFNITES -

executive Directors.

The list of all Directors (by category) is set out under “Corporate PREEMNZERERED)SNE2B[ ARE
Information” on page 2 and all corporate communications issued by A MER AR TRFRE EHRAEHD
the Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The RN TEBA c AREMRBE EWRA - RATEA
Independent Non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all R APAEYIABIERITEEZE D -
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there have been changes HE-Z—XRF+_A=+—HIEFE ' AR7F
in the composition of the Board of the Company, details of which are BEReHEREMES  FREHNESeRE - &
set out in the Directors’ Report. The Board currently comprises the EeBRHRATESHEMNK

following Directors:

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (Chairman) B LE(EE)

Mr. Liu Xue Heng (Joint Chief Executive Officer) BIEB S (BT AR )
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming (Joint Chief Executive Officer) RERRLAE(BETBAAR)
Mr. Gu Shan Chao FEEHEE

Mr. Hu Xiao Yong HABEE S

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi ERAMRIE A

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TIERRE
Non-executive Director FHITESE

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp |5unt=-F o
Independent Non-executive Directors BYIIHITESE

Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith ;BT E

Mr. Wu Yong Xin Rk HE

Mr. Gary Zhao I % A

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RIBRE L E

None of the members of the Board is related to one another. FIBEEEKE 2 M BEREER -

ItEREEFEXEBEARAR —BE-—A EFH 25
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of
the Board and Management

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expenses, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the
senior management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company.

Every newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory
and regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefing and
professional development for Directors will be arranged where
necessary.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors participated REBEE-_ZT—RE+_A=+—HLIFE EF
the trainings as follows: SEIFIWRHEAT
Topic
Directors BE=E =]
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing MRS A B
Mr. Liu Xue Heng BB EE B
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming sREmAAEE B
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEEBEE B
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong HEESE B
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi HARBLE B
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TIEREE B
Non-executive Director HHITEF
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp B isE B
Independent Non-executive Director BUHRITEF
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith AT AB
Mr. Wu Yong Xin Rk & B
Mr. Xie Ming (resigned on 29 February 2016) WAL ER=ZF—ANFZA=FNLAFHF) N/A iE
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RIBE L& B
Mr. Gary Zhao (appointed on 29 February 2016) HHIGEE(R=ZFE—ANFA=FNLHEZF) B
A:  attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums relating A HEBHEERY i 1EELA MR
to directors’ duties, accounting standard or other relevant FREZHTER HEBHER L tE
topics
B: reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the B: MEBRGEE  —MELK  SiHEERAE

economy, general business, accounting standard or directors’
duties etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has reviewed
and monitored the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management. The Board has also reviewed
and ensured compliance of the relevant legal and regulatory
requirements, the code of conducts, the CG Code and the disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

In addition, relevant reading materials including directors’ manual/
legal and regulatory update/seminar handouts have been provided to
the Directors for their reference and studying.

FBEZZHE  TIWREFEH

REBEZZT—R"F+A=+—HLEFE E=F
SERNREBEENGREEE ZHIIRFE
BRER BRI RERETERERER
EERE BRTTH - AEERTRIENEEE

SRR ERELE

o BREETM RIWEEREEEM T
NEEESHBMEMHOERETES  #E
E2HRME -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Investment and Risk Management Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors (except for the Investment and
Risk Management Committee) and the current list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 2.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Gary Zhao
and Mr. Wu Yong Xin. All of them are Independent Non-executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-executive Director with
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

o To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or
external auditors before submission to the Board

o To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors

J To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year to review
the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, the report of the internal auditor on the Company’s
internal control and risk management systems and processes,
the reappointment of the external auditors and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2016
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors three times
without the presence of the Executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Gary Zhao (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Tse, Man
Kit, Keith and Mr. Wu Yong Xin. All of them are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings to
review the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management and
other related matters.

The details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated audited financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises four members,
namely, Mr. Wu Yong Xin (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Zhu Shi
Xing, Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith and Mr. Gary Zhao. The majority of them
are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, identifying suitable candidates for appointment
as Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity
Policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and ethnicity,
in addition to educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the
Board for adoption.

During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, Mr. Liu Xue
Heng, Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp, Mr. Wu Yong Xin and Mr. Gary
Zhao, shall retire by rotation in accordance with Atricle 108 of the
Company's Articles of Association and being eligible, offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The Company's circular dated 18 April 2017 contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

REZEE

RAZBEEATMAKBARK - BRI ELE
(REgXFE)  PAEELE  FXELERER
S RMAOKERBUIFRITES -

RAZBEENIZREEERNESTSNENX -
PWEHETETNEAREAN  URREEEER
EFREIHINEFTSRDLERRZRE

R ESSEKE REZE9eEREES
ZRACBERIE 2B EHHE - BREREANRNME
A FER UERER  MEHEER - FELK
B - BB MBERBEEY - BREZBESHNA
FEENEN METERE UL EEEZEEH
17 WAEFSHEBRN

FA - REZEBEERITREE  BIESFE
HRE - RERENK - URERHEAGBTERHA
DEARREBER 2 BEMH - REERER -

REARB 2 AEEIRME - BIBEXE - B
BiEh - RoG A RBRIEEBRIEARRRE
BERZMAE108HFRHERE  TAERAER
RERBRRBFERGEREE -

RAZEGEFBNZERNARABRRAF RS
FEENES -

ARBREMA-_ZT—tFWATN\RZBREA
FEERESZHAEH -



~

Corporate Governance Report @ (2 XE/a%WE

Investment and Risk Management Committee

The Investment and Risk Management Committee currently
comprised Mr. Gu Shan Chao (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Liu
Xue Heng, Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (all being Executive Directors) and Mr.
Lam Ka Tak (the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary).

Principal duties of the Investment and Risk Management Committee
include overseeing the risk management and evaluating the major
investment and funding projects of the Group.

There are five meetings held by the Investment and Risk Management
Committee during the year.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

RERBBEZEZSE

RENEREEZEGRMBESBLLE(ZES
TIE) BEELELE RECEEE(2ZRWTE
F)IMEREALE(BERUHERARWE)EK -

REMEREEZBEEZIZRBEREERR
B PHEAEEIZRENERER -

FA - RERRREEZEER/ITARNERE

EEERBAEE
EFE2RBEETOXBEARATAZTAIMRXE
D.3. M RATEL 2 BAE

EXCREARRIZEEEARERESR &
FLEAEEEZEIIRGEERER - ARA
BTEARREERECERREER - BTHREST
A URARBBTEREATIERALEE
SATE P E o

ItERBREEFEXEBERAR —B-—AFFR

31



Corporate Governance Report @ o5& a5 S

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EENZESREZHERE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board REBEZE—A"F+A=+—"HILFE  TF
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held EREETSNEZTZESURARFBRRERE 2
during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the table below: HERERTIN TR

Attendance/Number of Meetings

R,/ BRI
Investment
and Risk
Management Annual  Extraordinary
Nomination ~Remuneration Audit ~ Committee General General
Board  Committee  Committee  Committee  RERER Meeting Meeting
Name of Directors B2if E3f R4ZEE HMZEE  BHERE  EEZEE  BREFAE  RREAAE
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing ntELE 11 n - - 55 "n n
Mr. Liu Xue Heng Y2kt 111 - - - 55 01 071
Mr. Gu Shan Chao Bzibnk 1N - - - 5/5 0/1 01
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong il 1011 - - - - on 0N
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi FibiEyes 1011 - - - - 01 0N
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun T5R4 8/11 - - - - 01 0/1
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming FRARAE 011 - - - - 0 0/1
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp Rit8nk 111 - - - - N 0/1
Mr. Xie Ming AR
(resigned on 29 February 2016)  (R=F—AE-F-FNAEH) A3 - Il - - - -
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith EpC s 1M n 202 33 - i 7N
Mr. Wu Yong Xin RIFRE 111 1 n 3 - i 01
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou FEARLE 111 - - - - i 01
Mr. Gary Zhao (appointed on BREER-F-AF
29 February 2014) ZAZTAREE) 11 0n 01 23 01 0/
Name of Committee Member ~ ZE&HER
Mr. Lam Ka Tak WEErs - - - - 5/5 - -

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings BEEeFl eI TEIFRENERBYIEHITE
with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence ERTeH(WERTEENE) -
of Executive Directors during the year.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive information announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory
requirements. The Directors are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 62 to 68.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below:

ESHMBHRRZEE

EFAERSEARERBARAEE_T A F
TZA=Z+—RBUEFEZHBRE -

EXESRAZWMTE  BHMEARZFHRNITH
WEFE - ERGERENIMREMRE ETHR
AIREMEEREEREMRERE - EF8
AERARAMBRR 2AE - UWRRZENH
BRAEBMAFHRMRAKE AN - X5
BEEREEERER SR -

EEERNEESRHZEMTBREREN  &HE
EZEUUMREESSHEZARTMBEHRE -
TER B RTAE o

EXW T HNEABEMEHFRIERNEFMEAS
RAPRE  MZEEHRIERATEHARE 2
BRERENBBRERR -

ARARBIZHEABRBEREOPHRETERHA
HNE62E68E [ B X EENIHRE | -

BE RN €
REBE-_Z—R"E+ A=+ B LFERER
BRI RIS REC N AR B INEZ S 2 &5
EWT -

Fees Paid/Payable

B ENER

HK$

Service Category %538 BT

Audit Services ZE AR

— Statutory audit services —EEBEZREE 1,450,000
Non-audit Services IEZHIRTE

— Review of interim report —EBEP RS 360,000

— Consultation service — B AR 200,000

2,010,000

ItREREFEXEERRAR —B-AFFR
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of the Group is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing to take in
achieving its strategic objectives, and ensuring that an appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control system is
established and maintained by the Group. The Board of the Group
has overseen the management in the design, implementation and
monitoring the risk management and internal control system. The
Board has confirmed that it is its duty to establish a risk management
and internal control system, and that it will constantly oversee the
system and ensure a regular review of the effectiveness of the system
will be conducted at least once a year.

The Board and the Audit Committee of the Company has also
confirmed that during the reporting period, they have reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and its subsidiaries, covering all important control aspects
including financial control, operational control and compliance
control.

During the reporting period, the Board and the Audit Committee
of the Company have evaluated the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system, the procedures of which
include:

(1)  To determine the extent of the system, identify risks and
prepare risk checklists;

(2)  To assess and prioritize the impacts of the risks based on their
impacts on the operational efficiency, sustainable development
capability and reputation in accordance with the generally
accepted risk management framework, with reference to the
probability of various types of potential risks,the extent of the
management’s concerns and the possible financial loss arising
from the risks;

(3)  To ensure risk management measures are in place to identify
significant risks, to conduct internal control evaluation on the
design and implementation of such risk management measures
and to take actions to rectify the control gaps;

(4)  To conduct a regular review and summary on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control system through
evaluation on the significant risks and implementation of
rectification measures carried out by the management, so as to
maximize and continuously enhance the risk management.

(5) To prepare a risk management manual that determines the
duties and responsibilities of management, board of directors
and Audit Committee in risk management, and to provide
guideline for constantly monitoring the risk management and
internal control system;
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The management has reported to the Audit Committee
on the results of regular review and evaluation on the risk
management, internal control systems, significant risk factors
and corresponding measures during the reporting period.

Nevertheless, the risk management and internal control system is

designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks that arising from

unsuccessful business objectives, and only to make reasonable, but

not absolute assurances for the non-material misrepresentation or

losses.

As to the procedures and internal controls for handling and

disseminating the inside information, the Company:

is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and the Listing Rules, and the overriding principle of
dealing with the inside information is to make announcement
immediately after such information comes to its attention and/
or a relevant decision has been made, unless such information
falling within the provision of “Safe Harbours” as provided in
the Securities and Futures Ordinance;

conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 2012 and “Recent Economic
Developments and the Disclosure Obligations of Listed Issuers”
issued by the Stock Exchange in 2008;

has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group's affairs. Senior executives
of the Group are designated and authorised to act as the
Company'’s spokespersons and respond to specific enquiries;

has implemented and disclosed its own Code of Conduct for
share transaction by relevant employee and Inside information
disclosure policy.
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The Company is planning to set up an internal audit function.
During the first half of the reporting year, the management of the
Group has engaged professional consultants to assist in the risk
identification and evaluation so as to formulate its risk management
measure. During the second half of the reporting year, the
Company has evaluated the design and implementation of internal
control measures for significant risks. The Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system and
considered it is effective and adequate and will continue to enhance
the effectiveness in the coming future.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. All resolutions
put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites
of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each shareholder
meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board on the
written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the Company,
provided that such shareholders held at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be called for the transaction of any
business specified in the written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Shareholders who wish to move resolutions at general meetings may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,

shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 2108, 21/F, Greenfield Tower, Concordia Plaza,
1 Science Museum Road,

Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: 2681-2789

Email: enquiry@bemh.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, apart from the
registered office of the Company, and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group's business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at http://www.bemh.com.hk, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Investment and Risk Management Committee or, in their absence,
other members of the respective committees and, where applicable,
are available to answer questions at shareholder meetings.

The 2016 Annual General Meeting ("AGM") was held on 20 May 2016.
The notice of AGM was sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the AGM.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENENEIRRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in September 2014. He is currently the Chairman
of the Board and a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Investment and Risk Management Committee of the Company. Mr.
Zhu graduated from the Central University of Finance and Economics
with a bachelor’'s degree in finance and obtained his master degree
in software engineering from Beihang University. In addition, Mr. Zhu
obtained a bachelor degree in sport management from Beijing Sport
University in July 1994. Mr. Zhu started his career as an assistant in
the investment department of the China Xinxing Corporation (Group)
Ltd. in 1994. During the period from 2004 to 2015, he joined the
Beijing Holdings Limited (“BHL"), an affiliate of Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited (“BPHL"”, HKEX Stock Code: 925), and had been
nominated the vice general manager of various subsidiaries of BHL
involving in industries of tourism, logistics, property development
and the executive vice president of BPHL. Since December 2015, Mr.
Zhu is also an Executive Director of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
Industry Group Limited ("Beijing Sports and Entertainment”, HKEX
Stock Code: 1803), an associate of the Company. Mr. Zhu has
extensive experience in investment, financial management and
property development.

Mr. Liu Xue Heng

Mr. Liu Xue Heng, aged 43, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Joint Chief Executive Officer of the Company in September
2014 and April 2015 respectively. He is currently a member of the
Investment and Risk Management Committee of the Company.
Before joining the Company, he served as an executive director and
the chairman of Investment and Risk Management Committee of
BPHL during the period from 1 January 2011 to 23 December 2015,
an executive director and the chief executive officer of Tai United
Holdings Limited (HKEX stock code: 718) during the period from 11
July 2014 to 19 January 2016, as well as an independent non-executive
director of Guangshen Railway Co., Limited (HKEX stock code: 525)
during the period from 2 June 2011 to 29 May 2014 respectively. Mr.
Liu is also an Executive Director of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
since January 2016 and he has been the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of Beijing Sports and Entertainment since
April 2016. Mr. Liu obtained a Master of Business Administration
from Cambridge University in the United Kingdom. He has extensive
experience in equity investment, corporate finance, initial public
offer, and mergers and acquisitions.
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Mr. Zhang Jing Ming

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive
Director and Joint Chief Executive Officer of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Zhang graduated with a master degree in
international finance and trade in the University of International
Business and Economics. Mr. Zhang started his property related
business since 1996 being the chairman of the board and the general
manager of Beijing Wanqi Holdings Ltd., a property developer in
Beijing. In 2009, he was also appointed the chief executive officer of
the Beijing Badachu Real Estate Group Limited. Mr. Zhang has almost
twenty years’ experience in property development business.

Mr. Gu Shan Chao

Mr. Gu Shan Chao, aged 47, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in September 2014. He is currently the Chairman of
the Investment and Risk Management Committee of the Company
and the President of the Group. Mr. Gu obtained his bachelor’s
degree in electronic engineering from the Beijing Institute of
Technology and a master degree in property from the Tsinghua
University. Mr. Gu participated in the property industry since 1999
who had been sales director and general manager of various property
developers in Beijing. Mr. Gu is currently a director of Holiday Inn
Downtown Beijing Co., Ltd., a subsidiaries of BPHL.

Mr. Hu Xiao Yong

Mr. Hu Xiao Yong, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in September 2014. He is also an executive director
and the chairman of Beijing Enterprises Clean Energy Group Limited
(HKEX Stock Code: 1250) and the vice-chairman of the China
Environmental Service Industry Association. During the period from 1
August 2008 to 30 March 2016, Mr. Hu was an executive director and
the chief executive officer of Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited
(HKEX stock code: 371), and re-designated to honorary chairman
since 30 March 2016. Mr. Hu obtained his EMBA degree from the
Tsinghua University.
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Mr. Hu Shiang Chi

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in May 2015. Mr. Hu obtained his master degree in
International Business and bachelor degree in electrical Engineering
from National Taiwan University. Mr. Hu has extensive experience
in operation management and company acquisition and is now the
chairman of the board of Abico-Fs Co., Ltd (stock code in GreTai
Securities Market: 8071), JBON International Co., Ltd. (stock code
in GreTai Securities Market: 1566) and Transystem Inc. (stock code
in GreTai Securities Market: 5348), the director of Celxpert Energy
Corporation (stock code in GreTai Securities Market: 3323), HiTi
Digital, Inc. (stock code in GreTai Securities Market: 3494), Chien Hwa
Coating Technology Inc., Jentech Precision Industrial Co., LTD. (stock
code in GreTai Securities Market: 3653) and AVY Industrial Co., Ltd.
(stock code in GreTai Securities Market: 5392), as well as the general
manager of Ability | Venture Capital Corporation and Abico Asia
Capital Corporation.

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun

Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in June 2008. He was the Chairman of the
Company during the period from October 2008 to February 2015.
He has over ten years of experience in property development and
management. Mr. Wang has substantial experience in developing and

constructing villas, residential units and commercial buildings in the
PRC.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp, aged 50, was appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company in May 2015. Mr. Koepp obtained
his bachelor degree in Asian Studies from Pomona College, USA,
and Master of Business Administration from Cambridge University
in the United Kingdom. Mr. Koepp is proficient in both the Chinese
and Japanese language and has in-depth professional experience
in public and private equity financing, real estate, economics and
business strategies, particularly for companies operating in China
and listed overseas. He is the author of Betting on China: Chinese
Stocks, American Stock Markets, and the Wagers on a New Dynamic
in Global Capitalism among other publications. He has previously
provided advice in the areas of investor relations and best practices
for information disclosure to issuers engaged in the Chinese
healthcare and consumer industries and are listed in The New York
Stock Exchange and NASDAQ.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wu Yong Xin

Mr. Wu Yong Xin, aged 53, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in September 2014. He is currently
the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wu is currently the Senior Vice President, Chief Government
Affairs Officer, General Manager of Regional Organization of Siemens
Ltd., China. Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’s degree in economics in
the Capital University of Economics and Trade in Beijing and master
in business administration degree in China Europe International
Business School. He started his career in the university as an assistant
lecturer. In 1988, Mr. Wu joined the then Beijing representative office
of Siemens as an assistant manager in finance and administration
and was seconded to Germany for further management training in
headquarters of Siemens in 1992. Since his return to Siemens Ltd.,
China in 1993, he assumed the role of divisional business manager
and group’s human resource deputy officer. During the year 1999 to
2001, he was assigned to Germany headquarter strategic department
and participated in business development in United States of
America, Korea and Taiwan market. After his return to China, he had
participated in market development for Maglev train and Express train
business. In 2007, Mr. Wu was appointed the senior vice president of
Siemens Ltd., China and took over the current position since 2015.

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith, aged 43, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2014. He is
currently the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Tse is also the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Shunfeng International Clean Energy Limited (HKEX stock
code: 1165) and an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Sports and Entertainment. Mr. Tse has around 19 years of working
experience in accounting and financial management. Mr. Tse is a CPA
Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Tse obtained a bachelor’s degree in commerce from
University of Wollongong, New South Wales, Australia in July 1997,
majoring in accountancy and finance.
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Mr. Gary Zhao

Mr. Gary Zhao, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in February 2016. He is currently
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’'s degree in English literature from
Northeast Normal University and a master’s degree in education from
Hebei University in 1984 and 1986, respectively. Mr. Zhao worked in
the State Education Commission of the People’s Republic of China
since 1986 and was re-designated to work in the Department of
Foreign Investment of Beijing Foreign Trade and Economic Relations
Commission in 1989. From 1992 to 2005, he served as the general
manager of several enterprises, and has subsequently become
a fulltime freelance investor since 2005. Mr. Zhao has extensive
experience in the Chinese economic development, Chinese financial
market, project investment and business management.

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2015. Mr. Zhang
has engaged in clinical work of internal medicine and neurology
for 25 years. He possesses knowledge in relation to neuroanatomy,
neuropathology, electroneurophysiology, neuroimaging and
knowledge in relation to other disciplines, and can conduct body
check and positioning by the tactical use of the nervous system. He
currently focuses on issues of the nervous system and diagnosis and
treatment of critical illnesses and conduct integrated management
by objectives through the effective combination of neurology,
neurosurgery and various specialist disciplines and the integration
of fundamental knowledge and clinical practice. He has unique
insight towards various aspects including the diagnosis, monitoring
and analysis, fluid and electrolyte balance, parenteral and enteral
nutrition, prevention of hospital-acquired infection, and tranquilizing,
painkilling and sleep in respect of patients suffering from critical
neurological illnesses. He is also specialized in treatment and
monitoring associated with using ventilator for mechanical ventilation
that curbs pathological changes in the nervous system. After finishing
his first doctorate degree in Nanfang Hospital of First Military Medical
University in Guangzhou and second doctorate degree in Xuanwu
Hospital of Capital Medical University in Beijing, Mr. Zhang obtained
his qualification of PhD candidate in Neurology from PLA Military
Medical School (PLA General Hospital) (% /= & # & S0k (R IRE
#8%&Fr)) in Beijing, a master candidate in Neurology from Zhujiang
Hospital of First Military Medical University in Guangzhou and a
bachelor degree in Clinical Medicine from The Fourth Military Medical
University in Xian, respectively. Mr. Zhang obtained the professional
qualification of associate chief physician in Neurology (## 4 W} &l
F EEAD) and associate professor in Neurology (f#4% RELEIZIE) in
2004 and 2013, respectively followed by the professional qualification
of chief physician in Neurology (4% A%} % (£ 28 AM) and postgraduate
tutor (BB LHFEAEEERD). He is currently the medical group leader of
emergency Neurology (f#4XARIEJESR/E), and an chief physician and
associate professor and postgraduate tutor in Xuanwu Hospital of
Capital Medical University in Beijing.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Ka Tak

Mr. Lam Ka Tak, aged 35, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Group, he joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Lam received
his Master of Business Administration degree from the University of
Hong Kong and Bachelor of Arts with Honours degree in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, he has over 14 years of
working experience in financial management and corporate finance.
Before joining the Group, he had worked for several international
accounting firms. Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Hong Kong Business Accountants
Association. He is also an executive director of Beijing Sports and
Entertainment Industry Group Limited (Stock code: 1803) and an
independent non-executive director of U Banquet Group Holding
Limited (Stock code: 1483).
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Directors” Report
EESWE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
future development in the Group's business, can be found in the
"Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual report.
The above section form part of this “Directors’ Report”.

POSSIBLE RISK EXPOSURE

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some which are specific to the Group or the industries in
which the Group operates as well as others that are common to most
businesses. The Directors have established a procedure to ensure
that significant risks may adversely affect the Group’s performance
and ability to deliver on its strategies, as well as those which may
present positive opportunities, are identified, reported, monitored,
and managed on a continuous basis.

Risk of Investment Decisions

Risk analysis: According to the Group's development strategies,
we will continue to acquire new projects in the future, whether
high quality projects will be selected and investment decisions to
be made scientifically will have far-reaching effects on the Group's
development.

Tackling measures: Subject to corporate strategies, determine
the investment decision indicators and the information required
for analysis, and maintain close communication with the relevant
assessment agencies and collaborative authorities; combine
preliminary investment research with project progress conditions
and influencing factors, such as socio-economic policies, to predict
possible external factors which may arise in later stages; select the
right timing of entry for the project and formulate the corresponding
investment strategies, and make timely adjustments to achieve the
best result.

Risk of Financing Costs

Risk analysis: As the Group's borrowings gradually increase, there
are higher requirements for budgeting, management and control
of funds. Currently a regular reporting system has been basically
established for funding conditions and financing plans, but the
capabilities on assessing actual requirement of funds and the funding
term have to be strengthened. At the same time, monitor closely the
relationship between exchange rate changes and changes in interest
rate spreads, further enhance supervision and control capabilities,
take action in advance to avoid risk of exchange rate changes and
structural risk of financing arrangements.
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Tackling measures: To keep on strengthening the tracking analysis on
national currency policies and capital market conditions and trends
and closely monitor exchange rate and interest rate changes; enhance
joint collaborations with domestic and foreign financial institutions to
obtain information on exchange rate and interest rate momentum to
further improve supervision and control capabilities.

Risk of Sectoral and Economic Policies

Risk analysis: Changes in sectoral and economic policies in China will
have impact on medical and geriatric business. Currently, policies for
the sector remained stable and favourable.

Tackling measures: Monitor simultaneously the conditions of the
province where the subsidiaries operate, including industry policies,
regional economic policies and macroeconomic changes, collect and
arrange the relevant information regularly to establish a database for
carrying out analysis and research to formulate tackling measures;
strengthen interaction between peer entities and superior authorities
to understand the changing direction of the industry, exchange
management experience and enable good communication.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known
as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 69 to 71.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Company and the Group during the year
are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution of dividend, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As at 31
December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
amounted to HK$1,320,586,000 which consisted of share premium of
HK$1,805,149,000 net of accumulated losses of HK$484,563,000.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS IR 7S K2 B BR #E
Details of the movements in the Company's share capital and share KA AIRRA R BB 2 S B FIFE R LR A W5
options are set out in note 31 and 32 to the consolidated financial FMFE31 %32
statements.
PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF BE BOfHELTES
LISTED SECURITIES
The Company had bought back the Shares on the Stock Exchange AANBREBE - T—RXF+-_A=1+—HILFE
during the year ended 31 December 2016 with details as follows: AR BB PrEEEI AR (D » FEIB T -
Price per Share
BRER
Number
of Shares Highest Lowest
Trading Day X%H Purchased Price Paid Price Paid Total Paid
BEROHE efBaE ENREE [EERE:E-)
HKD HKD HKD
BTT BIT BT
28 June 2016 —E—RF
~NAZ+NAH 2,478,000 0.495 0.490 1,225,320.00
29 June 2016 —E-REF
~NAZ+hH 798,000 0.500 0.495 395,700.00
30 June 2016 —ZT—RF
~NA=+H 4,020,000 0.500 0.500 2,010,000.00
04 July 2016 - ‘%E—/_\Etﬂ mH 6,642,000 0.520 0.500 3,407,460.00
05 July 2016 T—-RFtHAH 2,460,000 0.530 0.520 1,289,820.00
06 July 2016 —E—REFELANRH 2,970,000 0.530 0.520 1,554,960.00
08 July 2016 T—RFLANH 3,216,000 0.540 0.520 1,722,660.00
19 September 2016 _T—/_\¢
j'LH +1A 7,686,000 0.435 0.420 3,264,240.00
21 September 2016 —ZEF—RF
NAZ+—H 2,808,000 0.450 0.450 1,263,600.00
22 September 2016 —EB—RKE
hA=Z+=H 8,130,000 0.455 0.450 3,696,840.00
23 September 2016 —E—RF
hAZ+=H 7,788,000 0.460 0.450 3,536,850.00
26 September 2016 —E—RF
NAZ+<H 9,246,000 0.470 0.450 4,319,280.00
27 September 2016 —EB—RE
NA=—++H 18,096,000 0.470 0.445 8,272,980.00
28 September 2016 —E-RE
A=+ \H 6,114,000 0.480 0.450 2,819,640.00
30 September 2016 —E—RF
NA=+H 2,418,000 0.450 0.435 1,075,890.00
84,870,000
All of the shares bought back during the year ended 31 December FIEREZE ¢+ =+—HIFEH
2016 were cancelled in July 2016 and November 2016 respectively. B ﬁ%@ZHx{’y}E MR -_ZE—RELtAR-ZT
—RFET—HEHE -

Save as disclosed, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the RETIREEI  REE - —RNF+_A=1+—
Company or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company's listed securities HIEFEHME - RARISCAERNE LG ERE
during the year ended 31 December 2016. B HEHBRARAZ FTES -
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the equity-linked agreements subsisting at the end of the
year are set out below:

Ordinary Shares

On 2 November 2015, Shanghai Chongyuan Investment Management
Company Limited* ()8R EEEHRAF]) (the “Purchaser”),
an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a transfer and subscription of shares agreement (the "Transfer and
Subscription Agreement") with an independent third party (the
“Vendor”) to obtain 51% of the enlarged issued share capital of Fujian
Fu Ling Golden Sun Health and Geriatric Company Limited* (1RiE£%&
Bt AGREEZRM AR AT (the "Target Company”). Reference
is made to the announcements of the Company dated 2 November
2015, 4 November 2015, 30 November 2015 and 2 February 2016.

The aggregate Consideration for the Acquisition is in the sum of
RMB57,000,000, to be satisfied in the following manner:

Upon fulfillment of the first tranche payment conditions stipulated
in the Transfer and Subscription Agreement therein by the Target
Company on or before 10 December 2015 (“First Tranche Payment”)

1 RMB30,000,000, by the Purchaser by payment in cash payable
within 3 Business Days upon receipt of such payment request
from the Vendor;

2 RMB8,000,000, by the Purchaser procuring the Company to
allot and issue 12,195,122 Consideration Shares, as part of the
Consideration for the Acquisition which shall be issued and
allotted to the Vendor within 14 Business Days upon receipt of
such.

*  For identification purpose only

IR R 9 15 =
REREANF R REH BB FERIINT -

EBER

RZZE—RAF+—A=ZH LEWNEREER
ERABNAERRA BE2EMNBRF)(IE
FNE—EBUE=FEF I LRHEE
LkREm=E(THERRERZ])  NWESEZ
ARk XGEEEZROERARA(NTERER
ETJ)S1%Z£@%?§H§$°Z§TE?¢$ RIBE R
“T-RF+T—-HZRH - —HFE+—H
me - —ZE—RF+— )Elf"f'E&—i N
_H E!Z/‘\tto

WEgEE 2 REEF A ARYS7,000,0007T * I
iz T oA R

MEZB-—AF+-A+THLZAERBBEFEAR
EC@E%&WE%T%%E%ETEHZE,ﬁﬂﬁmﬂﬂiﬂq(f%ﬁﬂ
D

1 A R # 30,000,000 #& R EES 5 R
ERE=ZFALEARNHEHUBRSATIE
fF

2 AR¥8,000,0007T#% M E 752 fE AR A R
B R BE1712,195,122fx RAE IR 0 1 R U
FRZHAAREMN  ZERERND S
REEERRIMALEBANRNESRLER
AT e

bz B e NEFR

RREEXEEARAR —B—

47



48

A

Directors’ Report @ E=&%H&E

First Tranche Payment was completed and 12,195,122 Consideration
Shares were allotted and issued on 30 November 2015.

Upon fulfillment of the second tranche payment condition stipulated
in the Transfer and Subscription Agreement therein by the Vendor
and the Target Company on or before 30 June 2016 (“Second Tranche
Payment”)

3 RMB19,000,000, by the Purchaser procuring the Company
to allot and issue 28,963,415 Consideration Shares, as the
remaining balance of the Consideration in the following
installments:—

1 5,792,683 Consideration Shares by 30 April 2017 if the
business performance of the Target Company meets the
target for the year 2016 stipulated in the Transfer and
Subscription of Shares Agreement;

2 9,214,570 Consideration Shares by 30 April 2018 if the
business performance of the Target Company meets the
target for the year 2017 stipulated in the Transfer and
Subscription of Shares Agreement; and

3 13,956,162 Consideration Shares by 30 April 2019 if the
business performance of the Target Company meets the
target for the year 2018 stipulated in the Transfer and
Subscription of Shares Agreement.

On 20 August 2015, United Win International Corporation (“United
Win"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the
acquisition agreements with an independent third parties to acquire
the entire issued share capital of Beijing Spirit Commerce & Trading
Limited Jt R B & Z BRAF]) (“Beijing Spirit”) at a consideration of
RMB39,000,000.

Among the consideration of RMB39,000,000, subject to and
conditional upon fulfilment or waiver of all the conditions precedent
set out in the acquisition agreement, United Win will settle the
consideration of RMB10,000,000 by cash and the remaining
consideration of RMB29,000,000 will be settled by issuing 43,862,500
ordinary shares of the Company in three tranches pursuant to the
general mandate.

For details of the acquisitions, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 20 August 2015.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which ware adopted on
26 April 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) and replaced by the share option
scheme adopted on 24 May 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”). Further details
of the 2002 Scheme and 2013 Scheme are disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements.

BT E

ARFAR BB EMA = 75 R R
B -TT_FH8)) YME-T-=FHA
— B R 2 A 8 ([ — T —=F3t81)

IR —CEEFHIAR T = F I
FHBRER B RRMEI2 o

The following table discloses the number of outstanding share TEBEEARAARBIE -_E—XRF+=A
options granted to the Directors of the Company at the beginning of =+ BEKRITEEREEH)
the period and at 31 December 2016:
Number of
Number of share options Number of
share options granted at share options
at 1/1/2016 28/1/2016 at 31/12/2016
RZT—RF
RZE—RF —AZ=+NH RZE—RF
—HA—Az HBHsBEREHE TZA=+T—HZ
fERR iR B (Note)(Fi&E) BRESE
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun £IE&H%AE 20,000,000 10,000,000 30,000,000
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing U # 5 & 20,000,000 10,000,000 30,000,000
Mr. Liu Xue Heng 2|28 £ 20,000,000 10,000,000 30,000,000
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BEE LA 20,000,000 10,000,000 30,000,000
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong tEE Bt £ 10,000,000 5,000,000 15,000,000
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming SR S8R 5E 4 10,000,000 10,000,000 20,000,000
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi #AMBL5E & 5,000,000 10,000,000 15,000,000
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp FEft £ 54 5,000,000 2,000,000 7,000,000
Mr. Wu Yong Xin =K &4 2,000,000 2,000,000 4,000,000
Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith #3584 2,000,000 2,000,000 4,000,000
Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou K& %4 - 2,000,000 2,000,000
As at 31 December 2016, the Company had 357,838,171 share options RZE—REF+ZA=+—H &2 —EF
outstanding under the 2002 Scheme and 2013 Scheme. Should they —FHER-F _¢E+%UIETﬁ357,838,171

be fully exercised, the Company will receive HK$205,825,000 (before
issue expenses). The fair value of these unexercised options measured
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy (note 2.4 to the
financial statements) amounted to HK$109,193,000.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

D EARITER B - WEBREITE - AR a
#5 U B 205,825,000/ 7T (KT8 1THY) - %%
HARTTEBREREA QTS5 EE (ME®RE
M5E2.4) st 2R FEA109,193,00078 7T °
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xue Heng
(Joint Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming
(Joint Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Gu Shan Chao
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun

Non-executive Director
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith
Mr. Wu Yong Xin

Mr. Xie Ming

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou
Mr. Gary Zhao

(resigned on 29 February 2016)
(appointed on 29 February 2016)

In accordance with Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Lin Xue Heng, Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp, Mr. Wu
Yong Xin and Mr. Gary Zhao will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Company and each Independent Non-executive Director have
entered into a letter of appointment for a term of 3 years, subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association
of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
company is currently in force and was in force throughout this year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company and
its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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(i) Long positions (i) #HE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the Company KR EFIREEO.20/8 T2 EER
Approx.
percentage
of the
issued share
capital of
Interest in Total the Company
Interest underlying interest EARADE
Name of Director Capacity in shares shares in shares BRTRA
BExng i=27) RoER HERGOER R 5 B R BAOED
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun Beneficial owner 5,468,750 30,000,000 35,468,750 0.57%
TEERE ERBEEA (Note 3)
(PR3E3)

Interest held by spouse 35,074,000 - 35,074,000 0.57%

MECBRA < R (Note 1)

(F&ET)
Interest held by controlled 64,811,000 - 64,811,000 1.05%

corporation (Note 2)

AR EEE A i (Pfr&E2)
105,353,750 30,000,000 135,353,750 2.19%
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Approx.

percentage

of the

issued share

capital of

Interest in Total the Company

Interest underlying interest HARAF

Name of Director Capacity in shares shares in shares BETRAR

B 51 BRiEE HERGOER Rip R BHEI

Mr. Zhu Shi Xing Beneficial owner - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.49%
BB 5 EnEEA (Note 3)
(BI7E3)

Mr. Liu Xue Heng Beneficial owner - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.49%
L EP ERBREA (Note 3)
(BI5E3)

Mr. Gu Shan Chao Beneficial owner - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.49%
BEBLE EREBA (Note 3)
(BI7E3)

Mr. Hu Xiao Yong Beneficial owner - 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.24%
MR ETEEA (Note 3)
(PrzE3)

Mr. Zhang Jing Ming Beneficial owner - 20,000,000 20,000,000 0.32%
ReRLE ERHEAA (Note 3)
(BF3E3)

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi Beneficial owner - 15,000,000 15,000,000 0.24%
B A EREEA (Note 3)
(BI7E3)

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp  Beneficial owner - 7,000,000 7,000,000 0.11%
BHELE EmEAA (Note 3)
(PrEE3)

Mr. Wu Yong Xin Beneficial owner - 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.06%
RKFTRAE E=lEAA (Note 3)
(BF3E3)

Mr. Tse Man Kit, Keith Beneficial owner - 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.06%
Eipetaa ERBEAA (Note 3)
(B3E3)

Mr. Xie Ming Beneficial owner - 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.06%
WAL A ExnEAA (Note 3)
(PiEE3)

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou Beneficial owner - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.03%
SRIERE LA ERBREA (Note 4)
(Bi5E4)
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Notes:

1. Mr. Wang Zheng Chun (“Mr. Wang”) was deemed to be interested in
35,074,000 Shares, being the interests beneficially held by his spouse,
Madam Shen Ling Zhao.

2. The 64,811,000 Shares were held by Hillfame Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the entire

issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Wang.

3. The interests were derived from share options granted by the
Company on 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 which entitled the
holders thereof to subscribe for Shares at an exercise price of HK$0.61
and HK$ 0.53 per Share. First 30% of the share options granted will be
vested in one year after 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 (as the case
may be), second 30% of the share options granted will be vested in
two years after 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 (as the case may be)
and remaining 40% of the share options granted will be vested in three
years after 2 April 2015 and 28 January 2016 (as the case may be). The
share options are exercisable from the vesting date until 1 April 2025
and 27 January 2026 (as the case may be).

4. The interests were derived from share options granted by the
Company on 28 January 2016 which entitled the holders thereof to
subscribe for Shares at an exercise price of HK$0.53 per Share. First
30% of the share options granted will be vested in one year after 28
January 2016, second 30% of the share options granted will be vested
in two years after 28 January 2016 and remaining 40% of the share
options granted will be vested in three years after 28 January 2016. The
share options are exercisable from the vesting date until 27 January
2026.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares
or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(i) Share options
The interests of the Directors and chief executive in the share
options of the Company are separately disclosed in the section
"SHARE OPTION SCHEME" above

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company was entered or existed.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than as disclosed above in the section headed “Directors’
interests in shares and underlying shares”, as at 31 December 2016,
the shareholders (other than Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who had interests of 5% or more or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO or had otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the Company

EEEH
Py AATLEIT L AU REERNRATE
BEBAINEEHH 2 ERRITHAD -

FERR

B EXTEERR D KA D 2 #am |— &%
BEN RZZ-RF+ZA=1+—H RER
A - kO REFTHREREESIPE
WRGIEXVERE 2 R FE 3D BIGE A M AR F B E
HRER AR FIRESF M EROIFEIB6EFE
MELMARD RITAEARFRS%HIA L1
BHRBZBMR(RARABDEETHESITHAER
SMEAT

#E
7R A G R EEO. 208 T 2 BB R

Number of shares Percentage
Name of shareholder Capacity beneficially held of holding
R H =37 BEREEROEE ERESL
Cosmic Stand International Limited Beneficial owner 945,000,000 15.31%
BEREBA
Beijing Enterprises Health and Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.31%
Medical Resources Group Limited corporation (Note 1)
it EEEEREEARAR mRIEHEE A 2 s (M)
Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.31%
bR (ER) AR AT corporation (Note 1)
mRIEHEE A 2 s (M)
Brilliant Bright Holdings Limited Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.31%
FEEREAR AR A A corporation (Note 1)
mRIEHEER A 2 s (M)
Beijing Enterprises Real Estate Interest held by controlled 945,000,000 15.31%
(HK) Limited corporation (Note 1)
EEEX(EB)ERAR mRIEHEERS A 2 s (M)
Ng Kin Nam Beneficial owner 401,300,000 6.50%
Ri2m BEHBEAA
LM Bl 2SR BRI B R A A Interest held by controlled 324,684,000 5.26%

corporation (Note 2)

AR HLAB A 2w (M FE2)

ItREREFEXEERRAR —B-AFFR
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Notes:

1. These Shares were beneficially owned by Cosmic Stand International Limited.
Cosmic Stand International Limited is wholly owned by Beijing Enterprises
Health and Medical Resources Group Limited (formerly known as “BPHL Real
Estate (Holdings) Limited”) which is in turn wholly owned by Beijing Properties
(Holdings) Limited. Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited is owned as to
35.72% by Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited, 23.02% by Brilliant
Bright Holdings Limited, 7.22% by Beijing Holdings Limited and 1.3% by
Illumination Holdings Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Holdings
Limited). Beijing Enterprises Real Estate (HK) Limited is wholly owned by it
RAbEE E AR EEREF which is in turn wholly owned by Beijing Enterprises
Group Company Limited. Accordingly, these companies are deemed to be
interested in the 945,000,000 Shares to beneficially owned by Cosmic Stand
International Limited under the SFO.

2. 200,400,000 Shares were beneficially owned by Easy Glory Holding Limited,
which is in turn wholly-owned by Gloryeild Enterprises Limited (“Gloryeild”).
Gloryeild is wholly-owned by Sundart Holdings Limited and is indirectly
wholly-owned by Jangho Curtain Wall Hong Kong Limited (“Jangho”). Jangho
is wholly-owned by T3S ERRG AR AR (“)IF"). 124,284,000 Shares
were beneficially owned by Advance Finding Investments Limited, which
is in turn wholly-owned by Peacemark Enterprises Limited (“Peacemark”).
Peacemark is wholly-owned by Jangho and is indirectly wholly-owned by )T
. Accordingly, JLf] is deemed to be interested in 324,684,000 Shares under
the SFO.

Other than as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors’
interests in shares and underlying shares”, as at 31 December 2016,
the Company has not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme is set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into the following connected
transactions:

Management agreement and Lease agreement

On 16 May 2016, Beijing Yicheng Enterprise Management Company
Limited ("Beijing Yicheng”, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) entered into the management agreement (the
“Management Agreement”) with Beijing Lianjiao Chemistry Facotry
("Beijing Lianjiao Factory”) and Beijing Lianjiao Chemistry Factory
Hospital ("Beijing Lianjiao Hospital”), pursuant to which Beijing
Lianjiao Factory engaged Beijing Yicheng to manage the operation of
Beijing Lianjiao Hospital, which is a non-profit degree one, class one
hospital promoted by Beijing Lianjiao Factory for a term of thirty years
commencing on 16 August 2016 and ending on 15 August 2046 (the
“Management Period”).

During the Management Period, Beijing Yicheng will pay Beijing
Lianjiao Factory in an amount of RMB400,000 per year as the
admission fees. As the admission fee is a fixed amount, the annual
caps under the admission fee for the three years ending 31 December
2018 are RMB200,000, RMB400,000 and RMB400,000, respectively.

B & BUR
$%IEAZ%Mﬁﬁm%M S 8 &R
- EBERBENRE ©

%21

ARREEZMEHFMERESGLLEARAR

BEE BEAARBERAULEMSHIEER
EA
RATERM—IBERESE - (FERHEERSE

BEREBZEE - BT EZHBIHRNGRE MK
WMERMFE32 o

EEEER
RARZEBERANASFESRE LEYERH
RNARBIRLBIFIEBRRBEHRGD 2B E
BT -

RANRBRE
ARARNBE=T—AF+=A=+—BILFRE

—HERZHRARITRE -
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R ARBRTLFIIMERS
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In consideration for provision of the management services to Beijing
Lianjiao Hospital, Beijing Yicheng will be entitled to the service fees
in an amount equal to 30% of the total audited revenue generated by
Beijing Lianjiao Hospital each year

The proposed annual caps for the transactions in relation to the

provision of the management services by Beijing Yicheng to Beijing
Lianjiao Hospital under the Management Agreement for the three
years ending 31 December 2018 are RMB30,000,000, RMB50,000,000

and RMB72,000,000, respectively.

On 16 May 2016, Beijing Yicheng also entered into the lease
agreement (the “Lease Agreement”) with Beijing Lianjiao Factory,
pursuant to which Beijing Lianjiao Factory agreed to lease certain
buildings and ancillary facilities with a total gross floor area of
approximately 11,087 square metres located at Yanwo Village,
Chaoyang District, Beijing (It RM#AG R ZE ) (which is formerly
known as Beijing Lianjiao Chemistry Factory Pot Station (JbRUREE L
E L)) to Beijing Yicheng for conducting medical care and health
care related business for a term of five years commencing on the next

day following the end of the Rent-free Period.

The rental under the Lease Agreement is a fixed amount of
RMB3,200,000 annually. As the rental is a fixed amount, the annual
caps under the Lease Agreement for the three years ending 31
December 2018 are RMB1,600,000, RMB3,200,000 and RMB3,200,000,
respectively.

Beijing Lianjiao Factory is indirect wholly owned by Beijing
Enterprises Group Company Limited (“Beijing Holdings”), which is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. Beijing Lianjiao Hospital
is a non-profit degree one, class one hospital, promoted by Beijing
Lianjiao Factory.

Beijing Holdings, through its non-wholly owned subsidiary, holds
approximately 15.10% interest in the Company at the time of signing
the Management Agreement and Lease Agreement. Beijing Lianjiao
Factory is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Holdings,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Management Agreement and the Lease
Agreement constitutes continuing connected transactions of the
Company. As the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) for the Management Agreement and the Lease Agreement
are in aggregate more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Management
Agreement and the Lease Agreement are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements, but are exempt from the circular and
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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On 12 October 2016, the Company received a notification from
Beijing Lianjiao Factory that it has used its best endeavours to renew
the Non-profit Medical Institution Practice Licence and Beijing
Pension Service Practice Licence (the “Licences”) without any success
and the Hospital may only be operated till first quarter of year 2017.
Given the increasing uncertainty in the renewal of the Licences, all
parties mutually agreed to enter into the Termination Agreements
so as to avoid incurring unnecessary cost. Beijing Yicheng, Beijing
Lianjiao Factory and Beijing Lianjiao Hospital entered into two
termination agreements (the “Termination Agreements”) to terminate
the Management Agreement and Lease Agreement, respectively and
release all obligations of each party to the Management Agreement
and Lease Agreement.

Financial assistance provided to connected person

28 October 2016, United Win entered into a loan facility agreement
(the "Loan Facility Agreement”) with Mr. Wang Zheng Chun (the
“Borrower”), pursuant to which, United Win has conditionally agreed
to provide a loan facility in the principal amount of HK$135,000,000
("Loan Facility”) to the Borrower for a term of twelve months
commencing from the day of drawing appearing on the first notice of
drawing given by the Borrower.

The Borrower is a Director of the Company and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Loan Facility
Agreement constitute a connected transaction for the Company.

As the Loan Facility exceeds HK$3,000,000 and the applicable
percentage ratios in respect of the grant of the Loan Facility are more
than 0.1% but less than 5%, the grant of the Loan Facility is subject
to reporting and announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Supplemental Beijing Xibu Agreement

On 18 November 2016, United Win and Mr. Zhu Gong (“Mr.
Zhu") entered into a supplemental acquisition agreement (the
“Supplemental Beijing Xibu Agreement”), pursuant to which the
parties agreed to terminate all outstanding rights and obligations
under the acquisition agreement dated 20 August 2015 and made
between United Win and Mr. Zhu (the “Beijing Xibu Agreement”)
relating to the sale and purchase of the entire issued share capital of
Beijing Xibu Commerce & Trading Co., Ltd. (the "Beijing Xibu"”) with
respect to, among others, the post-completion allotment and issue
of an aggregate of 46,585,000 Shares to be issued for the purpose
of the settlement of RMB30,800,000, being part of the consideration
under the Beijing Xibu Agreement (the “Beijing Xibu Consideration
Shares”), the profit guarantee of Beijing Xibu and the right of
first refusal of Mr. Zhu with effect from the date of signing of the
Supplemental Beijing Xibu Agreement.
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In connection with and as a result of the amendment proposed in the
Supplemental Beijing Xibu Agreement, United Win agreed to transfer
back to Mr. Zhu the Remainder Beijing Xibu Shares, representing
75.5% of the total issued share capital of Beijing Xibu.

Mr. Zhu owned 40% shareholding interest in Beijing Xibu Operating
Co, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of Beijing Xibu as at the date of
signing the Supplemental Beijing Xibu Agreement, and is therefore
a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
confirmed that the principal terms of the transactions contemplated
under the Supplemental Beijing Xibu Agreement are normal
commercial terms and such terms are fair and reasonable, and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole, the
Supplemental Beijing Xibu Agreement is only subject to reporting,
announcement and annual review requirements but is exempt from
the circular, independent financial advice and Shareholders’ approval

requirements under Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

Except for the connected transactions disclosed above, the Group
entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as “related
parties” under the applicable accounting standards. Details of the
related party transactions entered into the Group during the year are
disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. Those
transactions also constitute connected transactions of the Company
but are exempt from reporting, announcement and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2016 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of the annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, less than 30.0% of the Group’s purchase were
attributed by the Group's five largest suppliers and 44.8% of
the Group's turnover were attributed by the Group's five largest
customers and approximately 28.1% of the Group’s turnover were
attributed by the largest customer.

To the knowledge of the directors, none of the directors, their
close associates or any shareholders who owned more than 5% of
the number of issued shares had interest in any of the five largest
customers of the Group.
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Directors’ Report @ E=& W=

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates one defined benefit retirement scheme and a
Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Particulars of these retirement
schemes are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the reporting year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounted to about HK$6,814,000.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The Group did not have significant event after the balance sheet date.

On behalf of the Board

Zhu Shi Xing
Chairman

29 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

B ZH A RS

Ernst & Young RKERTEDE TSN Tel B &E: +852 2846 9888
EY 22IF, CITIC Tower HHRAPIEREE 15 Fax {5E.: +852 2868 4432
§* 1 Tim Mei Avenue h{EKE 218 ey.com
Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of
Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Beijing
Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “"Group”) set out on pages 69 to
207, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report @ By &k E

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address

EECRITAREKHENG T 47 & B KA
EHEEBLMANEE - BIEEZSTEREET
SIEMABNEE - BEM - FENFTLERBR
MITRRE AR S BRI EBRBRILE
RMRHESFREF - EERTEFRFONG
R BREHTABRETEEMATOREST -
REAMBHRREBERBETERIREER -

the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
ke

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEE2BERNMEEREERER

Goodwill impairment

BERE

In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standards
36 Impairment of Assets, the Group is required to
annually test the amount of goodwill for impairment.
This annual impairment test was significant to our audit
because the net carrying amount of goodwill allocated
to medical and geriatric care business of approximately
HK$266 million as of 31 December 2016 is material to
the consolidated financial statements. The recoverable
amount has been determined by reference to the value
in use of each relevant cash generating unit. When
assessing the recoverable amount, judgement and
estimation are involved, such as future cash flow and
discount rate.

REEFEGHENEIGREERE @ BEEEASFIED
BREZSB|ELAR - BFERENAEES 2BRY
88X REAKHE—_T—ARF+_A=+—HBOEEE
BREBZXBORMEB L RIFEN2ETAEETHES
MBREMEBEKN - JNED BN ERRSELEM
ZEREEEE - EFETRE SRR - FEFEDLHE R
et - PIIRRRERERBEEE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 17 to
the financial statements.

MRRAR R BN B S IR M A3 ]17

We used a valuation expert to assist us to evaluate the
assumptions and methodologies used by the Group
for each cash generating unit. We also focused on
the adequacy of the Group's disclosures about those
assessments to which the outcome of the impairment
test is most sensitive, that is, those that have the most
significant effect on the determination of the recoverable
amount of goodwill.
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EiEz

EF

Key audit matter
HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE2ERNMEERRERER

Valuation of contingent consideration

KA ERE

As detailed in notes 3 and 34 to the financial statements,
part of purchase considerations of acquisitions of the
Group completed during the year were regarded as
contingent consideration payables and recognised as
financial liabilities at fair value and remeasured at the
end of the reporting period.

AN 75 2 Y E 3 e AR REAL - SENFATTRH
ﬁﬁZ*Bﬁ@%/Jﬂf“i%ﬁiﬁﬁfgﬁi%1ﬂ KA A AR A
TREE  WNBEHRRENE

Determination of fair value requires management’s
judgement and estimates and is based on assumptions.
The management engaged an independent valuer to
assess the fair value of the contingent consideration
payables by using valuation technique.

BB LR R 3T IA R R - R AT AE -
IR B 2 B 1 B0 B AT R 6 T SRR B 2
AFAE -

We used a valuation expert to evaluate the assumptions
and methodologies used by the Group and independent
external valuer. We also focused on the adequacy of
the Group's disclosures about those assumptions,
that is, those that have the most significant effect
on the determination of the fair value of contingent
considerations payables.

BEEEBGHEIERFE EXEMELINBGERMAEZR
BETE - BENETR EEEEBZERIIBEES
5 BHEERNIARBZIATEFEREAYE
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Independent Auditor’'s Report @ By &k E

Key audit matter
BAREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE2ERNMNEERRERER

Valuation of investment properties

REYFIGE

The Group adopted the fair value model for their
investment properties in accordance with HKAS 40
Investment Property. Changes in fair values were
recorded in profit or loss. The Group engaged Greater
China Appraisal Limited, an independent appraiser,
to perform valuation on the investment properties of
the Group as at 31 December 2016. Both the size of
investment properties at 31 December 2016 and their
changes of fair value for the year ended 31 December
2016 were significant to the consolidated financial
statements, amounting to approximately HK$356
million and HK$3 million, respectively. In addition, since
the valuation involved management judgment and
estimates based on a projection of estimated rental
value, capitalisation rate and adjustment on market unit
price which will affect the fair value of the investment
properties, we considered it significant to our audit.

RIEBEGHERFIORKEYE X BEEERKEDE
RAAFEREN - AFEEHHAARE - BEEEREE
MAHEEEENEARARS BEEER-_T—XRF+=
H=+T—B2ZREMEETHE REVER T —RF
ToRA=T—BZRERAERATFERBE _T—RF+=
A=tT—BUEFEZEHHEEVBHRRMSHBERX -
DRKRIESTOEEBTRIAEB T © I - ARHE
BESERERESZEREMEAFEZGAEHEEER
B B R R W5 BB 2 SRR A R fhE
BEERRUBESZIEGHEEX -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3 and 15 to
the financial statements.

A B B R E A B T R MY 7E3 ] 15

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

We considered the objectivity, independence and
expertise of the external appraiser. We involved our real
estate valuation specialists to evaluate the valuation
techniques and assessed the underlying assumptions
for selected samples. We compared market rental
assumptions and capitalisation rates against actual rents
of existing leasing contracts and external prevailing
market rents, assessing the adjustments in prices of the
comparable properties with similar nature and location.
We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures on
investment properties, including valuation sensitivity and
fair value hierarchy.

EECEREIERIEMZ FEM BIUEREERKEE - 5F
BERYEHEFZRFEGEERD RFEEERNZHER
R BFCUBTHHEHEBREENULETEREFHRESH
ZEBHERINPRITHSEE - W EEE R BRI
AELBRMEZEBRAE - BFTEHEERRENE IR
BREARH  PINEESFBERAFERR

HERNFERA 2 HfE
EFAWEMENAR - R ERBRETIENF
BANER  EFEEGEEMBRENEFNZ
HENE o

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover EEHEASUBERENERAT T REEMER

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report @

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report @ Bz HwE

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Chin Hung.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—HA=1+—HIFFE

2016
Notes HK$'000
s FHET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RERERE
Revenue PN 5 163,856
Cost of sales SHE A (117,261)
Gross profit EF 46,595
Other income and gains E A A R e 5 98,052
Selling and distribution expenses $HE Ko R X (24,995)
Administrative expenses TR (189,405)
Finance costs A& A AR 7 (4,632)
Share of profits and losses of associates FEAEE D B2 m F R R (11,770)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM REBESEELZ
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BRBATER 6 (86,155)
Income tax credit/(expense) FisfiiE e, (FX) 10 (1,853)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM REFAREXB 2 FEESE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (88,008)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS SRIEREREK
Profit for the year from discontinued BRI T 2 F IS m A
operations "
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEBR (88,008)

2015
HK$'000
THET

45,489

(149,185)
(3,992)
(1,601)

(109,289)
2,364

(106,925)

46,997

(59,928)

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income @ %7 & 185 M Bt 2 H W &
Year ended 31 December 2016 # £ _—F—NF1T_A=1—HIFFZF
2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M EE TET FHET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FEER (88,008) (59,928)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hip2E(B8), Wi
(LOSS)/INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income HifHgEms Bz BamE
to be reclassified to profit or loss in fh 2 (E18),/ M
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences: MEHERR
Exchange difference on translation of BEBINEBEE BEER
foreign operations (108,055) (76,195)
Reclassification adjustments for HENLERBIINEBIEL 2
foreign operations disposed of B AR
during the year 35 (58,925)
(106,997) (135,120)
Other comprehensive income not to be HieHBB reEsmsiEzEa
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent WEMEEKE
periods:
Gain on property revaluation %%iﬁzqﬁlﬁ?& -
Income tax effect "R E -
Net other comprehensive loss to be HieHMamsrBeEn s
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 2 EEIEF 5
periods (97,891) (135,120)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FERMEEER  NKRHE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (97,891) (135,120)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FEXEERAR
FOR THE YEAR (185,899) (195,048
Loss attributable to: AT AT REGEE
Owners of the parent NCIEZZSUN (68,015) (56,480)
Non-controlling interests PR E (19,993) (3,448)
(88,008) (59,928)

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—HA=1+—HIFFE

Note
k=3

2016
HK$'000
FRTL

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

THALEEZEERER
BRAEAA
ESEI G 5o

(156,738)
(29,161)

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

Basic and diluted
- For loss for the year

- For loss from continuing operations

BRAREBERESEEA

i ERER
13

AERNEE
—HEEBREMNE

—HRERELEEEZ
BREmE

(185,899)

HK(1.09)cents
(1.09)7EAL
HK(1.09)cents
(1.09)7EAL

2015
HK$'000
TET

(185,588)
(9,460)

(195,048)

HK(1.01)cents
(1.00)
HK(1.83)cents
(1.83)78 1l

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ara AR

31 December 2016 —E—~ NF+=H=+—H

Notes
s

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE REE 14
Investment properties WA 15
Prepaid land lease payments Taf i e 16
Goodwill kS 17
Other intangible assets Hih L& E 18
Investments in associates REFE R B ZIRE 19
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 20
Prepayments TR 23
Due from a related company ey — Rl & A Bl F0R 40
Total non-current assets FMBEERE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 21
Trade receivables FE U E 5 AR R 22
Prepayments, deposits and other AR - e R HEAMER

receivables AR 23
Due from related parties JE L B8 3E 75 ;OB 40
Financial assets at fair value through BRBHEARFEYEZ S

profit or loss MEE 25
Pledged deposits BERRER 26
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEED 26
Total current assets MEEEAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables JERTE SRR 27
Other payables and accruals ﬁﬁﬂfgﬁﬁ%\&ﬁ‘:‘f%ﬁﬁ 28
Interest-bearing bank and other FHEIRIT REALER

borrowings 29
Tax payable FERT ALK
Total current liabilities mEBERE
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERARBAE

LIABILITIES

2016
—RF
HK$’000
FTExT

235,815
356,498
1,303,008
265,659
LA )
149,191
11,295

2,335,662

7,981
12,013

240,255
247,887

134,687

21,900
298,204

10,007
188,606

76,634
2,314

277,561

3,021,028

2015

—E—hF

HK$'000
THET

97,290
338,744
1,285,332
156,104

111,948

21,288
141,771
248,900

2,401,377

139,099
8,611

47,996

628,952

824,658

88,854

55,768
270

144,892

679,766

3,081,143
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position @ 42 & Bk 2

31 December 2016 —E—NF+=H=+—H

2016 2015
—E—XRF —T—hEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET THT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERREBAES
LIABILITIES 3,021,028 3,081,143
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEHERE 30 201,284 212,764
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITER 29 106,201 71,616
Other payables H At E AT AR R 28 12,077 -
Total non-current liabilities ERB B ERE 319,562 284,380
Net assets BEFE 2,701,466 2,796,763
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to the owners of the BRARIER AR ER
parent
Share capital B& X 31 1,234,578 1,248,527
Reserves = 33 1,329,827 1,462,846
2,564,405 2,711,373
Non-controlling interests JEIERR IS 137,061 85,390
Total equity HEREZS 2,701,466 2,796,763
Zhu Shi Xing Gu Shan Chao
AL E EEE#
Director Director
E3 EF

EEEFEFEXERERAT —2—AFFHR 73
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Year ended 31 December 2016 EZ =%

—ANFTZA=1—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARAEEARR
Shares held  Equity-ettled
Share forthe  share-based Exchange Non-
Share  premium  shareaward  payment  Merger  fluctuation  Accumulated controlling Total
capitll  account  scheme  reseve  resene  resene losses Total  inferests equity
B HRbA
R ERGR
ke ROEEE  HEHED W aNER EXREER  HiER & FeRER  Ral
Notes  HKFOO0  HKSO0  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS0O0  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'00
it TR TR Thn Thn Thn Thn TR TR TR TR
(note 31) (ote3d  (note3)  (noted3)
(H31) (han) W) ()
At 1 January 2015 ME-RE-F-A 906,180 1030370 - 4691 800 N8 Q829 17350 0071193260
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - - (56,480) (56,480) (3,448 (59928)
Other comprehensive loss for ERApRESE:
the year:
Bxchange differences on: EfzE:
Translation of foreign BERNER
operations - - - - - (70,183) - (70,183 (6012 (76,195
Reclassification adjustments FABRZEENELA
for gain on disposal of B BRI ERR
subsidlaries included in
profit or loss - - - - - (56.925) - (58929) - (58929)
Total comprehensive loss for the year £ 2 AFELE - - - - - 19008 (56480 (185,588) 0460 (195048)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHEBR 3% - - - - - - - - wTE 0972
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wﬁﬁ% U 21,660 78,831 - - - - - 106,491 91,13 197,626
Capital contribution from non- HIRRETE
controling shereholders - - - - - - - - 429 4269
lssue of shares upon placing REREARH 3 W80 851476 - - - - - W - W
Issue of consideration shares BARERR 3 2,087 56,816 - - - - - 77,903 - 7903
Equity-settled share-based payment  FEEEE R A
arrangements HEMFR R - - - 2 - - - 9N - 0N
lssue of sheres upon exercise of share {7 BRER AR
options k] 800 5139 - [2123) - - - 3816 - 3816
Shares purchased for the share award  317R() £EI5 SR E MR
scheme b - - (1,257) - - - - (1,257) - (1,257)
At 31 December 2015 AZE-RETZAZT-A 1248521 182263 (1,257 44780 800¢ (69360 (3347299 2711313 8HI0 279,763
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity e & #EmEEI*x

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—HA=1+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BOREEARE
Shares held ~ Equity-settled
Share forthe  share-based Exchange Asset Non-
Share premium  share award payment Merger  fluctuation  revaluation Capital ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital account scheme reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Totl  interests equity

kg
HEHER PUNE]
iHhsE  ERAR
Ba  ROEEE N B GMEE EIRBEE EEEMRE  EABE  ZiEE &t FEREE  RESY
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iFd Tén Tin Tin Tin Tn Tn Tin Tén TEL TEn Thn Thn
(note 31) (note 33) (note 32) (note 33) (note 33)
(1) (W) (K3) (Ra%) (%)

Aty 6 RZE-7F
-A-8 1.248521 1,822,632 (1,257) 44,780 69,380) (334729) 211,313 85390 2796763
Loss for the year EEER = - - - (68,015) (68,015) (19.993) (88,008)
Other comprehensive  EEE{2E
income/[loss) Wit/ (k)
for the year:
Bichange EizE:
differences on:
Translation BERNER
of foreign
operations (98,887) (98,887) (9,168 (108,055)
Reclassfication HERTE
adjustments for BRI
foreignoperations 2B AR
disposed of i
during the year
Revaluation surplus of T REFZER
lendendbuldings, 2% MEHE
net of tax

Total comprehensiie ~ £E2ENE/
income/(loss) (BE) £8
forthe year (97,829) 68,015) (156,738) (29,161) (185,899)

Deemed partial disposal B/EFAEE—FE
ofinterests ina e ER
subsiciary (1,117) (1.117)

Disposal of asubsidiary (E-TWERE 35 . ’

Acguisiton of YEREAT
subsidiares ki g

Capital contribution ~ FHERERTE
of non-controlling
shareholders

Equitpsetfedshare-  REEZNRRE
based payment BRHTRE
arrangements 2

Release of awarded B RGZEEHE
shares under the ET 2 £RIKD
share anard scheme 2 (1,257)

Transfer of share option REREWRUE
reseve upon the ERRER
forfeiture or expiry of ~ ERERS
share options = =

Shares repurchased ~ KHEE 3 (16974)  (22,881)

(3,966)

(39,855) (39,855)

3 December 016 R-E-AE
t2R=1- 1,234,578 1,805,149* B 81,876 800 (167,209)* LI (M7 (398,778 2,564,405 137,061 2,701,466

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * FEBEEAREEAMBERIEZEE

=) o=
HK$1,329,827,000 (2015: HK$1,462,846,000) in the consolidated N G — =
statement of financial position. H A f#151,329,827,0008 L (=F —

F 1 1,462,846,0008 7T ) °

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2016 EZ =%

—ANFTZA=1—HIEFE

Notes
s
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZHFBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax: MR AR S
From continuing operations REFELEET
From discontinued operations REBRIEE XS
Adjustments for: AT BIBIEHFE
Finance costs PN 7
Share of profits and losses of associates ~ [E{HEEE AR 2
i A K 18
Interest income MEMKA 5
Amortisation of other intangible assets o 18 e o
Amortisation of prepaid land TS £ 3t 70 & B 4K
lease payments 6
Depreciation e
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE R
plant and equipment BRHIER 2 EiE 5
Changes in fair value of investment REMEZ NV EZE
properties 5,15
Gain on bargain purchase of subsidiaries  ZEBUW BB A7) 2 Wt 5
Impairment loss BB E 18 6
Equity-settled share-based payment 1% 8 45 B LA R 1 A L
expense 1"JL/TAF?'ﬂ§ 32
Fair value gain on financial assets FEBERANTFEIIERZ
at fair value through profit or loss irﬂﬁﬁz ANl 5
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBARZER,
(ezs) 5,35
Gain on deemed disposed of a partial BERER BB AT
interest in an associate SR AR > s 5
Fair value adjustment of contingent FARB 2 AT EAE
consideration 5,34
Dividend income SHA 5
Handling fee income from a loan to T“T‘T HLEENERZ
director FEE
Gain on remeasurement of the B ERN —MEEE AT
previously existing interest in an J?Ffr%—rﬂxﬁézuﬂlﬁn
associate 5,34
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD, ()

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase in properties under development

Decrease in properties held for sale

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables and

accruals

Effect of foreign exchange rate

changes, net

FEWE B BRFUR D,/ (38 h0)
BNRE - e REMEK

KR, (i)
Lk E S il
RELEMERD

RN E S ERFIE M, O )

E@EH%@%&&J@%%%
i"iJD/ ey
e = @U%%@%ﬁ

Cash used in operations

PRC corporate income tax paid
Land appreciation tax paid

REFTRRE
BN BEERAEH
Eff g ER

Net cash flows used in operating activities

KREEBFARSRESFR

2016
—~E
HK$'000
TR

(86,155)

4,632
11,770
(18,118)

281

26,212
7,795

1,847
(3,285)
3,28;
41,062
(49,160)

8,225

(431)

(15,047)
(1,853)

(1,200)

(2,495)

(72,639)

(15,434)
(11,047)

(1,198)

(2,474)
9,808

1,303

(91,681)
(1,879)

(CERT-10)]

2015

—FT—RF

HK$'000
TAT

(109,289)
64,813
3,992

1,601
(26,740)
56

16,016
5,589

11
(841)
(253)

42,212
(4,906)

(69,797)

(77,536)

1,552
4,509

21,990
(111,843)
93,848
77,200

(125,12¢6)

(115,406)
(3,319)
(1,135

(119,860)
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—HA=1+—HIFFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Purchase of items of property, plant and
equipment

Additions to investment properties

Additions to prepaid land lease payments

Additions to intangible assets

Compensation received from government
for the resumption of land and relocation
of production facilities

Disposal of subsidiaries

Consideration deposits received

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Prepayment for acquisition of a company

Investments in associates

Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Advances of loans to third parties

Increase in non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of over three months
when acquired

Increase in pledged bank deposits

Dividend received

Loan to a director

REFHABRERE

EYFE
BEYME  BFEMREER

NEWREY R

N LA N
NEEVEE

Yem 430 BB A EE R 2
BT Bh

HER B A A
BIRREZRS
RIEHB A =

Wk BE — R =2 FE N ROE
N N e

BB 1R B 18 5 LA A (B E
ZeRAE

W BIE A T ESIE
2 S RAE 2 FEHE
M2 = B B

RG24 B B =1E
A 2 R SR R
A7 R
EAERIR 137 AR D
BRI RS

BT auE 2 EHR

Net cash flows used in investing activities

BRETBARSREFR

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Issue of shares upon exercise of share
options

Issue of shares upon placing

Purchase of shares held under the share
award scheme

Purchase of shares for cancellation

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders

New bank loans

Repayments of bank loans

Repayments of loans from related
companies

Interest paid

MEFBHAERERE
TR B RER TR

B B B B TR
BRI BB
254

BE R 5
SEE R ST A

FARITE

EEBTER \

BiEkAMEA Rz ER

ENFE

2016
—E—RE
Notes HK$'000
ihg=s FET
16,141
(105,479)
16 -
18 (541)
35 158,708
28 36,891
34 (76,605)
(64,342)
(64,683)
5,118
(73,014)
(21,900)
1,853
(133,800)
(321,653)
31
31
32 -
31 (39,855)

2,892
113,276
(49,156)

(4,635)

Net cash flow from financing activities

BMEIZBAERDR

ti
¥
i

2015
—FT—RF
HK$'000
BT

15,081

(13,678)
(3,271)
(397,154)

12,636
329,799

(569,116)
(133,001)
(17,904)
(43,297)
207
(88,316)

(7,162)

(915,176)

3,816
944,276

(1,257)
4,269
35,808
(75,465)

(378,330)
(24,130)

508,987

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows e &2 e@nER

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

year

Cash and cash equivalents attributable
to assets classified as held for sale at

beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,

net

RERREEENRD FH
FREMREEFEY

FVDBRAREREZEE
RiE2REMREEEY

I B P

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR

FREATRRESEEY

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Principal protected structure deposits

RERREEEMSEHRIN

& RIRITHE R
TEHITE IR
RAGEBET R

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial

position

Non-pledged time deposits and principal
protected structure deposits with
original maturity of over three months

when acquired

RAaUBRARMA RS
kReEHEY

REVSE REH B 88 = A
Az EBERERERE
RAEBIETF

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

ReBReRERMTZAS
MIReEEY

2016
A
HK$000
FHET
(392,688)

621,790

(11,074)

218,028

121,543
146,478
30,183

298,204

(80,176)

218,028

2015
—EF—RF
HK$'000
FHT

(526,049)

1,093,476

51,763

2,600

621,790

42,483
489,441
97,028

628,952

(7,162)

621,790
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Notes to Financial Statements

A H5 R R P

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited
(the "Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 26 April 2002. The registered office of the
Company is located at Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drives, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman, British West Indies.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) were involved in provision of
medical care, health care and geriatric care related services and
products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

In the opinion of the directors, the major shareholder of the
Company is Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (“BPHL"),
which was incorporated in Bermuda, ultimately held by Beijing
Enterprises Group Company Limited and the shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z =%

follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Issued ordinary/

—AEFZASF—ALEE

A" REEER
IEEERREXSERARA (f$’&
TJ)F:EAEﬁXﬁ%TH}ﬁXiZﬁﬁE
Eﬁﬂ’ﬁﬁ TE-FMA= +/\EI£E§

BERSMBRAR (TR ER
Lm o ARA &z MBS BE AL Century
Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drives,
P.O.Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman, British
West Indies °

FA - ARERENBRR(FHE A%
@J)EQE%J%}\E%%D(FEPIJ)%#EQ
B REREZRERERESR -

EERR ARAX2RRA/ILERGE
BOBER AR (TIEREZER]) - L FERRN
BREZMAY  AitREREEFRA
BRRFE - EROVBRMER LT

FRMBARZER

RRRZ EEWMBRARFHENT

Percentage of

registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
EMEL/ BRTEER/
£% AR E B R FRAEEREASL TEER
Direct Indirect
B ik
United Win International Corporation® British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$100 100% - Investment holding
("United Win")? Hong Kong EREII100ET REER
RERUEE/EE
T RRKEBRE R ABR DA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100%  Investment management
(Beijing Zhong Cheng Hu Lian hE/HE R RMB30,000,000 consulting
Investment Advisory Co., Ltd.*)® HRERARE BEEEELN
30,000,0007T
TEMEREERERRA PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
(Shanghai Chongyuan Investment hE/RE N RMB50,000,000 HE R
Management Company Limited*, FMERARK
"Shanghai Chongyuan")® 50,000,0007T
RN TIEXNREREERRC PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 70%  Property investment
(Beijing Dragon Ground Arts & Crafts /T E R RMB90,000,000 MERE
Limited*, "Dragon Ground")®" AMERARE
90,000,0007C

IRRRRBELEEERAT —R—AFEH
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 s®& M

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Issued ordinary/

AAREEER (F)
TRNEARZER (&)
ARARZEEMBRABFENT : (&)

Percentage of

registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
EMEL/ BRTEER/
£ afRE R R FRAEEREASL TEER
Direct Indirect
BE ik
AR EREEZREER AT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 50.30%  Home-based geriatric care
(Golden Sun (Beijing) Service mE/RE R RMB 10,000,000 BREE
Co., Ltd*)® EMERARE
10,000,0007T
LEREaERERAR( LEkR ) PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 100%  Medical and related
(Shanghai Junbo Textile Co., Ltd.*, hE /R R RMB30,000,000 property development
“Shanghai Junbo")®" AMERARE EERIEENELRE
30,000,0007T
EREEREMRERAR([EE ) PRC/Mainland China ~ Registered capital - 8224%  Medical and related
(Beijing Inland Port International hE/HE R RMB199,095,322 property development
Logistics Co., Ltd.*, "Lugang")® AMERARE EENAENELE
199,095,3227C
EREREBREDRERAT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 82.24%  Medical and related
(Beijing Beijian Inland Port International ~ #El, /R E N RMB124,000,000 property development
Logistics Co., Ltd.*)®" HMERARY BELEWNELR
124,000,0007T
T RBERBRERBERE AR PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 60%  Trading geriatric related
(Beijing Weisen Prosperity Furniture /T E R RMB50,000,000 furniture
Limited*)®" FERARE EER£5A
50,000,0007T
IRREEERAFRAT PRC/Mainland China Registered capital - 60%  Trading geriatric related
(Beijing Kangai Geriatric Furniture hE /BB RMB20,000,000 furniture
Co., Ltd. %)’ FERARE EERZZRA
20,000,0007C
BREBROABRERZRNERAT PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital - 51%  Home-based geriatric care
(rexB e RE/ BN RMB42,857,143 EREE

(Fujian Fu Ling Golden Sun Health
and Geriatric Company Limited*,
"Golden Sun")®"

AfERARE
42,857,143

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Issued ordinary/

registration registered
Name and business share capital

B ave BRTZER/
£ SRR EED R A

DA REEEH (FE)
BRNBARZER (H)
ARARZEEMBRABFENT : (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company Principal activities

FAFRGREES L TEXR

Direct
Bk

Indirect

523

TRREBBEREAERAR([RERE]®  PRC/Mainland China Registered capital

(Beijing Top-Doctors Technology B/ Bl RMB15,385,000
Company Limited*., “Top-Doctors")®" FMERARE
15,385,0007T
L Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of
the Ernst & Young global network
L Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law
" Registered as limited liability companies under PRC law
& Registered as a Sino-foreign joint venture under PRC law
* The English names of the above companies represent the best efforts

by management of the Company in directly translating the Chinese
names of these companies as no English names have been registered

or available.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

65%  On-line medical services

R LERER%

AEBEBLRKALKRRPE S —KERA
Ex

REFBEEEZEMAIEBELE
REFBEEEEMABRAF
REFBEEEMATIEEDLE

AFMRXEBIARNERERBA
ARSATLPREBARDE  BE
SN

i
57
REER R EZMRATGHREH -

ERIHEBEERREIEFEAREAFE
%ﬁ KAKREEFEERFDZAR Tﬁﬁ

AE - EEZRA - MIHEMAKER

Zéi‘lﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬂﬁéﬂﬁ <

IRBRRBELEEERAT —®—

NEFR
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 &M+

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.1

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and contingent consideration payables, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.1

R
ZEVBHRRDREELGAMAG([EF
AEFEAE ) BEMANE BB HELER
(IFEHBREEA D (ERTRBERE
FEMBHREER  BAGTEU(ER
SRR kRE) FERRERAIR
FEERAHRPIZBERERY - ZFWH
BREREBELKANERER - HEEAF
EfENRENE  BEBARUARFED
FZEMEENMEIABMERI - ZF
MBmERABIT(DETZY - MkkmE
EEASH - TEBEDRHBEREIN T
81 e

REEE
HEMBHRBEARERENE QA
EZTE-ARETZ A=+ —HIEFENH
BHRK - B R R /AR R EENFEEE
HOER(BEEELEER) - 2AEER
SHEBEHRNERBM A B EESAE
Bl - WHENBRBHREHRHEN (A
BT AEEE A TEREHRBBEXEBLH
EENMBRARMN) FEZFLEHE - MRS
BEAEIRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 38

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
(2011) Financial Statements

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)
Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS
28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS 11, HKFRS 14, amendments
to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, amendments to HKAS 27 (2011), and
certain amendments included in the Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of
the Group's financial statements, the nature and the impact of
the amendments is are described below:

(@ Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation and
disclosure in financial statements. The amendments
clarify:

(i)  the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i) that specific line items in profit or loss and
the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which
they present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method must be presented in aggregate
as a single line item, and classified between
those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in
the statement of financial position and profit or loss.
The amendments have had no significant impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle
in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern
of economic benefits that are generated from operating
a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the
economic benefits that are consumed through the use of
the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot
be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment
and may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are applied
prospectively. The amendments have had no impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group as
the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the
calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle issued
in October 2014 sets out amendments to a number of
HKFRSs. Details of the amendments are as follows:

J HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations: Clarifies that changes
to a plan of sale or a plan of distribution to owners
should not be considered to be a new plan of
disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. Accordingly, there is no change in the
application of the requirements in HKFRS 5. The
amendments also clarify that changing the disposal
method does not change the date of classification
of the non-current assets or disposal group held for
sale. The amendments are applied prospectively.
The amendments have had no impact on the Group
as the Group did not have any disposal group held
for sale during the year.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Anuual Improvements
2014-2016 cycle

Classification and
Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transatcion?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases?®

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses’

Amendments to HKFRS 12
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities’

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards?

Amendments to HKAS 28
Investments in associates
and Joint Ventures?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

a Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in August 2016
that address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions
on the measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction; the classification of a share-based payment
transaction with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation
associated with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-
based payment transaction changes its classification from
cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments clarify that
the approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its
entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the result that it
becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction,
the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction
from the date of the modification. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements
for classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1
January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
standard.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.3

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
application now.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and
key judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 15
to address the implement issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent
and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
amendments are also intended to help ensure a more consistent
application when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the
cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for
lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At
the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and
an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-
use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses unless the right-of-
use asset meets the definition of investment property in HKAS
40.The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect
the interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease
payments. Lessees will be required to separately recognise
the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments will result in additional disclosure to be provided
in the financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.3

2.4.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured at
fair value, although they also have a broader application for
other situations. The amendments clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available against
which it can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs
to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable
profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal
of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets
for more than their carrying amount. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments from 1 January 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.
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2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group's
investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint
venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

2.4, FESHHEHE ()

RBEARAREEREZRE (M)
AEBERGEEBERREMEEKED BIF
AHBEBERRRAECENBRES
&E@EEWA°%%'*E&$WwE

T A“ﬁ%ZEmﬁ“EM'W$E

REERBPRERELER 2 EEE
E $¢lﬁﬁﬁ%@T&A%ﬁ¥Zx
HEEZRERBESHE - HESEMU
AEFBHBERRNAELCEZRER
R - BRIFRERBEEERREBEED
HREE - WEBERRAREELEEEY
HBRMARTEBERBERR R EE
EREZ 87 -

MR 2 ARNIREZERNEELENR
BHBRBERER - AT SEFHAERE
B R RREEEBERBEZZEA
fR - EFAEMIBAT  HBERRKRE
EARENSIHAEERREHARIESR
& - REBRE X VEFE MERERRF
BRE - MREERTENIHAREFE
fENRHALERNREEEREARE
ERREHEMBRAZAFEZENER
RIS AR o

ARBERRHEELEZRED AR
& RIRBEE B U REERIESHAF
IEHEZ B EERSLIELEEBFN
BE o

ItERBREEFEXEBERAR —B—AFFR

P



92

Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 &M+

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 &M+

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 &M+

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and locations for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of lease term
and their estimated useful lives
ranging from 20 to 50 years

20% to 33'/3%

20% to 33'/3%

20%

20% to 33'/3%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

24, TESHBRME(E)

W BERRBURTE (&)

WE - WE KRR (BEEATIRTER
MERED )N HEXBHERRLEGH
BN EEERREHEFRE L LR
RERIEREEFEERRERNHES
REEENRANEE  REEFREE
S FIRF R R H AR EM & R Z58 ©

ERTIREEZTNET  BRANREM
MEBEIE  BEATHE - KAREHE
22 HA 5 Y B A SR AR I Tt A B i R A
RERNBRRA - EETRENERKLA
HERBSEROBER/EERNNYE - K
B R&

REME
REMEDFHERDRES KA R, HIEE
ABEZ T HWEBTREE(BREAETE
RENMEERIYEREHEOT 2 HER
=) MIEANEERREE KRS © X
FEREITHAR  AFERERHTZH
& - ZEMENRRRAEFE(BERS
) RANIGHER IR - REME AR
HRERRTRZ A FEAL -

BRENERAFEEPEL ZBaENEESE

FEZEHEHAR -

REBEMERESL L EMELE 2 EM 8
RmEIHEFE 2 BENFER -



Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up
to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy
stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above. For a transfer from inventories to investment properties,
any difference between the fair value of the property at that
date and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or
loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives
are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Brand name

Brand name acquired as part of a business combination is
valued at fair value based on the royalty relief method. Brand
name with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment
annually.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z =%

2.4.
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—AEFZA=F—ALFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate
future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the
Group under operating leases are included in non-current
assets, and rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4, FESTTHERME(E)

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs in
profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 &M+

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in profit or
loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in administrative expenses for
receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss in other income, or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other gains and losses.
Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in profit or
loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out for
"Revenue recognition” below.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to
sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in
equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference
between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to
be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified
to profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 &M+

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 &M+

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to administrative expenses in profit or
loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the
investment and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair
value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence
of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4, FESTTEHEME(E)

(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

from the sale of completed properties, when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to the purchasers, that is when
the construction of the relevant properties has been
completed and the properties have been delivered to
the purchasers pursuant to the sales agreements, and the
collectability of related receivables is reasonably assured;

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

from the rendering of services, when the services are
rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over lease
terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial assets; and

dividend income, when the shareholders' right to receive
payment has been established.

2.4.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates several share option schemes and a
share award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors) and
consultants of the Group receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees and consultants
render services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model for share options and based on the
market value for share award. Further details of the fair values of
share options and awarded shares granted are given in note 32
to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
equity-settled share-based payment expenses together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Shares held for share award scheme

As disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, pursuant
to a trust deed dated 11 September 2015 made between the
Company and a trustee (the “Trust Deed”), a trust has been
established for the share award scheme, where the trustee
purchases and holds shares issued by the Group for the benefits
of the grantees in accordance with the rules of the share award
scheme and the terms and conditions of the Trust Deed.
The consideration paid by Company, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as “Shares held
for the share award scheme” and deducted from the Group's

equity.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. This
subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentages of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.4.

FTESHBRERME(H)

Hiufg 2 &7

Bk E 2]
AEBERBRHERTESH G AER
BERIEBRHERRSELERRIER
ArEl([aEestEl]) - HRVREEER
FemXBAoLEE  XRBERESE
BR AR IR R - RIESA S
BERASHEESRFN BB ERE
MESHRE - ARE—KRRED A EIH
R BEREIHKENZBHEEME

AEERTEARELENMNBLRNESR
A2 EMT MHRAERN P RRAEF
| o ZHIBABREEFMRANETH
DA SRR KRS BIHR - HRRRIE
RRRKREE B R AN RB R -

NN

L3

(EENDZN

WiE BERAEESEREE(ABAK
BARE KSR JT A ERE FiG s ] &
MEE) EEBENEBRKASIERZST
BERAHN—#oMTURERE - EEE
BEE FriERiE Mgkl HilE - ARAE
RRATBERE - FEERBFARE
B A ER X HREGRRRERRIROKRE
WA aREERCMERRARNE
FT B E b £ A AN 35 10 B 2= A B3 51 1
X ERKABRERREABEMEL
B S R E AR



Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

2.4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of certain subsidiaries and associates
operating in Mainland China is the currency other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the
year.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries operating in Mainland China
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of subsidiaries operating in Mainland China which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rate for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2016 was
HK$265,659,000 (2015: HK$156,104,000). Further details are
given in note 17 to the financial statements.
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ZHE -HER=_ZT—A"EF+=A=1+—
A 2 BRI {E A& 265,659,000/8 T (— T —H
F 1 156,104,000 70 ) © #—FFBEHN
MISSRARMIEE17 -
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 &M+

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices; and

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms of
any existing lease and other contracts and (when possible)
by external evidence such as current market rents for
similar properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing
of the cash flows.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2016 was HK$356,498,000 (2015: HK$338,744,000). Further
details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement, are given in note 15 to the financial statements.

Estimation of contingent consideration payables

Part of purchase considerations of acquisitions of the Group
were regarded as contingent consideration payables and
recognised as financial liabilities at fair value and remeasured
at the end of the reporting period. Determination of fair
value requires management’s judgement and estimates
and is based on assumptions. The carrying amount of
contingent consideration payables at 31 December 2016 was
HK$17,619,000 (2015: Nil). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement, are given in notes
34 and 42 to the financial statements.
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BHER)

b) TEEREEMENHEMAIEHEEY
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(€ REBERRRSREBMIERSEMEE
AR EREIRIREIRE - 1th TR A
ERERA L R E A& 4 H 5RFUA
R (FERAIATIE R T ) SRR 4% (An 3 B
MACRERONBEUMERE T HHE
B)RERE  UHRAIRREBARS
METBRLEEAHBAEREZRERN
B ERREIE X o

BEMERZT—AF+_A=+—80H
BR {8 4 356,498,0008 L (—E— R F
338,744,00057T) - E—FFBE(BEATF
B EFMEANEZRR) RIS RERME
15455 o

1EaT T B R CE

REBETHRE 2 BHOIARERR A
ERSARE  UHERARAFEFEZ
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AR R AT AR ERBR - LAE
EAFE - BRNIKAREBER=ZZT—F
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax
losses at 31 December 2016 was approximately HK$315,579,000
(2015: HK$167,066,000). Further details are contained in note 30
to the financial statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available for sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the
fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the
decline in value to determine whether there is an impairment
that should be recognised in profit or loss. At 31 December
2016, no impairment losses have been recognised for available-
for-sale assets (2015: Nil). The carrying amount of available-for-
sale assets was HK$11,295,000 (2015: HK$21,288,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has one single operating
and reportable segment from continuing operations, which is
the provision of medical care, health care and geriatric care
related services and products. All of the Group's operating
results from the continuing operations are generated from this
single segment. During the year, the Group’s non-current assets
were substantially located in Mainland China.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue of
HK$46,043,000 was derived from sales of goods to a single
customer, while in 2015, there was no revenue from continuing
operations.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

B RS R A E ()

fhaT B R M ()

EEFIHEE

FERAB A BE 7 B 4R B A B 1) B R4 1 /&S
BRREN - BRAERFBOTHBEER
BHRELHBEE - EREEHEEERK
=AY FI) B PRl 51 2R 28 FE AR B R B AR A B
MAMSEE &6 RRNTHEZIREE - DUR
ERERNECHBEEENESTE - RZT
—RNE+ZA=+—8  KERHB
B8 49/5315,579,000 L ( —F — R 4 ¢
167,066,000/ 7T ) ° 515 & 74 B 75 2= T
5130 °

IR ESHEERE

AEEBETEES B A EEETHER
HESZATFEZS - ERFETRE &
EEHEETREEELRSE  UET
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+ZA=+—8 HMERUHRHEEEER
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BEZREEA11,2950008T(—2—H
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REDHEY

REEMES  AEEE -BARKALEER
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 8BSz M

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after

allowances for returns and trade discounts; and the value of

WA~ Efl A K Wi

WAEE AR RERERE SR
EELERZERFEMREREREZE

FEGEEBZBA - Bl ARKEZ

services rendered during the year. He
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing
operations is as follows: DT :
2016
—EB-RE
Notes HK$'000
LiEss THET
Revenue &
Sales of goods HEEM
Rendering of services RS
Other income Hiplg A

Bank interest income
Other interest income

RITHS WA
HoAth 1) S A

4,644
13,474

Gross rental income HaALE 16,122
Dividend income A% B U A 1,853
Sundry income HIEUA 2,983
Gains/(losses) W (EBR)
Fair value gains on financial assets at B RBHUAFETEZ

fair value through SREE AT EWE

profit or loss
Fair value gains on investment REWE 2 N THERE

properties, net FEE 15
Fair value gains on financial liabilities, @@EEZAFERE

net HE 34
(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBRE 2

(E18), /W 35

Gain on bargain purchase HEES K= 34
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BE N RE

plant and equipment BB 7 EE
Gain on remeasurement of the B ER—HEBE QA

previously existing interest in TR P FE AR e 2 Wi e

an associate 34

Gain on deemed disposal of a partial
interest in an associate

BIELER — R Z QA
AN Sl

98,052

2015
—ET—hF
HK$'000
FAT

15,042
11,187
5,800

595

32,624

4,906

841

45,489
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 817 & M+

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX 6.
The Group's loss before tax from continuing operations is
arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BRBLATE R
AEBEREFBELERB ZBHABRD
ks (GEA) TFIEIE

2016 2015
—EB-AF “T—I%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FET FHET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERAR 110,947 -
Cost of services provided MRS AL A 6,314 -
Depreciation wE 14 7,795 4,133
Amortisation of other intangible assets E b /2 & &= & 85 18 281 -
Minimum lease payments under KEHEERE THE
operating leases HER® 7,745 2,059
Amortisation of land lease payments T8+ b 70 & & 16 39,192 16,016
Less: Amount capitalised e =N k| (12,980) -
16,016
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ERRT B & 1,400
Employee benefit expense (excluding [EERBFIFZ(TBIEES
directors'and chief executive's REFZITHAEMNE
remuneration (note 8)): GEZDE
Wages and salaries IERHFHS 33,868 16,912
Equity-settled share-based IHE G HUARR D B
payment expense HET AR 52 3,684 1,372
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFEIHER
(defined contribution scheme)* (R RErE)* 3,791 1,367
19,651
Equity-settled share-based payment BRI RGN BELEE
expense for consultancy services LARSAD BB R 23,534
Foreign exchange differences, net M X Z R FH

22,035
H A Y R IRRE > _

Impairment of other receivables**

RZEBE-—ARF+ZA=+—B AEELE
B2 U AR D BR R E AR RS
EHER(=T—0F : E) -

At 31 December 2016, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the pension scheme in future
years (2015: Nil).

ZHEBFAGERaEMCEARERZ
[MTEFx%] -

This item is included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

IEBREFEXEBERAR —B—AFFH® 123



Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sk& M

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®ERE
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as BEKEER ZBEXRAIITAT :
follows:
2016 2015
—E—XF T -NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMERZFE 4,632
Less: Interest capitalised B BEARMEFE (640)
3,992
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION 8. EERFETHAEMS
Directors’ and the chief executive’s remuneration for the AEERXEECHERERBHAR S
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of BRARES EWAA ETWRRLD B
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the A EEAIZE383(1)(a) ~ (b) * (o) R
“Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong AR AT (BB ST E R R OIFE 285K
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BT
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT AT
Fees e 1,642
Other emoluments: Hu< :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYETR 3,038
Performance related bonuses FIRMABEEA 4,791
Equity-settled share option expense e i R AR A B =2 17,306
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIH R 102
25,237
35,056 26,879
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 817 & M+

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
(continued)

During the year and in prior years, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the Group,
under the share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 32 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

8. EERFETHAEM=(E)

REANBEFE  ETESREBRE
SRR TRERE  RERRERHERS
TAKE  E-FHBHRRPHRRME
RN-ZERBEBEZATE(REEHER
=R ) IR R B EIEE - MBS mR
HORFESREIALREER T EITK
AEME 2 KEE -

(@) BUKHBFES
ENRBIERTESINZHS
m -

Equity-settled
share-based

payment Total
Fees expense remuneration
REEHE
N5 R E
ik N E3 W& &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FTET

2016 —E-RE

Independent non-executive directors: B FHITES :

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou SRIEE A0
Mr. Wu Yong Xin Rk E
Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith WX R E
Mr. Xie Ming ™ AW
Mr. Gary Zhao izl
2015 —E-RfF

Independent non-executive directors: BIFHTES :

Mr. Zhang Yun Zhou RBRE LA 83 - 83
Mr. Wu Yong Xin RoKFRAE 132 298 430
Mr. Tse, Man Kit, Keith B 132 298 430
Mr. Xie Ming ™ Bl Rt 132 298 430

479 894 1,373
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 8BSz M

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION 8. ESERFETHAEME (&)
(continued)

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director and (b) BTEER—BIIFHTESUARE
the chief executive ETHAER
Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances  Performance  share-based Pension
and benefits related payment scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration
hELE
e 2RR REEE  URGAER B

e BNEAN A BEEF3 #3% HWedst

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TAL TEL TAL TAL

2016 ZB-RF
Executive directors: yrEs:
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun TEERED
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming © RRAF AN
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing MBS A
Mr. Gu Shan Chao BERLE
Mr. Liu Xue Heng ! ElEp el
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong il

Mr. Hu Shiang Chi i ol

1,080 3,924 4,527 22,343 217 32,091

Non-executive director: FunEs:
Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp FE{rE2% 4" 180 - - 909 1,089
80 - - 909

1 1,089

1,260 3,924 4,527 23,252 217 33,180

2015 —Z-1f

Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun " TEERHD 144 - - 2,984 - 3128
Mr. Xu Guang Yu @ BREFILED 12 - - - - 12
Mr. Zhang Jing Ming 19 RS AN 180 - - 1492 - 1672
Mr. Zhu Shi Xing T B % A 180 1134 1,597 2984 100 5,995
Mr. Gu Shan Chao EERTE 144 910 1,597 2,984 - 5,635
Mr. Liu Xue Heng ! Y EfEgam 144 936 1,597 2984 - 5,661
Mr. Hu Xiao Yong HEELE 144 - - 1492 - 1,636
Mr. Dong Qi @ EHELN 12 58 - - 2 72
Mr. Hu Shiang Chi 0 ikl 90 - - 746 - 836
1,050 3,038 4791 15,666 102 24647

Non-executive director: FHTES:

Mr. Robert Winslow Koepp Rt &4 13 - - 746 - 859
"3 - - 746 - 859
1,163 3,038 4,791 16,412 102 25,506
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 817 & M+

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION
(continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

Notes:
(i) Appointed on 18 May 2015
(ii) Resigned on 6 February 2015

(i) Appointed on 23 September 2014 and elected as the chairman of the
board on 6 February 2015

(iv)  Appointed on 18 August 2014 and resigned on 29 February 2016

(v) Appointed on 29 February 2016

(vi) Re-designated as the joint chief executive officer of the Company on
21 April 2015

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
directors and the chief executive (2015: three directors and the
chief executive), details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year ended
31 December 2015 of the remaining one highest paid employee
who is neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

EERIBTHRAEME (H)

FALEEEATBETHRAEREXRE
REEMNE 2 5 -

(i) R_ZE—AFHAA+N\BEZE
(i) RZT-RF-AXNBEE

iy R-E-—NMFEAA-_+=PEZEIR_-F
—RFE-_ANBEZRAEEEETE

(iv) RZZE—MOENATNBEZEER=-F
—NE-A-t+hBBE

v, RZE-—RFZAZTHhBEZE

Vi) R-B—AFMA-+-ABEARDAM
FATIRER,
IUBREHES

FRNEERSHEERENZEERTE
TRAB(ZZ—H%F : ZREERTET
BAR)  REME ZFBEHN XM
B-RBE_ZT-—AF+-_A=+—BL*HF
B #T—E2ReFHEE(AFARAESR
SEBTHABR) ZHEFEWT ¢

as follows:

2016 2015
—E—AEF —E—NhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EAREDEF 1,001
Performance related bonuses FIRMEEIED 367

Equity-settled share-based payment expense  IX#E4EE ARD AEM R
X 298
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET BN 18
1,684
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 8BSz M

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 9.
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employee whose remuneration fell within the following
band is as follows:

EfuREHES (H)
FEERIIBZTBRAENESHEEDN
e FLATES AR -

Number of employees

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ L=

2,000,000/ 7T

EE#E
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—F1E
1

In prior year, share options were granted to a non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employee in respect of his
services to the Group, further details of which are included in
the disclosures in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair
value of such options, which has been recognised in profit or
loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the date
of grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the prior year is included in the above non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employee’s remuneration
disclosures.

10. INCOME TAX 10.

RBEFE  —BFEER—BIFTET
BAEBGRSFHEEREAANEER RN ZR
BRRBEE £ PRBENME®RE
MERZRES - EREEHANERRED
HRZEBREZATFEDIRE LA S
BT Mt \BEREFEMBRERZS
Bt ALXERE 2 —BFEER—HIF
IBTRABRSHEEMS -

BER— R B 2 ATIS T
(TEMERKD
PEIE (FT7E30)

Current — PRC corporate income tax (“CIT")

Deferred (note 30)

Total tax charge/(credit) for the year

FEBRBERY,(HR) 4

Frig®t

2016 2015

=E-RF —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THT FHET

1
(2,365)
158 (2,364)

Hong Kong profits tax

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no Hong Kong
profits tax had been provided as there were no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2015: Nil).

CIT

Under the PRC income tax laws, PRC enterprises are subject to
corporate income tax at a rate of 25% except for certain PRC
subsidiaries which are entitled to a preferential tax rate at 10%.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 817 & M+

10.

11.

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charged/(credit) applicable to profit/
(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for jurisdictions in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled
to the tax credit at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of
the applicable rates to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Loss before tax from continuing REFELEEB L
operations BRIATE R

RAEHEHE 2B
BEA R AR B

Tax at the statutory tax rates
Lower tax rate for specific provinces or

enacted by local authority REERE

Profits and losses attributable to BERARGE AT RER
associates

Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 Fx

Income not subject to tax BRERBZBA

Tax losses utilised from previous periods B 7 B S AFHIEER
Tax losses not recognised RERREEE

BARBERKEHEL
HERX/ (%)

Tax change/(credit) at the Group's
effective rate

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

10. FriE3%i (&)
KAARRQR REKRES M B A A M aE
EERZEAEBRERTEZBRBANSER, (&
BERAZHIERS (Ee)BIRERH R
FTEZHIEE S 2 HE - A RER R
BT R HEROT

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—AfF

HK$'000 % HK$'000 %

TR TEx

(86,155) (109,289)
(20,930) (16,823) 15.4
2,095 294 0.3)
15,562 8,279 (7.6)
(11,536) (1,425) 1.3
(136) - -
16,790 7,311 6.7)
(2,364) 22

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
HK$325,000 (2015: HK$65,000) is included in “Share of profits
and losses of associates” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 23 November 2014, the Company announced the decision
of its board of directors to dispose of the entire issued share
capital of World Wisdom Industrial Limited (“World Wisdom").
World Wisdom and its subsidiaries (collectively, “World Wisdom
Group”) engaged in the business of manufacture and trading of
power tools and property development. The disposal of World
Wisdom Group was completed on 31 March 2015.

On 11 May 2015, the Company announced the decision of its
board of directors to dispose of the entire issued share capital
of Rainy Company Inc. (“Rainy”). Rainy and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Rainy Group”) engaged in property development
business. The disposal of Rainy Group was completed on 11 May
2015.

FE(REE & N F) 2 BB ££325,0008 T (=&
—HF : 65,0008 EREREGEEBEK
Hih2mlas ko [ B E A RRF &E
BIERA -

BRIEREER
RZZ—WE+—A=+=H ' K27
Efi 0 EELRE H & World Wisdom
Industrial Limited ([ World Wisdom |) £
2 EBEITRA - World Wisdom & £ Fff
B (%78 [World Wisdom&E )t $
B TERERBEGUARELRELR -
HEWorld Wisdom&EBER=—_Z—HF
=R=+—H%K -

RZBE-—HAFHEA+—H ARAE
- BEEARE L ERainy Company Inc.
(Rainy ) 2 ZPE 1T ° Rainy M &
M AR (S8 Rainy SR E R B HER
¥75 o HERainyEEBER_Z—HFHA
+—HZEK -

IEBREFEXEBERDR —B—AFFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11.

Upon the disposal of World Wisdom Group and Rainy Group,
the Group has decided to cease its manufacture and trading
business of power tools and property development business
because it plans to focus its resources on its medical and
geriatric care business. Accordingly, the manufacture and
trading business of power tools and property development
business of the Group were classified as discontinued
operations and they are no longer included in the note for
operating segment information.

The results of the discontinued operations for the years are
presented below:

EARIREEK(E)

7 & World Wisdom & & & Rainy £ &
% ARAEBEFEETERREBRER
EEEBHAERILEESH TARERE
SEBRMEBRRER - AL - A&E 2
ENTAMEREEEBURMERRE
BREANDERERIERERR T TAH
FFAKE D TE R ZHIEE o

FRAERIEREERBZEE20T ¢

2016 2015
— NI —ET—RHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT

Manufacture and trading of power ERTANERESEL

tools business:

Revenue N 39,150
Expenses X (40,958)
Loss before tax from the BRI e % 2 BRBLATEE

discontinued operation (1,808)
Income tax expense FTiS B 2
Loss for the year from the BRI E XK FEEE

discontinued operation (1,808)
Property development business: MERRER
Revenue N 106,794
Expenses X (103,094)
Profit before tax from the BRI 2 R AR F

discontinued operation 3,700
Income tax expense FriSFim X (17,816)
Loss for the year from the ERIEREEB s FEFIE

discontinued operation (14,116)
Gain on disposal of the discontinued HE BRI ETE 2 e

operations (note 35) (FfE35) 62,921
Profit for the year from the ERRIEREEB 2 FRRN

discontinued operations 46,997
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 1. BRLESEERE(E)
The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operations are ERIEREXRBZIRSREFRWT :
as follows:
2016 2015
ZB-ARF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Operating activities KEEE) 62,241
Investing activities REEH 12,359
Financing activities BMEEH (77,319)
Net cash outflow W FE (2,719)
Earnings per share as adjusted to reflect ERABUARBR - Z—HF
the share consolidation on 4 March 2015: = AMBETZRHEHZ
BREN -
Basic, from the discontinued operations BER - REERIEEED HKO0.82 cents
0.82& 1l
Diluted, from the discontinued operation e RADRIEEESER HKO0.81 cents
0.817& 1l
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from REBRIEEEEE 2 BIRERREFTY
the discontinued operations are based on: BIBRA T SIEFE ¢
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of R E B |H& & %55 2 &A A
the parent from the discontinued operations  EERERFE ARG @ 45,597

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z =%

11.

12.

18
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—NEFTZA=1—HIEFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 11. BRIEKEEK(E)
2016 2015
—RE —ZE—FF
Shares gy
Weighted average number of ordinary shares st E&IRERZFFTAFR
in issue during the year used in the basic BT EAR 2 InRE 5 8k
earnings per share calculation 5,582,419,411
Effect of dilution — weighted average number  EES 2 — L@ A% ~ i
of ordinary shares: T
Share options Bz 12,467,394

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

AEESRESRAMAZ

used in the diluted earnings per share e m AR INAE 5 &

calculation 5,594,886,805
DIVIDEND 12. KRR
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend in EEVIAESHEE T —~E+_A

respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on
the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent of HK$68,015,000 (2015: HK$56,480,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 6,237,710,008
(2015: 5,582,419,411) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount from
continuing operations is based on the loss for the year from
continuing operations attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent of HK$68,015,000 (2015: HK$102,077,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 6,237,710,008
(2015: 5,582,419,411) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts and the basic loss per share amounts from continuing
operations presented for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share
options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss
per share amounts and the basic loss per share amounts from
continuing operations presented.

13.

=t BLEFERNKRE(ZF—HF:
&) -

BAREBERESHEARGER

BREAABEBEENIZT AR S BREDS
A AL FE E51868,015,000%8 L (==
— R4 : 56,480,000/87C) * MEAFEE
AT N T 5 E A AR BB 6,237,710,008 %
—Z— R4 :5582,419,4110% )5t & -

REABBECEEB SRERNEEHED
REARTARESITEABGLREFE
(RS EETE 7 F E E51868,015,0008 0 (=&
— R4 1 102,077,0008 7T ) * LA RAEE
B BT It F e @HX%Z56237710008
BE(—Z—Fh4F : 5582,419,4118%) 5t &

RREARTEBREHEE_T - FR
TE-REFT A=t HLEFEMRZS
REFKBEEXBZEREABEARE
SBIER > WA ARREBEM2HERLE
EBERBRENEREHEMNHE -



Notes to Financial Statements @ 817 & M+

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

31 December 2016 RF-AEtZA=1-H

At31 December 015and ~ WZF-FF+ZA=+-AR
1 January 2016: ZERE-R-R
Cost AAE
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAA

and impairment

Net carrying amount BETE

At 1 January 2016, net of RZB-R"E-A-B-
accumulated depreciation B EZFTERGE
and impairment

Additions RE

Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEMB AT (f534)
(note 34)

Write-off i

Depreciation provided during ~ ERFERH (fH:56)
the year [note 6)

Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRA (H335)
(note 35)

Surplus on revaluation EfRH

Transers to investment ERERENE (5
properties (note 1)

Exchange realignment EfRE

At 31 December 2016, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

RoB-AEHZAZH-R -
s FERAE

At 31 December 2016; RB-REtZA=1-8:
Cost AAE
Accumulated depreciation  E:fFERAE
and impairment
Net carrying amount REFE

82,001

(1,410)

80,591
210

1,047

(2,832)

(ALY

(25,824)
(4,590)

64,835

(4,032)

8,539

(2,442)

6,097
1129

2939
(1,847)

(3,467)

16,623

(5,233)

11,390

2,241

(202)

2,039

8,518

(7,331)

7,263
149,242

63

156,044

10,718 156,044

(7,584)

3,134 156,044

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRE
Leasehold Furniture Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  and fixtures  equipment vehicles  in progress Total
BT RENEEE  GARRE E B e ERIR @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER AR THR TR TR

108,639

(11,349)

97,290
161,511

6,354
(1,847)

(7,795)

(543)
(ALY

(25,824)
(5,472)

235,815

253,428

(17,613)

235,815

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER



Notes to Financial Statements @ B#®K M5t

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y% - BERRE(E)
Leasehold Furniture Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  andfixtures  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BY HEMERE  GHRRE EhRE e ERIE a5t
HKS$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEx Thr Fhn Thn i Thr TEr
31 December 2015 R-B-RE+-F=1-H
At 311 January 2015: RZE-1%-A-R:
Cost KAE - 2,068 386 16 1,195 - 3865
Accumulated depreciation ZHMERAA
and impairment - (1,881) (320 9 (422) - (2632)

Net carrying amount FEEE - 387 66 7 m3 - 1233
At 1 January 2015, net of R-Z-15-A-0"

accumulated depreciation B EFNERGE

and impairment . 387 b6 7 173 - 1,233
Transfer from properties BRERERENZ

held for sale 13,840 - - - - - 13,840
Additions AE 70,090 6,402 852 466 1,341 3,205 82,3%
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WIEHBLAE(FH:34)

(note 34) 90,501 - - 953 140 4415 96,009
Wiite-off i . - . ) - . !
Depreciation provided during ~ E R E&/E (Fiste)

the year (note 6) (3218 (561) (19 (154) (181) - (4133
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR(HE0)

(note 35) (88,754) - (50) ) (697) - (89,508)
Exchange realignment ERAZ (1,868) (131) (35) (67) (38) (357) (2,49)
At 31 December 2015, netof ~ RN=E-RF+-A=+-H"

accumulated depreciation NBEGHTERAE

and impairment 80,591 6,097 814 1,187 1338 7,263 97,290
At 31 December 2015: R-B-RE+-A=1+-H:

Cost RAE 82,001 8,539 817 8,518 1,501 7,263 108,639

Accumulated depreciation SHRERARE

and impairment (1410) (2442 3 (7,331) (163) - (11,349

Net carrying amount RHTE 80,591 6,097 814 1187 1338 7,63 97,29

RZZE—HE+-_A=1+—08  KA&£EE
R {8 565,576,000 T2 & TEFTE K
FEAR TAEBN—MBITREZER -

At 31 December 2015, certain of the Group's buildings with a
net carrying amount of HK$65,576,000 were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

K—RA—BZKRHE
HWEEEAME

Carrying amount at 1 January

Transfer from owner-occupied
property

Additions from acquisition of g — M B AR BARE
subsidiaries

Additions NE

Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHRE AT

Net gain from a fair value adjustment RAFEFAEL 7 FUkz

Transfer to prepaid land lease EEERMN LM
payments
Exchange realignment M 54,3 2

Carrying amount at 31 December

Wt -A=+—HZKHE

rEM*
2016 2015
= —ThF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks T THT
338,744 66,333
14 25,824 -
34 - 636,343
12,066 3,271
35 - (28,957)
5 3,285 841
16 - (318,259)
(23,421) (20,828)
338,744

The Group's investment properties consist of certain
commercial properties in Beijing and Shanghai, the PRC. The
directors of the Company have determined that the investment
properties consist of one class of asset, i.e., commercial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the
properties. The Group's investment properties were revalued
on 31 December 2016 based on valuations performed by
Greater China Appraisal Limited, an independent professionally
qualified appraiser, at HK$356,498,000. Each year, the Group's
management decide to appoint which external appraiser
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 38(a) to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2016, the Group's investment properties with
a carrying value of HK$320,047,000 (2015: HK$303,175,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 29).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 208.

AEBZREMEBEMRPREILTR E
BZETRERWE - REWEZME 5
BRER  ARREEBETREMER—
EEERR(BIEAYE)AK - RIBBEL
HEABRGEMEETERRAAE
AZEE NEBZREMENR_FT—X
F+ = A=+ —HE 4 %A356,498,0005
T AR BEEBESTFIRATINEGERMZ
AE - URTEBEREEYEZ NP
B BEREHBREMSAH B2 B
M REE T MR SEKE o

WEMEDRBELEHELHRTE=R -
EE—PBEFBEHRY B R EWTE
38(a) °

R-ZE—RNE+-_A=+—08  K&EEEK
T {B %) £ 320,047,000/ T (=T — A 4 :
303,175,000 7T ) 2 & EWHEE T K
o ESRAASERDL 2 —RIRTHRE
(fE29) °

AEBNEREMEZE—TFBENF208
Ho

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REWE(E)
Fair value hierarchy AFEER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TERAPBAEBEREMEZ AFEFZEE
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties: & -

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using
REZB-AFE+ZA=+-BEARTHAZAFENE
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EXTEBE EAFTEER

ERTSRE BWAE BWAE
(B—4) (B=&) (B=4) Bzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TEr TERT TERx

Recurring fair value measurement for: &FERAFEASE ¢
Commercial properties located in IR Bz ERmE
the PRC 356,498 356,498

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using

BE_Z-AF+-_A=+—HEAUTBABEZAHEFE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BAAHR BEATAHE
RIS RE BWAE BAE
(B—%&) (B=R) (B=8) #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THT FHT THT
Recurring fair value measurement for: &FENFEASE ¢
Commercial properties located in NG EAs)k ES
the PRC - - 338,744 338,744
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FA - F-REE-_FRATEQTET
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers EXEE TEEF=HKEBEAIEL (=T
into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil). —hF &)
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15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

15.

BREYE (&)

AFEER(E)
FTRMERTDEEEMERBEZEERA
EMENT :

Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
fh{ER IS EXRTUEEBAE EE S MNEFS
2016 2015
—E-AE —F-Af
Commercial properties Income approach  Estimated rental value RMB45 RMB44
EhkZES I as% (per sq.m. and per month) AR#45TT AREE44TT
At HEEE
(BFHAREAR)
Capitalisation rate 6% - 6.5% 6% — 6.5%

BERL =

Commercial properties

[ELikZES

Comparison
approach
LB

Adjustment on market
unit price (per s.gq.m)

TS EERE(STIK)

6%Z£6.5% 6%%E6.5%

-42% - 21%
-A2%E21%

-45% - -15%
-45%%-15%

Income approach measured the fair value of the investment
properties by capitalising rental receivables during the term of
the tenancies at appropriate yield with due allowances for the
reversionary value upon expiry of tenancies.

A significant increase (decrease) in the unit rent in isolation
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value
of the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease)
in the adjustment to the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the
investment properties.

Comparison approach measured the fair value of the investment
properties by making comparison based on prices realised or
market prices of comparable real properties. Comparable real
properties of similar size, character and location are analysed
and carefully weighted against all the respective advantages
and disadvantages of the real properties. Adjustments in prices
of the comparable real properties are then made to account for
the identified differences between such real properties and the
real properties in the relevant factors.

A significant increase (decrease) in a positive adjustment or
a significant decrease (increase) in a negative adjustment
on market unit price in isolation would result in a significant
increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties.

W KB BN EHAZAENREETEAR
YA S RN AR ERE A EREERE
HEEBBTEREMENATE -

BUBESEBRBREMORD) BEBRE
MENRFERBEZMORD) - BAREL
RRBEEBABEMORLD) BEBUREY)
EHRFEARBRADGEM)

HEETIRBEAELREHEZCERE
REMELET  BEIMKRE  FiEkit
BEEZAIELBREWE  UHAGHES
HEHEZ —VIBPLERER - JELBEM
EZERE/ELAE - Ut REFEREED
REEERFE Z HNDHREE -

T 35 B8 {7 B 8 1E [ 58 B B8 08 X 0@ 4 o0 Ok
D)L A EHAEAER D IS EHIE
MENRFHEAREIMORD)

ItREREFEXEERBRAR —B-AFFR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FAMLHES
2016 2015
—E-RE “T—AF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
g TET FHT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HBZEEE 1,323,117 -
Additions NE - 397,154
Acquisition of subsidiaries Lk B Bt /2B A ) 34 151,560 691,865
Transfer from investment properties AT EYE 15 = 318,259
Recognised during the year FRNER 6 (39,192) (16,016)
Exchange realignment [ 5 2 (92,856) (68,145)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—BZEEE 1,342,629 1,323,117
Current portion included in FIATENRUR « B M EM
prepayments, deposits and FEUL BR 5K 2 B ERER 5
other receivables 23 (39,621) (37,785)
Non-current portion JEBNEREL > 1,303,008 1,285,332
As at 31 December 2016, the land use right with an aggregate RIZB—ARFET+A=+—0  £KEAE
carrying amount of HK$282,215,000 (2015: Nil) is pledged to £282,215,0008 c(—FE—HF : T)z+
secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 29). it R R RIER RN EBERIRITER
ZFER(KIFE29)
17. GOODWILL 17. BHE
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FHET FHET
Cost and net carrying amount at R—A—HBZHA K
1 January BREFEE 156,104 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B BT 8 2 &) 34 141,173 156,104
Disposal of a subsidiary & —FRHEAR 35 (31,618) -
Cost and net carrying amount at RT+ZA=+—B2KE xR
31 December BREFE 265,659 156,104
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17.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

GOODWILL (continued) 17. BEE(E)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated
to the following cash-generating units (the “"CGU") for
impairment testing:

. Zhi Jian CGU;

° Jing Tou Holding CGU;
° Beijing Spirit CGU;

. Golden Sun CGU; and
° Top-Doctors CGU.

Zhi Jian and Jing Tou Holding cash-generating units

The recoverable amount has been determined by reference to
the fair value less costs of disposal of each relevant business
unit.

In assessing the fair value less costs of disposal of each
individual business unit, references were made to the valuation
of the properties and the carrying amount of the business unit’s
other assets and liabilities which approximated to their fair
value, excluding any deferred tax liabilities initially recognised
on acquisition of the relevant business unit. Fair values of the
properties were determined based on valuations performed
by independent valuer at year end using income approach and
comparison approach which has used significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13).

Beijing Spirit cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Beijing Spirit cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 17.78%
(2015: N/A). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
of the Beijing Spirit unit beyond the five-year period is 3.00%
(2015:N/A), which approximates to the long term average
growth rate of the furniture trading industry.

BB RERE
BBREFAHDRENRERSEEA TR
SEABU([ReELEM ) NETRE
AR

e ERRSELS:

s REREBRASELBNM:
o ItFEBERGELBA
s TABRETELBML K
s REBMBRSELBN -

HERRARERA L ELEN
AREESENSERTFERSHEEBE
Iz HERAMETE °

BREERENIE SV VAA/NS S =V Hank=—1 %S
B AREC2EMELHENREBE
UEMEERBEREE(REATER
) HETEERNEBEEEEELREY
PR EMELEHBRAE - ZFEWEZ
DB TR AR B S B A A 4 R A W 2
ERLEEETZHEEE EFEEM
BEATHUBERGARB(BEBYHREE
RIB13MAARERFERBRZE=R) °

URBERLELEN

ERBEEREELEUNHATKRE SR
RReELAEM 2 ERABEFEEE £
REESENIRESREBREL A TF
B RBREELZRSREFISE « ]
EREFRAMANFNRERRI778%(=F
—HF : NER) - AREERFHUIMNG
ERBEREM RS REERE H3.00%
“T-hEF: TNER) BRABRTE
ZREITFIEIBRERE -

SEERAT —B—NEEH

A1 88 B AR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

17.

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Golden Sun cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the industrial products Golden
Sun cash-generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by
senior management. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 15.00% (2015: N/A). The growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the Golden Sun unit beyond the
five-year period is 3.00% (2015: N/A), which approximates to the
long term average growth rate of the geriatric care industry.

Top-Doctors cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the Top-Doctors cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a five-year period approved by senior management. The
discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 18.70%
(2015: N/A). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
of the Top-Doctors unit beyond the five-year period is 3.00%
(2015: N/A), which approximates to the long term average
growth rate of the on-line medical service industry.

At 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to each of the cash-generating units is as follows:

Jing Tou

Zhi Jian Holding

R ZRER

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TERT

Carrying amount of goodwill &7 EEE 115,370 40,734

17.

e (&)

R E R ()

EABEELELEN

SABZ IXERBESELB U UE
CHEDNIERASELSBMN 2 FABENE
B FHRHEAEFENRERLEEE
HEZ AFHYREEEL 2 RERER
AEE  BeREBAMANTIEERA
15.00%(=Z—HF : T@EA) - ANEE
AEHMINN S RBEN RS RERKE
KAE300%(—T—HF : TEH)  EF
EIEZRPTEEERER -

REHEE S ELE

REREECEE BN IKRE SR
BECELASBN 2 FAEBEBEFEEE  F
AEEFENRESAEEEIEZ AT
HYRBEERHZBEREEASEE - ]
SREBRAMAMNITRER1870%(=F
—hHF : NEA) - AREERFENUING
REHRBABEMZESHRERREEA3.00%
(ZE2—1F : THEA)  HERLEETE
2 REAFEI R RER

R-ZT—R"E+-_A=+—08 52EF&
REELBMNNFHEZRAMBNT

Beijing Spirit Golden Sun Top-Doctors Total
bR EYN RERS Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TET TET TET
17,394 82,894 9,267 265,659

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
Beijing Spirit CGU, Golden Sun CGU and Top-Doctors CGU
for 31 December 2016. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Growth rates — The growth rates used to extrapolate the cash
flows beyond the five-year period are based on the estimated
growth rate of each unit taking into account the industry growth
rate, past experience and the medium or long term growth
target of each CGU.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

MN-EBE—XRE+-A=+—8  FE4R
BERBESELENMN & ABEESELASN
MRBHMEARCELBNZFERABERD
FEAETRE TXHLEREEETE
BRENFRBIELRSREBAMBED
BHEEBEMBE

B FE - FRANARERMEEHIR - A
R B RE MR E AR -

BEREF-ANEELFHUNERESRE

BEX  DUSEUZAHERRAE
£ WERBTEERE  BELRREH
EEABUZPRIERARMAERS -



Notes to Financial Statements @ 817 & M+

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

18. HM\FEE

Brand Computer

31 December 2016

Cost at 1 January 2016, net of

name software Total
mEATE BB @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
b FET FET FHET
NZT—RF
+=—A=+—H

RZZE—RF—HA—H

accumulated amortisation 2R - HIBR 2R
g =
Additions NE 541
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB M B A7) 34 14,682
Amortisation provided during TR BIEEE
the year 6 (281)
Exchange realignment [E 5 FF#& (746)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+=-A=+—H 14,196
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+=—A=+—H
Cost BN
Accumulated amortisation Sty
Net carrying amount BREFEE 7,342 6,854 14,196
A brand name acquired in 2016 at a fair value of HK$7,811,000 R-ZT—FWEAFEE7,811,000% T
was regarded as having indefinite useful life because the brand ZmiEEBEARR N ERAELFES
name is expected to generate net cash inflows indefinitely. As MAMBEE REEBRAIERAES - R
at 31 December 2016, the brand name with indefinite useful life T—RETZA=+—H EEERAE

was tested for impairment.

REHNmE 2R ETRENR -

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. RBERAZRE

2016 2015
—E-AE —F Af
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 45,103 21,329
Goodwill on acquisition gt 104,088 90,619
149,191 111,948
Particulars of the material associate are as follows: FEBERTFBEOT
Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration attributable  Principal
Name issued shares held and business to the Group  activities
KL EARELERRE
A% BFEZERTRHFE AR &R BREAL  EEER
Beijing Sports and Entertainment Industry Ordinary shares Cayman Islands/ 19.77  Air freight
Group Limited ("Beijing Sports and TEk Hong Kong services,
Entertainment”, HERE /B investment
formerly known as ASR Logistics Holding and operation
Limited)* of the
TREEEELEEERAA([LREEX sports and
bl BiEREmRERERDR) entertainment
related
business
TERE &
BRge
B RIREAE
S
& shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange & A&7 MBS 2 AT AR 7

Except for the Group's shareholding in Beijing Sports and
Entertainment comprising equity shares held by the Company,
the shareholdings in other associates are held through a wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company.
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19.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Beijing Sports and Entertainment, which is considered a
material associate of the Group, is accounted for using the
equity method. The Company acquired approximately 13.97%
of the share capital of Beijing Sport and Entertainment on
18 December 2015, and further acquired 10.66% of the share
capital of Beijing Sports and Entertainment on 29 January 2016.
The Group's equity interest in Beijing Sports and Entertainment
was diluted to 19.77% as at 31 December 2016 followed by the
completion of placings of Beijing Sports and Entertainment
taken place during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of Beijing Sports and Entertainment

19.

REtE QAT 2 RE (F)

IRBEE(HRAEAER 2 FEH &
AR HERAEREAR - AQRIR=ZF
—AF+ZA+N\BMELREE LN
13.97% 2 A + Wi — R =T — N F—
AZ+ N BB R B 301k10.66% 2 I}
Ko JREEERBE=ZT—~F+=
B=+—BLEFEHETRE TEER
REBENIEREBAE bz EmE T —~
F+ A=+ —HE—TEEE19.77% -

TREMIEREE XM BEREZ (D
MBFTBR 2 E = REH AR - WEAR

adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and SRR ARBESER) ¢
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements:
2016 2015
—E-RE —F Af
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current assets mENEE 337,271 139,550
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE  THEIEEHE 115,175 107,573
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate WL AR 2 EE 102,963 79,125
Current liabilities RBEE (212,810) (135,647)
Non-current financial liabilities, excluding ERBAE TEREENES
trade and other payables and provisions B 0 % L A AT BR R A %
B (65)
Non-current liabilities JEREAE (53)
341,592 190,483
Less: Non-controlling interests R IR (11,589) (2,111)
Net assets BEFE 330,003 188,372
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFE  TRERE 109,247
Reconciliation to the Group's interest REEREEARINERZ
in the associate: HiR
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEE 7 AL 19.77% 13.97%
Group's share of net assets of the associate,  AEEELBIE AR ZEE
excluding goodwill FE - TNEERE 44,886 15,262
Goodwill on acquisition (less cumulative W RERS 2 B CR R ETRE)
impairment) 102,963 79,125
Carrying amount of the investment ®EZREE 147,849 94,387
Fair value of the Group's investment REENKE 2 A TE 314,160* 94,320*

based on the market price of the equity held by the Group

* ENASEEFENES 2T E

IEBREFEXEBERDR —B—AFFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

19. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

19. REEQATRZRE(HE)

2016

ZB-RF

HK$'000

FTET

Revenue e 82,518
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEHNEBREEES

for the year/period O (51,327)

18 December
2015 to

31 December
2015
—E-NF
+ZA+N\BZE
—E-NF
+=A=+—H
HK$'000
FHT

15,299

(8,892)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

TEREAREEERFENZBE QR Z

information of the Group's associates that are not individually IS E R 4EE
material:
2016
—B-AF
HK$'000
FTHET
Share of the associates’ loss for the year FE(REtE AR 2 FEEE

Share of the associates’ total
comprehensive loss

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REEREE N EINIRE 2R

investments in the associates mEE

EIEBERA 2 2 HERAE

2015
—ET—RF
HK$'000
FHET
(359)
(359)

17,561
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21.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AHHERE
2016 2015
—E-RE —TAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted equity investments: FELEMRAKEE
At cost LA E 21,288
Impairment A -
21,288
As at 31 December 2016, the unlisted equity investments R-E—XNF+-_A=+—H ' BRA
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$11,295,000 (2015: BAFEGFHEAANBREERAEHE
HK$21,288,000) were stated at cost less impairment because AREBEEEAETE  WEAREAR
the ranges of reasonable fair value estimates are so significant 11,295,000/8 70 (= — R 4F : 21,228,000
that the directors are of the opinion that their fair values cannot I ) Z IE T IR AR B IR A AN RURE S
be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of IR e AEEESNTHEEZEIFE LT
them in the near future. KKE -
INVENTORIES 21. FE
2016 2015
ZEBE-RF —T—AhfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAExT
Finished goods B m——

IEBREFEXEBERDR —B—AFFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

22.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

TRADE RECEIVABLES

FEUR & 5 BR =X
2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT

FEWE F R
Impairment DERIE!

Trade receivables

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally 3 months.
For major customers, the terms may change in accordance
with the terms of the respective contracts. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of the
aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

BHEF —RABNFKEAIN  AEEEE
UMEETRERTFITEE SRR - A%
BERETEFPZEEHN—RA=MEA - Bx
REFPME @ FRAEREEBEEN 2K
RMEMES - BEEFHRARSEE
B o NGB H KRB & B WSUR 15 B
75 BHFEAEREEEENETE
Bl o RIBLEABARANEE 2 BIE S
RADHEPAE  BAESEETEE
MR o ANER B3 M A R R 5 RR R A
BEAEAERMmIEMERERTR
e E BRRRL AR -

RBERR - BEE SRR REREER
EHEAAENREOTIOT

2016 2015
—B-RE i
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTExT FTAET

Within 3 months
Over 3 months

—@AR
—@AMRE

10,492 -
1,521 -
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22.

23.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

22. EWEZRR(E)

3 4 {8 51 3% 5= BB AR R R (B O B W B 5 AR X

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as ZEREBROWTAT ¢
follows:
2016
ZB-ARF
HK$'000
FTHET
Neither past due nor impaired 3 8 B SORE
Less than 1 month past due BEDR—1E R
1 to 3 months past due BE—E==EA

12,013

2015
—T—hEF
HK$'000
FHET

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
several major customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

I & E BRSO E 2 R W R B AR R A I
BRRCHBIBEIBZEFPAR -

EEHE Y ERENEUKKIBEE TRA
SEBERBRIFNBYTFAR - ERN
BELR  ARFEERR  ANERE
R E|EAEE B AERIDPAR BRI BEBK
O - WHBERZSERIERERERE -

23. BEMRE - RERHMEYRERR

2016

—E—RE

Notes HK$'000

B 5E FET

Prepayments and deposits TARTRIE iR ® (a) 12,339
Other receivables Hofth FE U BR X (b) 191,429
Prepaid land lease payments A LS 16 39,621
243,389

Less: Impairment B RE (3,134)
240,255

Portion classified as current assets DERRBEEND (240,255)

Non-current portion — prepayments ERBNF S — FE FIE

2015
—ET—RF
HK$’'000
FH&T

142,653
100,432
37,785

280,870

280,870

(139,099)

141,771

EEEREFEEEERERAR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
Notes:

(a) Included in the Group’s prepayment as at 31 December 2015 was a
prepayment of HK$141,771,000 in relation to the proposed acquisition
of a 51% equity interest in Golden Sun.

On 2 November 2015, Shanghai Chongyuan, Huang Xiaorong, an
independent third party, and Golden Sun entered into a transfer and
subscription of shares agreement (the “Transfer and Subscription of Shares
Agreement”), pursuant to which (i) Shanghai Chongyuan agreed to acquire
and Huang Xiaorong agreed to sell 30% of the entire equity interests in
Golden Sun for a consideration of RMB57,000,000, to be satisfied by a cash
consideration of RMB30,000,000 and the issuance of 41,158,537 consideration
shares of the Company to Huang Xiaorong by instalments (the “Share
Consideration”); and (i) Shanghai Chongyuan agreed to subscribe for and
Golden Sun agreed to issue and allot 12,857,143 shares of Golden Sun,
representing 30% of the enlarged issued share capital of Golden Sun, at a
cash consideration of approximately RMB81,428,571.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has paid the cash consideration
in aggregate of RMB111,428,571 (equivalent to approximately
HK$133,001,000) and issued the first instalment of 12,195,122
consideration shares of the Company amounting to HK$8,770,000
to Huang Xiaorong. The aggregate amount of HK$141,771,000 was
classified as a non-current prepayment.

On 31 January 2016, the acquisition was completed following the fulfilment
of all of the conditions precedent in the Transfer and Subscription of Shares
Agreement.

(b) Included in the Group's other receivables as at 31 December 2016 were
interest-bearing loans of HK$94,442,000, in aggregate, comprising
of: (i) an unsecured and guaranteed loan of Canadian dollar (“CAD")
11,250,000 (equivalent to HK$64,653,000) (2015: CAD11,250,000,
equivalent to HK$63,788,000) bearing interest at a rate of 10% per
annum and has no fixed terms of repayment; (ii) an unsecured loan of
RMB 16,600,000 (equivalent to HK$18,610,000) (2015: RMB 16,600,000,
equivalent to HK$19,754,000) bearing interest at a rate of 5% per
annum and is repayable within one year; (iii) an unsecured loan of
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to HK$11,179,000) (2015: Nil) bearing
interest at a rate of 4.785% per annum and is repayable within one year.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

23.

BNFE - B RHE bR KRR ()

B EE -

(a)

HAKKER-F-RE+-A=+-AZ
T HROE B 8141,771 0008 78 2 B 3
R SRR R AR %R -

R-ZE—FRF+—A=8 L&MW BL
B=HENE RS KBTI 8 R RE
ek ([ IRD 8 RRE R ) - HRiL() Bg
WEREKEMRNERELESABME
&2 30% + {8 & AR #57,000,0007T
I #% 3% 38 A R #30,000,0007t 2 H & R E R
AABMENED HHE1T41,158,537 RIRE
&M (TR REDER : Ri) EEMERE
R LA K& K5 R E %17 RBLE12,857,143
RS AR « 1S AR5 EIEARE BITHRA
#30% * HERELN R ARKS1,428,5717T °

R—ZE—AE+-_F=+—0 £A&H
B Xt AR®111,428571 T (B E R K
133,001,000 7T) 2B &R EBERAZNE
BTE—H12,195, 122 R ERR D © &% 5
8,770,000 7T ° 141,771,0003% 7T 2 48 % %8
BB AEREBEMNFE -

R-ZE—ARF-A=+—8 REXROHE
AN RE R B RGN WBER
BETK °

HFAREER=_E—AF+=-A=+—8
2 E A EURBR T A & $£94,442,00078 7T 2 5T
BER - 8 : (i)11,250,00000 & A 5t ([ 40
7L 1) (48 % 164,653,000 7T ) (ZZF —
4 : 11,250,000 /0 7T ( 48 & 7 63,788,000
T ZEEARAERER - ZERUF
FER10%:TE - WEETEEREE : () A
R ¥ 16,600,000 7T ( 46 & 7 18,610,000 7T )
(ZZ—H%F : AR¥16,600,0007T (HHE R
19,754,000/ 7T) ) 2 R E K o X ERAF
FE5%:E - WEAR—FREE : (iARKE
10,000,0007T (#8& 711,179,000/ 7T ) Z 1K
WER(ZZ—FF : ) ZERAFFHR
4.785%:H8 - WHER—FNEE °
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24.

25.

LOANS TO A DIRECTOR

The loan to a director, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
(d) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Maximum

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

24.

At

amount 31 December

At  outstanding 2015 and

31 December during 1 January
2016 the year 2016
RZB-%%

+=A

it Sbt:d RERZ  =t-BR
tT=A REAE =i %

BT ZEEZ RN
RIRE 78 2 ) 6 383(1) (o) R 2 7 (B
BEFFRER) ROIEIBAT - BT —

BEFRZEFFEENT
Maximum
amount
outstanding At
during the 1 January
prior year 2015  Security held
RBfEz

BEx R-E-1F

Name "AH Er=M £ —-A-B BESHE -A-B BEZER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THBL TAL TAL TAT
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun T IEH%AE 136,012* 136,012 - - - Commercial property
ElikES
E The balance is included in “Due from related parties” in & BRI AGZEMBERRER 2 [ FEYE
the consolidated statement of financial position. EHFHIAE]
The loans granted to directors bears interest at 4.5% per annum BTEZ2ERIR4S% 2 FFEGE - I
and is repayable within one year. BN —FENEE o
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 25. EBEBUATFEIIRZERMEE
LOSS
2016 2015
ZEB-RF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Listed equity investments, at market value FHRAEKE - EmmE 64,584 26,988
Unlisted investments, at fair value ELTIRE B AFE 70,103 21,008

134,687 47,996

The above financial assets at 31 December 2015 and 2016 were
classified as held for trading and were, upon initial recognition,
designated by the Group as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Group's unlisted investments represented mainly fund
investments and their fair values were based on values quoted
by the relevant financial institutions.

R-ZB-—AFR_ZF-ARFT-_A=1+—
B EARERMEERSBAREEER -
YTRNFERARHASEEE B BER
NAFHEIIRZ EREE -

AEBEZHLTREIZRESRERR
B ERFEDERARESBEE 2 RE

BE -

ItREREFEXEERBRAR —B-AFFR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS 26. RERBLFEEMUARSEFER
2016 2015
—E—XF —T—hF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M=k THET FET
Cash and bank balances IRe NMIRTT4E5 121,543 42,483
Time deposits with original maturity — REVSERZ|EHE L ®
of less than or equal to three months  ={#l A 2 E BT
when acquired 86,302 488,247
Time deposits with original maturity ~ REUSE RIS BEBA=E
of over three months when acquired AZTEEER 82,076 1,194
Principal protected structure deposits REVSEREIEH D iisk
with original maturity of less than ER=Z@AZRAE
or equal to three months when EBIEER
acquired 91,060
Principal protected structure deposits REVSRREIEFH BB =&
with original maturity of over three R 2 RGBT
months when acquired 5,968
320,104 628,952
Less: Pledged time deposits: B BEBRITER
Pledged for short term ERREIIRITER
bank loans ZHEA 29(a) (21,900) -
Cash and cash equivalents ReNREZEY 628,952

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances,
time deposits and principal protected structure deposits
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted
to HK$151,616,000 (2015: HK$274,996,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

RBEHER - AEBUAARB(TARE])
FHEZES RBTES  THERRRAR
I ETF R A151,616,0008 L (—E—F
F 1 274,996,000 7C) © ARMETRT B H
HAHEAEE  HRER B A IMNEE
BRI ARKERE  SERMGESER
T AEERESBEREETINERS
E¥BHNRITBARBEBRARME -

RITEFRBRESRRTERNXEERN
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. ERESERMX
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the RBREBRR  BNEZRABEEZEH
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: RERER D ATIO T -
2016 2015
ZB-ARF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH FHT
Within 3 month =EAR -
Over 3 months =&AL -
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally BRNESERAREER—MN=Z2/"1EA
settled on terms of 3 to 6 months. NEELT ©
28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HittEMRARESEA
2016 2015
—EB—REF —T—FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET
Current: BNE
Other payables and accruals HEM R ERT & A 127,231
Consideration payable (note 34) FERTRAB (B 5E34) 12,745
Contingent consideration payable (note 34) FERT SR RTAE (BT 5E34) 5,542
Consideration deposits REZS 36,891
Receipts in advance =R & EN 6,197
Non-current: FEENHA :

Contingent consideration payable (note 34) FEAT SR A ARAB (HH5E34)

200,683

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. FESBTREMER
2016 2015
ZE-RE “FT-Tf
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
ERAI= ) che TEL ERf= 3|EA THL
Current ki
Bank loans - secured BIET-AER 2.40-5.22 2017 4.92 2016 35,808
Current portion of long term bank  RHIB{TER 2 AE 5
loans - secured -BHA 4.90 2017 6.19 2016 14,323
Other loans - unsecured Hi S5 —mEE 5.60 On demand 560 Ondemand 5,637
REX REX
76,634 55,768
Non-current il
Bank loans - secured Fikas=¢ b=Piinid 4,90 2018-2021 106,201 6.19  2017-2020 71616
182,835 127,384
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: EEERTERREY :
Within one year or on demand AR —FANIRERER 71,445 50,131
In the second year RE_FREE 33,538 17,904
In the third to fifth years, inclusive EREZEZFRFA(E
IEEREMT)EE 72,663 53,712
177,646 121,747
Other borrowings repayable: EEZEEMER
On demand REREIE 5,637
127,384
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29.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

Notes:

a. As at 31 December 2016, the Group's bank loans are secured by:

(i) mortgages over the investment properties situated in the
PRC, which had an aggregate carrying amount at the end of
reporting period of HK$320,047,000 (2015: HK$303,175,000);

(ii) mortgages over the land use right, which had an aggregate
carrying amount at the end of reporting period of
HK$282,215,000 (2015: Nil);

(i) the Group's receivable from a related company amounting to
HK$111,875,000 (2015: Nil); and

(iv)  the pledge of certain of the Group's time deposits amounting
to HK$21,900,000 (2015: Nil).

In addition, as at 31 December 2016, the Group's bank loans of
HK$67,074,000 were guaranteed by certain third parties (2015:
HK$85,939,000).

b. As at 31 December 2016, except for the bank loans of HK$53,000,000,
in aggregate, which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, all
borrowings were denominated in RMB (2015: all were denominated in
RMB).

c. The Group's other loans are borrowed from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company, which are unsecured, bear
interest at 5.60% per annum and are repayable on demand.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

29.

STERITRHEMERE

=
=
R

o

gl

RZE—ARFE+—A=1+—H8  xEE2E
TERA TS RIEA

(i) B RPEZ EEMERR - HRR
2 HA 5K 2 48 BR [ {8 /4 320,047,000
JL(=ZZF—F% : 303,175,000 L)

() e RBER - HRESEK
> @R £ 282,215,000 7 (= F
—HEE):

(i)  ANEERE—FEREERRZERER
11,875,000 T (ZT—HF : T) :
54

(ivy HEHRAEEETEHER €84
21,900,000 (=T —HF : F) »

o RZTE—ARF+ZA=+—8 " &
= H A5 #67,074008 T (T —HE :
85,939,000 L) 2ERBE TE=ZFER °

RZZE-—RE+ZA=+—HB BRE&EHAE
53,000,0007& 7T 2 $R1TE KA TTEHESD -
MBEERANAREHE(ZZ—HF : A
BlERBAARKERE)

AEEZEMERIEARR —HNEAR
ZIEERARRAEER - H SR - $25.60%
ZERRGE - WRRELER -

BREFEXEBERLR —B—AFFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

30. DEFERRED TAX 30.
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:

IEFEBLTH
BEERBAEREENFAZESHNT

At 31 December 2015 and

RZE-AF+=ZA=+—

Deferred tax liabilities EEBEAE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from Revaluation of
acquisition of investment
subsidiaries properties Total
EEXBWE
i) N
ZATERE ERRENF st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt THET THET TERT
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—FHF—F—H - 3,886 3,886
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss NERNELBDRIEEE
from discontinued operations during Bt NBE ZEIERIE
the year - 251 251
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 35 - (4,147) (4,147)
Acquisition of subsidiaries UBEHT B A7) 34 164,391 63,867 228,258
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to profit FRVIEZRANINE/(FTA)
or loss during the year FIEIETR IR 10 (2,575) 210 (2,365)
Exchange differences PE =% (9,408) (3,717) (13,125)

1 January 2016 Bk -_ZT—R"E—HA—H 152,408 60,356 212,764
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—RRBAR 1,451 1,451
Deferred tax charged to asset FAREEEHBEEAMR

revaluation reserve during the year EE AR I8 3,035

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to profit FREZ AR

or loss during the year S GIAEERIE (2,306)
Exchange differences [EH =28 (13,660)

RoF—AF+ A=+
Az BIEHEA R

Gross deferred tax liabilities at
31 December 2016

141,146

201,284
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30.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$315,579,000 (2015: HK$167,066,000) that will expire in one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
above items as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2016, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future. There were no temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised at 31 December 2016
(2015: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

30.

IEFERE (48)

N & [E A P B A ZE 42 315,579,000 T
—E—AF 1 167,066,000/ 70) 2 FiIEE
B JE—ERFREEARRERTEF

WL 18 B RRRERIAEE  RE
REMERTREEEE - RER 2B
XA BHARIE TR AR A BRI A (A1
HIHBIARE o

RIFPBESEMETOL - RRIEKREE
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. BRAK
Shares &)
2016 2015
—REF T —AhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT AT
Authorised: VERE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each 10,000,000, OOO % iﬁxﬁfﬁ
(2015: 10,000,000,000 of HK$0.2 each) 028z E@BR( =T —
£ 1 10,000,000,000/% HX
E1E0.247T) 2,000,000 2,000,000
2016 2015
—"NE —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
6,172,892,344 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each 6,172,892, 344 Hxiﬂxﬁﬁo 2
(2015: 6,242,637,344 of HK$0.2 each) BrzEmR(ZE—
F 1 6,242,637,344 % %ﬂxﬁ
80.2%57T) 1,248,527
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RABRARZ ZFEFPEMT -
follows:
Number of Share
shares in Share  premium
issue capital account Total
BT & 17
EhE EE] %N mERR 5T
Notes ‘000 shares HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B TFh% FET FET FET
At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—H—H 9,061,797 906,180 1,030,370 1,936,550
Share consolidation on R-ZE—HF=HAWMAH
4 March 2015 EITRMDE O (a) (4,530,899) - - -
Issue of shares upon placing Bl &7 % (b) 1,464,000 292,800 651,476 944,276
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —RHE QA (c) 138,300 27,660 78,831 106,491
Issue of consideration shares ZE{THRBEI&HD (d) 105,439 21,087 56,816 77,903
Exercise of share options TTE AR HE (e) 4,000 800 5,139 5,939
At 31 December 2015and RZZE—HF
1 January 2016 +ZA=+—8AkK
—T—XH¥—HA—H 6,242,637 1,248,527 1,822,632 3,071,159
Issue of consideration shares (T (EIXHD (d) . . 6,655 9,680
Shares repurchased eI G5 () . . (22,881)  (39,855)
Released of awarded shares fR$ IR EEENEHEITE T
under the share award Z BRI D
scheme (1,257) (1,257)
At 31 December 2016 RIZ—RF
+=-—A=+—H 6,172,892 1,234,578 149 3,039,727
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Share consolidation

On 4 March 2015, in an extraordinary general meeting, the

shareholders of the Company have approved the following: (i) every

two issued and unissued shares of HK$0.10 each were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.20; and (ii) the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 5,000,000,000 consolidated shares to HK$2,000,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 consolidated shares by the creation of an
additional 5,000,000,000 consolidated shares.

Issue of shares upon placing

(i)

Issue of shares upon placing on 26 March 2015

To broaden the shareholder base and the capital base of the
Company, on 10 March 2015, the Company entered into a
placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement ") with Vision
Finance International Company Limited for the placing of up
to an aggregate of 465,000,000 new shares to the placees at
the placing price of HK$0.52 per placing share (the “Placing
1”), which was at a discount of approximately 8.77% to the
closing price of HK$0.57 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange. The Placing | was completed on 26 March 2015
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement |. The net proceeds received from the Placing |
were approximately HK$239,382,000, after deducting relevant
expenses of HK$2,418,000, and the net placing price was
HK$0.515 per placing share. The nominal value of these
shares of HK$93,000,000 was credited to share capital and the
balance of HK$146,382,000 was credited to share premium. The
proceeds were used as the funding of acquisition of various
land and subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Issue of shares upon placing on 27 May 2015

To broaden the shareholder base and the capital base of the
Company, on 15 May 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the "Placing Agreement I1”) with Guotai Junan
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and Grand Cartel Securities
Company Limited (the “Joint Placing Agents”), whereby the
Company agreed to place, through the Joint Placing Agents,
on a best efforts basis, up to 999,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.2 each to the placees at the placing price of HK$0.72
per placing share (the “Placing 11”), which was at a discount of
approximately 17.24% to the closing price of HK$0.87 per share
as quoted on the Stock Exchange. The Placing Il was completed
on 27 May 2015 in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the Placing Agreement Il. The net proceeds received from the
Placing Il were approximately HK$704,894,000, after deducting
relevant expenses of HK$14,386,000, and the net placing price
was HK$0.706 per placing share. The nominal value of these
shares of HK$199,800,000 was credited to share capital and the
balance of HK$505,094,000 was credited to share premium. The
proceeds were used as the funding of acquisition of various

land and subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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31. BAR(E)

B & -

(a) BirE 6
R-Z—AF=FAMWE  EREEI KX
gL BREMETIESE: \EMBRER
HE0I0BITZEBITRABITRG A 6
B—RR0.20 T2 A G ¢ R (i) #5158 %
5,000,000,0008% & A% 1% » 8 1,000,000,000
77T (5 45,000,000,0008 & GEE 1D ) - A
A AA E B AN 48 50 = 2,000,000,0003% 7T (2
/410,000,000,0008% & HFA% 1) °

(b) EERBTRE

(i) REZZE—RAF=A=-t+"HEEK%E
1T
BERAARARZBREBREARE
W R=ZT—AF=A+AH AR A
HESSBRAERARGLES R
Z(E—HEEHE]  KESES
IR FD & A% 190.5278 7T (BB R AT T iR &
B%0.57 T 2 T BT :& 418.77% ) ]
AR ABL & 5 % A $£465,000,0008% 37
B (TE—REEEHE]) - BIEF—
DERE W Z ERRIEH - E—IRES
EETEOR -_E-—AE=A=-1tAH
SERK © AZHIBR 2,418,000/ 7T 2 AH RA R
%% AF—RERESERKRZFAE
FRIEF B4 5239,382,000/8 7T ¢+ %
it EEBRTRESRMN0.5158TT © %
Z %5 £ $193,000,00078 7T 2 E AR A
BEAN - T 146,382,0007% 7T 2 &R 58 All 5T
AR E - FTSRIERAREMNRE
E-_T-—RF+-A=+—HItEE
g E L RHIEB AR

(i) R-E—RFRA -+ ARER
TR
BEARARDZBREERREARE
B R=T—AFAA+HEA  EAA
RIEBERELER(ED)ARAQF
REABHERAR([HERER
BDIIVEEHE(E_MHESH
#1) Bt ARFRIRAEEBYE
EERERSEAZIREEETR
Bl & B9 0.728 7T (BB R FTFTiR &
§%0.87 % T 2 T B T8 4017.24% )
1A 7 B A B2 & 5 % 999,000,000 f% &
fRo2FB T2 #HBRM ([ EZREEE
FH]) F-AREEFTEREE =
DREBHENERRKEER =T
—RAFRA=-+ERAREK - LMK
14,386,000 THIMEER 12 - B%
ZOR R EIE R A PTG SR F FE LY
£704,894,000/ 7T - MFREEA
FRREEID0.706E T © ZERN
£#0199,800,0007% 7T 2 H B 5T A Bk
7 0 11 505,094,000 7T 2 £ 58 Al &+
AR E(E o FriS sk BA R BN NE
E_ZE-—RFE+-A=+—RAILFE
WEZEL i RHTEAF -

AT B R R R A

BERAR ZFB—AFEH
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 31 July 2015, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of
138,300,000 new ordinary shares of the Company as the consideration
for the acquisition of Jing Tou Holding Limited (“Jing Tou Holding”).
Further details of the acquisition are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements. The aggregate fair value of the 138,300,000 ordinary
shares, determined by reference to the closing quoted market price
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange at acquisition
date, amounted to HK$106,491,000, of which HK$27,660,000 and
HK$78,831,000 were credited to the share capital and share premium
account of the Company, respectively.

Issue of consideration shares

Acquisition of properties in Beijing

On 28 August 2015, the Company allotted and issued 93,243,806
consideration shares at HK$0.75 per share to an independent third
party as part of the consideration for the acquisition of certain
properties in the PRC. The fair value of the consideration shares,
determined by reference to the closing quoted market price of
the Company’ shares on the Stock Exchange at the acquisition
date, amounted to HK$69,000,000, of which HK$18,648,000 and
HK$50,352,000 were credited to the share capital and share premium
account of the Company, respectively.

Acquisition of Golden Sun

On 30 November 2015, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate
of 12,195,122 consideration shares at HK$0.73 per share as the first
instalment of the share consideration for the acquisition of Golden
Sun (note 23). Upon the issuance of such consideration shares,
HK$2,439,000 and HK$6,464,000 were credited to the share capital and

share premium account of the Company, respectively.

Acquisition of Beijing Xibu

On 4 January 2016, the Company allotted and issued an aggregate of
15,125,000 new ordinary shares of the Company as the consideration
for the acquisition of Beijing Xibu Commerce & Trading Co., Ltd.
("Beijing Xibu"). The aggregate fair value of the 15,125,000 ordinary
shares, determined by reference to the closing quoted market price
of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited at acquisition date, amounted to HK$9,680,000,
of which HK$3,025,000 and HK$6,655,000 were credited to the share

capital and share premium account of the Company, respectively.

Exercise of share options

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the subscription rights
attaching to 4,000,000 share options were exercised at the subscription
price of HK$0.954 per share, resulting in the issue of 4,000,000 shares
for a total cash consideration, before expenses of HK$3,816,000. An
amount of HK$2,123,000 was transferred from the equity-settled share-
based payment reserve to share premium account upon the exercise of
the share options.

&l

IR (#8)
BifeE - ()

(c)

(d)

(e)

U iE — KB AR
RZZ—HELtA=+—0 ' ARREZERK
2174 $£138,300,000 8% A& A &) E i@ A%
NEAKBERREREEERAR([RE
ERDZRE - WESEZE - DFER
HI| 77 B 76 #R 3R BT 734 © 5%138,300,000% &
BRzZBAFHE(E2ERADARKEAR
HEBHIHMBZBRHBmEmESE) A
106,491,000/ 7T+ & H 27,660,000 7T K&
78,831,000 7T 5 Bllat AR A 7] HI AR 48 K AR
DIRER °

BITRERS

g -LvRi S/ ES
RZZ—RAFENAZT+/N\AB ' AREIRER
07582 BKM— BB E=HRERE
793,243,806 IR R BAZ 1 + BAE AR A Bl
BETWEZRE RERHZBRAFE
(B2 EZAREIRKE B HEB IR
R& A5 U T & T 28 5E ) 469,000,000/ 7T @ &
18,648,0007% 7T % 50,532,000 7T 7 Bl 5+ A
AN BRI BE A R B9 e (BB o

Wi iE & KB

R-Z—AF+—A=1+H  ARARSK
0.73 T 2 B8 B8 KB 1T 4 ££12,195,122
RRERD - ERKESASEHRNNRE
ZEEMAR(HE23) - BITRSRERD
% + 2,439,000 7T & 6,464,000 7T 5 Bl 5
AR B BEA K AR H B ER o

WL RE S

RZZF—A"F—AMNA ' AQREE RET
4 #£15,125,00008 AN A "I FTE B - DAEA
WELRELHEARAR([EREZ])
ZRAE ° 5%15,125,0000% L @A% 2 A A FE
(B2EARABRMNAKE B BETBHS
RGFERARERABZ B EMETE)
#39,680,000 7% 7T & H 3,025,000 % T K&
6,655,000 7T BET AA A BB AR AN R AR 19
S (ERR o

THEBERE
HE-_Z-—AF+-_A=+t—HL*E
& + 4,000,000 17 B A% 4 T BT 2 32 B8 42 LA
FROSAB T Z RBEETE - B
3,816,000/ 7T 2 4238 £ B (% FH A1)
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32.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(f) Shares repurchased
The Company purchased 84,870,000, in aggregate, of its shares on
the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of HK$39,855,240, in

aggregate, which were cancelled during the year.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES

Share option schemes

2002 Scheme

Effective from 26 April 2002, the Company operates a share
option scheme (the “2002 Scheme"”) for the purposes of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the 2002 Scheme include (i) any employee or
proposed employee (whether full time or part time, including
any executive director but not any non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity")
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;
(ii) any non-executive director or proposed non-executive
director (including independent non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (iii)
any supplier or potential supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer
or potential customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v)
any person or entity that provides or will provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group or
any Invested Entity; (vi) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued or proposed to be issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity; and (vii) any adviser (professional or
otherwise) or consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and (viii) any joint venture partner or business alliance
that co-operates with any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity in any area of business operation or development.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
options which may be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company to each participant
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

31.

32.
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32.
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (continued)
Share option schemes (continued)

2002 Scheme (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director, or to any of their respective associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company's shares as at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options granted is determinable by the directors, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the
share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of the grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

The number and exercise price of the share options were
adjusted as a result of the rights issue completed on 10 August
2010.

The 2002 Scheme expired in April 2012. The provisions of the
2002 Scheme shall remain in full force and holders of all options
granted under it prior to such termination shall be entitled to
exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the terms of it until
expiry of the said options.

32.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (continued) 32. RO XAHEETE
Share option schemes (continued) BB MRS &I (&)
2002 Scheme (continued) —EF_FE(E)
The following share options were outstanding under the 2002 FR - T _FAEENEERITEZE
Scheme during the year: RERER R -
2016 2015
ZE-XRF “T—hF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
IR 91T EE BRESE MEFHITEE B EE A
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
per share per share
BRET a7 BT +15
At 1 January n—HA—H 0.477 17,676
Adjustments arising EEaRDE stz AR N/A (8,838)
from the share i A
consolidation”

Exercised during the year FR{T{# 0.954 (4,000)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H 0.954 4,838
i During the year ended 31 December 2015, as a result of the share * HE_Z-—FRF+-_A=+—HIFE -

consolidation on 4 March 2015, the number of the outstanding share R-E—RF= ANBETROEGH @ BIE

options under the 2002 Scheme was adjusted to 8,838,000 and the

exercise price has been adjusted to HK$0.954 per share.

R _FHBMARTEZ BRESE BE
#38,830,0001% * MITHEBHREAEREHK
0.9548 7T «

IEBREFEXEBERDR —B—AFFER
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (continued)
Share option schemes (continued)

2002 Scheme (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

2016

Number of options

BREHE

‘000
T4

32.

BURRAD 2 AF B9 fE =T &1

B E ()

—EE_Fi8(E)
RBERRHRITENBIRAENITEE R

TTEANT

—EB-REF
Exercise price” Exercise period
TEE TR
HK$
per share
BRET

10 January 2010-
9 January 2018

—e-%F-A1AE

=E-—NF—HANAH
2015 —Z—hfF
Number of options Exercise price” Exercise period
B EZE TEE" 1T1E HA
HK$
‘000 per share
Tt BRIETT
10 January 2010-
4,838 0.954 9 January 2018
24— A+AE
—F-N\F—ANnA
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in * MR 2 ATE B A RIR AR R B ATALAR - =k

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company's share capital.

2013 Scheme

On 24 May 2013, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2013 Scheme”) to replace the 2002 Scheme.
Upon termination of the 2002 Scheme, no share options can
be granted under such scheme and holders of all share options
granted under it prior to its termination shall be entitled to
exercise the outstanding share options pursuant to the terms of
it until expiry of such options.

The eligible participants and the terms of the 2013 Scheme are
the same as those of 2002 Scheme.

RRABBAZ BRI Z B T AL -

—F-=Fia
W-F-=FAA=tME  AAARM
SRR B ([ =T — = F 58 ) UEHR
“ET-FHE - MR- FF A

% - AL B LB AR - MR REt
BRI ERBREZREARE
WRIBZ AT B BRSRITE W RITE RO RB AR A
EEZSEREAHSL -

TR -ZHFHEZAERBEE RIGHRE
Z—EFFE AR -
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (continued) 32. UBHAZMAHEESTE(E)

Share option schemes (continued)

2013 Scheme (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the 2013
Scheme during the year:

fB RS ()

ZE—=FF(E)

FAR - ZT-=ZFHEBRTHARTENE
P

2016 2015
—B-RF —E-nf

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
IR ETEE BREHE MEFHTEE BRERA
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000

per share per share
BRET T4 BB Fn
At 1 January w—A—H 230,000 N/A -

@R
Granted during the year  FAKR T 180,000 0.63 230,000
Forfeited during FERFEH (57,000) - -

the year

At 31 December ®R+=-—A=+—8 353,000 0.63 230,000

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

RBEMRARTENBREZTEER
TEHMT

2016 —B-RF
Number of options Exercise price” Exercise period
BRERE TEE TEEH
HK$
‘000 per share
Tt BRET

176,500

176,500

note (a)
Ft=E(a)

note (c)

By (c)

353,000

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (continued)
Share option schemes (continued)
2013 Scheme (continued)

32. ARG ZAEFEEE ()
fBRESH 8 ()

—E—=FiE(AE)

2015 —ET—hF
Number of options Exercise price” Exercise period
B ES A TEE 1T{EE
HK$
‘000 per share
T BRETT
180,000 0.61 note (a)
fi&E(a)
50,000 0.71 note (b)
fiEE(b)
230,000
Notes: Bt et

First 30% of the options granted are vested in one year from 2 April
2015, second 30% of the options granted will be vested in two years
from 2 April 2015 and remaining 40% of the options granted will be
vested in three years from 2 April 2015. Upon the lapse of the vesting

period, the share options are exercisable until 1 April 2025.

First 50% of the options granted are vested in one year from 31 August
2015, and the remaining 50% of the options granted will be vested in
two years from 31 August 2015. Upon the lapse of the vesting period,
the share options are exercisable until 30 August 2025.

First 30% of the options granted will be vested in one year from 28
January 2016, second 30% of the options granted will be vested in two
years from 28 January 2016 and remaining 40% of the options granted
will be vested in three years from 28 January 2016. Upon the lapse of
the vesting period, the share options are exercisable until 27 January
2026.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the

Company's share capital.

(a) EIRFEHZERENR_T-—AFHA_—A
B —FERNRE - £ - HI0%BRELER =
T-RAFNA-—BRAMEREE MK
A%FEREBR =" —RAFMA AR =
FREE - NEBHRNRE  BREEEZ
T_RFWMA—BHAIITEE -

b) HBHHORELZERER-_FT-—HFE/\A
=+ —HEF—FREE - ME_H#50%8H
BESR-_Z—AFNA=1+— B HF
NEE - NEBRAREK  BERER-Z
—HAFENA=+ BRI P

(c) BI0%ELZEREER=-_T—X~F—A
Z+N\BRFA—FANEE © FE=H30%HERK
R =_T—A"F—A=-+/\BRAMEA
BB MER NA0%BREGN =T —RNF—
AZ+NBRA=ZFEARE - RBEB RN
% BREAE-_ZE-_AFE-—A-1++tAH
AJATIE ©

© ERUEZ T E TR AR T AR
AT E MR B T T IA % o
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32.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (continued)
Share option schemes (continued)

2013 Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
under the 2013 Scheme was HK$48,173,000 (weighted average
of HK$0.268 each), of which the Group recognised a share
option expense of HK$26,046,000 during the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).

The fair value of share options granted during the year ended
31 December 2015 was HK$79,802,000 (weighted average
of HK$0.347 each), of which the Group recognised a share
option expense of HK$15,016,000 during the year (2015:
HK$42,153,000).

The fair value of share options granted to employees during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant using a binomial
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The fair value of the services
received as consideration for share options granted during the
year was estimated by reference to the fair values of the share
options as at the dates when the services are received, using the
same binomial model, and taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following
table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) -

Historical volatility (%) 49.48-52.68
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.87-2.04
Expected life of options (year) 9.08-10.00
Weighted average share price 0.42-0.53

(HK$ per share)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measure of the fair value.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE
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AR o = s E st 21 (4])
BARRESTEI (&)

—E—=FiE ()
FRRE-T—=F 2R ERED
A F1E 548,173,000 7T (In4E F 1 & A
FZ0.268%T0)  EFAKREREBE=Z
—NEF-A=+—HI-FEERERE
FI£ 26,046,000 L(ZE—HF : T) °

RNEE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HIEE
HAI 3% 0 A BB AR 2 2 £ B 479,802,000
B (MEFHEATR0IM7BT) &
RN B R F RRERR 15,016,000 L (=
— 4 : 42,153,000/ 70 ) Z BERLHERA = ©

FRREERHABREZ X FETIRE
B E R AR A O R S AR R AR
“IEABREG - FRARRRBE/R D
BRENKREZAFEDE2EBRER
WEURTE A 2 X FEREBR L BRE
EOIGRTR B AR 2 — TR AR Ll EE - TR
FIHFTERAMANE AR

B 2K (%) -

B TE (%) 49.48-52.68

A1 [ Bix 1) 2 (%) 1.87-2.04

HEARETRERT B (5 ) 9.08-10.00

hniEFEHRE 0.42-0.53
(BRHBTT)

BhREZAAHREBRBEBE=ZF2ESL
BEME  RURKRARELEZTER
= o FBHRIE R AT RER - BBERIE
ERRRBB 2R - RURKRERER

BIE R A SR EMARTE
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32.
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (continued)
Share option schemes (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
357,838,000 share options outstanding. The exercise in full of
the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 357,838,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$71,568,000 and share premium of HK$134,257,000
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 357,838,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 5.8% of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at that date.

Share Award Scheme

The share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) of
the Company was adopted by the board of directors of the
Company on 11 September 2015 (the “Adoption Date”). The
purposes and objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to
recognise the contributions by certain participants and to give
incentive to them in order to retain them for the continual
operation and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration
of the board of directors of the Company and the independent
trustee (the “Trustee”) in accordance with the scheme rules and
the trust deed. Unless early terminated by the board of directors
of the Company, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing on the Adoption
Date.

The board of directors of the Company shall not make any
further award of shares which will result in the total number of
the shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme exceeding
10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company at
the date of such award. The maximum number of awarded
shares which may be awarded to a selected participant under
the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company at the date of such award.

32.

AR5 A By e (5T 80 (4]
BB 8 (|)

RIMEBR  ARRARBRBE=ZFZFT=_F&
g k=% — =¥ 2145 357,838,000 &
R ARITE - REBEARAIIRITERE
8 BEATE R ARTTE R B AR IS B B3
77357,838,000 J& 78 A &) 7 X 18 A% K2 4 0
71,568,0007% 7T & % 78 & 134,257,000 7T
2B (CRETEITRX) -

RILEMTERRE B - AR RREBRE
=T 813445 357,838,00017 = A 77 {5 FE AR A
IEARRRIRZ B BT 4I5.8% °

IR 15 22 By =t &1
KAREEER_TE—RAFNAAT+—H
(T8R4 B 5 D SRR R 5 Z Bt 22 B =t &l
(TR BERh=t &1 )) - Bxfn 22T &IRT 8l 2
REFBNRREETSEENERI A
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (continued)
Share Award Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of awarded shares which may be
awarded to a selected participant who is an independent non-
executive director shall not exceed 0.1% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company at the date of such award and
the aggregate value of which shall not exceed HK$5,000,000
(based on the closing price of the shares of the Company on the
business day immediately preceding the date of award).

During the year, a total of 1,884,000 awarded shares was vested
(2015: Nil).

Summary of particulars of the shares granted under the Share
Award Scheme (the “Awarded Shares”) during the year is as
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

32. DRHAZAHRHETE(E)

BBIREST8I ()

AR FEYIERITES Z@ARIEE
ZREBBRNEBE RS T ERBEARRNE
BB A BERITRGEE20.1%
7 8 2B 42 58 11568 8 5,000,000 7T (12
32303 =R )=k = Brdr /NS L L i)
BatE) -

smE

Z
EQFaN

FRALFE,884,000 EBERHG (=T
—RF &) o

FRRER A BB BIR 2 Bt ([ 2R E
Betn DEFE#EINT

2016 2015
ZEB—REF —T—RF
Number Number
Average of Awarded Average  of Awarded
fair value Shares fair value Shares
EIHAFE HBROHE FHATE REKRHEE
HK$ HK$
per share ‘000 per share ‘000
BRAET TR BT T &
(note)
(P &E)
At 1 January W—HA—H N/A -
TiE A
Awarded during the FREEED 0.65 1,884
year
Vested during the year FREE N/A -
TiE A
At 31 December W+—_F=+—H 0.65 1,884

Note: The fair value of the awarded shares was determined based on the

market closing price of the Company’s shares at the grant date.

e - ZEROZAFERBARBDRDNELA
i EEE

IEBREFEXEBERDR —B—AFFER
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SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION SCHEMES (continued) 32. UG XA ETE (&)
Share Award Scheme (continued) AR RESTEI (&)
Movement in the number of shares held under the share award BERNDERTEFENRMNEE EE W
scheme are as follows: ™
2016 2015
—E—XF —T—hF
Number of Number of
shares held shares held
BERGEE BERMHEE
‘000 ‘000
B’ Th%
At 1 January m—HA—8 -
Purchased during the year FAEE 1,884
Vested during the year FAHE -
At 31 December n+=—A=+—H 1,884
RESERVES 33. f&f&

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 74 to 75
of the financial statements.

Equity-settled share-based payment reserve

The Company operates two share option schemes and a
share award scheme as part of the benefits to its employees.
The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of
share options which are yet to be exercised and the fair value
of awarded shares granted which are unvested, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount
will be either transferred to the share premium account when
the related share options are exercised or the related awarded
shares are vested, or be transferred to retained earnings should
the related options expire or related options/awarded shares be
forfeited.

ARETBESBRARAEERBEF
EZEBBRHMBRREAETSE LG
HBBHE27) -

IREAE LR BB R
ARBRA MIAR R & & —HR ) 5
BEtE - MMERERBRERMN—ED o U
B RERNRFEREEEHRITENER
BERERHH RN 2 AFE  FAR
MBEBRME24RNDITRZ 25 H
R - BITERBEBERER  Z2REEH
ERMEE - KA RES Bk Ak
FE RS AR HRED AR 1) 3% 5L 8K Y L BUIRRE R
BEOERBREREREBENE  AZE
B R = R REE IR AR
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34.

RESERVES (continued)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
and the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued for the acquisition under the group reorganisation on 11
April 2002.

Share held for the Share Award Scheme

The consideration paid by the Company for purchasing the
Company’s shares from the market, including any directly
attributable incremental cost, is presented as “Shares held for
share award scheme” and the amount is deducted from total
equity. When the Company/trustee transfers the Company’s
shares to the awardees upon vesting, the related costs of the
awarded shares vested are credited to the “Share held for share
award scheme” account, with a corresponding adjustment
made to the share premium account.

Assets revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose from the change in use from
owner-occupied properties to investment properties carried at
fair value.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(1) Acquisition of Beijing Spirit Commerce & Trading
Limited (the “Beijing Spirit Acquisition”)
On 4 January 2016, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Beijing Spirit Commerce & Trading Limited
("Beijing Spirit”) from Mr. Guo Xiao Fei (“Mr. Guo”), an
independent third party. Beijing Spirit and its subsidiaries
(together, "Beijing Spirit Group”) are principally engaged
in the sale of furniture in the PRC. The Beijing Spirit
Acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to
expand medical and geriatric care related business. The
purchase consideration for the Beijing Spirit Acquisition
consists of (i) cash of RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,936,000), which was paid at the acquisition
date and (ii) 13,158,750, 13,158,750 and 17,545,000
consideration shares to be issued by the Company to
Mr. Guo for each of the three financial years ending 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018, respectively, subject to adjustments dependent on
the performance of Beijing Spirit Group. This contingent
consideration payable was estimated and recognised as
a financial liability at fair value of HK$21,486,000 at the
acquisition date.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Beijing Spirit Group at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of Beijing Spirit's
identifiable net assets.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WEKMBAT(E)
(1) Acquisition of Beijing Spirit Commerce & Trading (1) WELZEEZEEARAA(NLR
Limited (the “Beijing Spirit Acquisition”) (continued) BEWEEE]) (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of IRBEEERWE A B2 735
Beijing Spirit Group as at the date of acquisition were as BENBEARTENT :
follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
TP M e B R B
NFE
Notes HK$'000
ik FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMERE 14 3,022
Inventories 7E 6,829
Trade and bills receivables JEUE SRR R B R & 17,059
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FUA « & & E i EKERTR 18,340
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTH B 1,316
Trade payables ERE SRR (14,850
Receipt in advance Bk (2,826)
Other payables and accruals Hoh BRI T & A (2,177)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BN E ZTHBEEFE
R 26,713
Non-controlling interests IR (10,685)
Goodwill on acquisition e B B 7 R 17 17,394
33,422
Satisfied by: LATRB A RE -
Cash 4 11,936
Contingent consideration shares AR ERGD 21,486
Total purchase consideration HEENRE 33,422
The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$259,000 7N 45 B Bt = R MRS E A 259,000 %8
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been TLZRGEAE - ZERFHERAEE
expensed and are included in administrative expenses X v Wit AR &8 e R E M 2K
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other wmRZITRFAX °
comprehensive income.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be A B 2 R TR HA AT R BR

deductible for income tax purposes. 1S e
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(1)

Acquisition of Beijing Spirit Commerce & Trading
Limited (the “Beijing Spirit Acquisition”) (continued)
As part of the purchase agreement, contingent
consideration is payable, dependent on the amount of
net profit of Beijing Spirit Group for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018. The
initial amount recognised was HK$21,486,000, which was
determined using the Monte Carlo Simulation model
under the income approach and was within Level 3 fair
value measurement.

As of 31 December 2016, the fair value of the contingent
consideration liability was remeasured at HK$15,029,000.
A gain of HK$6,457,000 resulted from the change in
fair value of the contingent consideration liability was
recognised in other income and gains in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WEBHIE A B (4E)
(1) Acquisition of Beijing Spirit Commerce & Trading (1) WELtZREZFEARAA(TLER
Limited (the “Beijing Spirit Acquisition”) (continued) BEWEEE ) (%)
An analysis of cash flow in respect of the Beijing Spirit tREREWBEENIRESREDM
Acquisition is as follows: UM
HK$'000
TET
Cash consideration RERE (11,936)
Cash and bank balances acquired B2 IR ® RRITAER 1,316
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included SFAREBEESMEREREZRE
in cash flows from investing activities KB eEEDREFERE (10,620)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included AL EBAERENE 2 W
in cash flows from operating activities FIER KA (259)
(10,879)

()

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Since the acquisition, Beijing Spirit Group contributed
HK$112,686,000 to the Group's revenue and profit of
HK$7,273,000 to the consolidated results for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year, the revenue from continuing operations of the Group
and the loss of the Group for the year would have been
HK$163,856,000 and HK$88,008,000, respectively.

Acquisition of Beijing Xibu (the “Beijing Xibu
Acquisition”)

On 4 January 2016, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Beijing Xibu from Mr. Zhu Gang (“Mr. Zhu"), an
independent third party. Beijing Xibu and its subsidiary
(together, "Beijing Xibu Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacture of furniture and the researching
and developing for geriatric furniture. The Beijing Xibu
Acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to
expand medical and geriatric care related business. The
purchase consideration for the Beijing Xibu Acquisition
consists of (i) consideration shares of HK$9,680,000,
which were issued and allotted at the acquisition date
as detailed in note 31(d) and (ii) 13,975,500, 13,975,500
and 18,634,000 consideration shares to be issued by the
Company to Mr. Zhu for each of the three financial years
ending 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018, respectively, subject to adjustments
dependent on the performance of Beijing Xibu Group.
This contingent consideration payable was estimated
and recognised as a financial liability at fair value of
HK$20,894,000 at the acquisition date.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Beijing Xibu Group at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of Beijing Xibu's
identifiable net assets.

(2)

BWBEEERE tEEEEBAAR
=3 F B U A 112,686,000 7T » I
REBEE_ZE—X"F+=_A=+—8
W FEZEEEEEST,273,0007%8
TCZ A o

WAEHEFNELE  AEER
RZRFECEEBRAREE
&5 48 Bll % Bl & 163,856,000 78 7T
88,008,000/ 7T, °
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(2)

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

34.

Acquisition of Beijing Xibu (the “Beijing Xibu

Acquisition”) (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Beijing Xibu Group as at the date of acquisition were as

follows:

Wy B s B 2 R) ()

(2) BWBRAEREHS(XERELSKRES
5 ) (&)
ItREFEERYE B e &5
BENMBEBEZATEDT

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
TP M e B R
NEE
Notes HK$'000
ik FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 14 298
Inventories 7E 2,001
Trade receivables JEWE 5 R 7,232
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FUA « & & E h EKERTR 6,643
Cash and bank balances Re RRITER 66
Trade payables ERE SRR (8,584)
Receipt in advance Bk (2,549)
Other payables and accruals Hoh BRI T & A (6,752)
Tax payable JERTRLIE (95)

Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value RAFER Z A BRI EEFE
k] (1,740)
Non-controlling interests JEiZ AR RS 496
Goodwill on acquisition e B B 7 R 17 31,618
30,574

Satisfied by: LATRB A RE -

Consideration shares issued BEITRERD 9,680
Contingent consideration shares HARERGD 20,894
Total purchase consideration HEENRE 30,574

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$259,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been

expensed and are included in administrative expenses

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be

deductible for income tax purposes.

REBEREBEFTBEEEZRSHK
7N £ 259,000 70 c ZER Z KA
ERGAESREMEEKRERE
8 Wt ATTHRB ©

& B RER 2 i B TR A AT A R0 B
FSHL -
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(2) Acquisition of Beijing Xibu (the “Beijing Xibu
Acquisition”) (continued)
As part of the purchase agreement, contingent
consideration is payable, dependent on the amount of
net profit of Beijing Xibu Group for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018. The
initial amount recognised was HK$20,894,000 which was
determined using the Monte Carlo Simulation model
under the income approach and was within Level 3 fair
value measurement.

An analysis of cash flow in respect of the acquisition of
Beijing Xibu Group is as follows:

34.

W B st B 2 R) ()

(2)

WREERES(ERELSKRES
5 ) (&)
ERBEWHRZ 8D BNHA
REFRRLEREFKEBRE_F
—NF B EFR_FNF
TZ A=+ -—HIE=ZEFEXF
ZRHNEHE TR ZEER
20,894,000 7T * JThERAWAIET Z
SERERRELETF Yt AR
=R FEFEAR -

RBBLERESEEANRSTEESD
HranR :

HK$'000
THET

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included
in cash flows from investing activities

FAREEHAEREREZRE
ke EEYMRANFRE 66

Transaction costs of the acquisition included AL EBMMERENE 2 W
in cash flows from operating activities FIERGKA (259)
(193)

Since the acquisition and before disposal, Beijing Xibu
Group contributed HK$43,468,000 to the Group's revenue
and profit of HK$2,661,000 to the consolidated results for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year, the revenue from continuing operations of the Group
and the loss of the Group for the year would have been
HK$163,856,000 and HK$88,008,000, respectively.

On 18 November 2016, the Group and Mr. Zhu entered
into the supplemental agreement, pursuant to which the
parties agreed to terminate all outstanding rights and
obligations under the purchase agreement with respect
to, among others, the post-completion allotment and
issue of the consideration shares, the profit guarantee of
Beijing Xibu and the right of first refusal of Mr. Zhu with
effect from the date of 18 November 2016.
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Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 sRk& Mt

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(2)

(3)

Acquisition of Beijing Xibu (the “Beijing Xibu
Acquisition”) (continued)

As of 18 November 2016, the fair value of the contingent
consideration liability was remeasured, and a gain of
HK$6,373,000 resulted from the change in fair value of
the contingent consideration liability was recognised in
other income and gains in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 18 November 2016.

In connection with and as a result of the amendment
proposed in the supplemental agreement, the Group's
remaining interest in Beijing Xibu reduced to 24.5% and
was recognised as an available-for-sale investment which
was initially measured at fair value on the date of disposal
(note 35).

Acquisition of Golden Sun (the “Golden Sun
Acquisition”)

On 31 January 2016, the Group acquired 51% equity
interest in Golden Sun from Ms. Huang Xiaorong (“Ms.
Huang”), an independent third party. Golden Sun and
its subsidiaries (together, “Golden Sun Group”), run a
management and service supporting business for the
non-profit organisations. The Golden Sun Acquisition
was made as part of the Group's strategy to expand
medical and geriatric care related business. The purchase
consideration for the Golden Sun Acquisition consists of
(i) cash of RMB111,429,000 (equivalent to HK$132,511,000),
which was paid on 7 November 2015; (ii) consideration
shares of HK$8,902,000, which were issued and allotted
on 30 November 2015; and (iii) 5,792,683, 9,214,570 and
13,956,162 consideration shares to be issued by the
Company to Ms. Huang for each of the three financial
years ending 31 December 2016, 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2018, respectively, subject to adjustments
dependent on the performance of Golden Sun Group.
This contingent consideration payable was estimated
and recognised as a financial liability at fair value of
HK$3,616,000 at the acquisition date.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Golden Sun Group at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of Golden Sun Group's
identifiable net assets.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

34. WiBHE QAR (&)

(2)

(3)

AL B8 7 G

WEBELERES(ERESURES
15 ) ()
R-FB—RF+—A+/\B - HA
HREBBENAFEESHITE M
IAREBERENAFEZGMES
73 816,373,0008 TH W E R B E
—EARFEtT-ATNBLEFEEHE
maEakHEMEERRRPHE
il WA R RS TSR o

FRkRABABREERZ 2B - &
SERIEREFR T Z2ERRE
245%  WHERBJHIHERE -
RE B RA FETZE (M
35) °

WiE AR ([ KRB WEEE])

R=ZT—XRF—HA=+—8 ' K&
BEE—2BIYF=-hHa/lABKL
([Ezt ) WEES KRG Z51%Es °
SAGREMBAR(HRE [ €AB
B8] AFEF RN EETE KRR
BIRER - e ABRESTEAR
EEEE B R EE AR SR
Z2—Enc 2 AGKEEEZEE
KREBEOIRE ARE111,429,000
70 (¥ & 7 132,511,000 T) * B
R—ZZE—RE+—AtB Xt
(i) X B P% 19 8,902,0008 7t * HEE
RZE—RAF+—A=+B%ET
REE  RINRBEZZ —RF
+=—A=+—R - ZE—tF+=
A=z+—Bk=ZF—N\F+=A
=T —HAL=EMBREESSF @ &~
RN A% 5 Bl [ & 22 - 8175,792,683
B ~ 9,214,570 f% 513,956,162 f% X
BRD - A RESABERRE
BT IAFAE o WREMRAREBRI
BHEGETAERASRERE A
F1E 53,616,000/ 7T °

AEBEEERIFEREREEES K
B5 & B 2 AT s B B B R B 2 L Pl ET
ESKBEE 2 IFERER -

SEBRAE —EB—XREFEFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(3) Acquisition of Golden Sun (the “Golden Sun

34. WEKMBAR(E)
3) WEEAB([LABWEEE])

Acquisition”) (continued) (#&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of AGEBRWEBR AN #HRE
Golden Sun Group as at the date of acquisition were as ERBREZATERT :
follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
UK BB R RERR A
NFE
Notes HK$'000
ik FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 14 177
Other intangible asset Hib & E 18 7,811
Inventories rE 775
Due from a non-controlling shareholder JFE U — % FEFE AR AR B SRR 28,541
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B FUA « & & E i EKERTR 21,384
Cash and bank balances e RIRIT4ES 95,626
Receipt in advance Bk (309)
Other payables and accruals Hoh BRI T & A (32,171)
Tax payable FERTHLIE m
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RNV A Z B A E
FERRE 121,833
Non-controlling interests IR (59,698)
Goodwill on acquisition e B B 7 R 17 82,894
145,029
Satisfied by: LATRB A RE -
Cash B 132,511
Consideration shares issued EEITRERD 8,902
Contingent consideration shares AR ERGD 3,616
Total purchase consideration HEERE 145,029

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$921,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(3)

Acquisition of Golden Sun (the “Golden Sun
Acquisition”) (continued)

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

As part of the purchase agreement, contingent
consideration is payable, dependent on the amount of
net profit of Golden Sun Group for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018. The
initial amount recognised was HK$3,616,000 which was
determined using the Monte Carlo Simulation model
under the income approach and was within Level 3 fair
value measurement.

As of 31 December 2016, the fair value of the contingent
consideration liability was remeasured at HK$2,590,000. A
gain of HK$847,000 resulted from the change in fair value
of the contingent consideration liability was recognised in
other income and gains in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

34. WEHE2R (&)

(3)

WREEAB(TEABWEEE])
()

BB B R 2 B TR A AT A (EH0 R
FRiS®i °

ERBEERE . —Hn  BRHEZA
REBRARESAGEERHEE=Z
—RNF - ZE—EFRZFT-N\F
+ - A=+ HIL=EAFE&F
ZHNESE - VITHERZSRER
3,616,000/ 7T + TIEFERABAETZ
SERERBRERNETE Wit ASF
=RATEFEA o

RZF—R"EF+ZA=+—8 ' %
RREEBENATFTEEHTEA
2,590,000/ 7T - KA KREEBENHA
1B & ) F7 = A & 20847,00055 T
HKHEREBEE_ZT—~FE+=A
=t BLEFEREGEE B RHAM
2 TH UK 2 2R A LA U A R Uk S T

=7
o

ItERBREEFEXEBERAR —B—AFFR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WEEKMBAT(E)
(3) Acquisition of Golden Sun (the “Golden Sun 3) WE2AB(T2ABWEEHE])
Acquisition”) (continued) (#&)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition HKESAGEENEESRES T
of Golden Sun Group is as follows: U
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration HeRE (132,511)
Cash and bank balances acquired BUiE 2R ® RIRITAER 95,626
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included AAREEHMERERECZHS
in cash flows from investing activities KR eEEYREFRE (36,885)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included AL EBMERENE 2 W
in cash flows from operating activities FIERGKA (921)
(37,8006)
Since the acquisition, Golden Sun Group contributed ANESIEE  2ABERAKRE

(4)

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

HK$4,953,000 to the Group's revenue and caused a loss
of HK$8,114,000 to the consolidated results for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the
year, the revenue from continuing operations of the Group
and the loss of the Group for the year would have been
HK$163,994,000 and HK$88,229,000, respectively.

Acquisition of Top-Doctors (the “"Top-Doctors
Acquisition”)

On 21 October 2015, the Group acquired a 35% equity
interest in Top-Doctors through capital injection at cash
consideration of HK$17,430,000 and Top-Doctors was
accounted for as an associate of the Group. On 5 August
2016, the Group acquired additional 30% equity interest in
Top-Doctors from certain existing shareholders through a
series of share transfer agreements at cash consideration
of HK$5,382,000. Top-Doctors became a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group. Top-Doctors was engaged
in on-line medical and nursing service. The Top-Doctors
Acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to
expand its business related to geriatric care.

(4)

B & Bt A 4,953,0005 7T ¢ I E R
Bz T—XFt+-_A=+—81t
FEZIREEEESES,114,000% T
pd it "I

WEMHEFIERLE  AEBREF
RZHEBECEEBRAREAEH
&5 18 B % Bl A& 163,994,000 % 7T &
88,229,000/ 7T °

WEBEREHE(REHBEWRES
17 )

R—T—AF+A=+—8 &&
B35 3B+ & U E R B BA35% i i
/L RBA17,430,0008 7T + i R B
B EADIEREBZEE AR - R
T—XNENFRR AEHEEB—
RyBHhEEREEE THARRE
IR BE R BB BE KA IN30% i es © IR
& 45,382,000/ 7T - R B K A
REBEZIIZENBRAR - REBH
BREERBERERRY - RE&
GRNEEEARNEERBESE
TR REE 2 — 2D ©
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34. ACAQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(4)

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

34. WEKMBAT(E)

Acquisition of Top-Doctors (the “"Top-Doctors
Acquisition”) (continued)

The Group held 35% equity interests in Top-Doctors
before obtaining the control of it. The Group remeasured
the fair value of the equity interest held at the date of
acquisition at an amount of HK$17,823,000, and fair value
gain of HK$2,495,000 was recognised in other income and
gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income during the year ended 31
December 2016 (note 5).

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Top-Doctors at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of Top-Doctors’ identifiable net
assets.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

(4) WBRREEKE(IREBEHEWEBE
15 |) (48)
RESEEFER  AEEFEAR
B E3S%ER c AEBEEHE
REERBHFENEE 2 A AFERS
17,823,000/ 87T * WHEZE —ZF—~
FE+-A=t—HILEENKELIE
mREMEEKRRZEMRAR
W 25 & 5R.2,495,00078 7T 2 A FE U
5 (FizE5) o

AEBREBRIFEREREGERE

BRI BN EEFEZLPGE
REEH B JRE M AR o

REHBBENYE R R E5EE

Top-Doctors as at the date of acquisition were as follows: REBEBEZAFENT :

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
T B s FERR
NEE
Notes HK$'000
{55 FET
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB RRE 14 1,210
Other intangible assets HinmZ&E 18 6,871
Due from non-controlling shareholders JE U I 12 S A 3R 0 TE 5,382
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JEfFUA « 1£& M E M EKIRIR 76
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTH & 9,483
Trade payables ERTE SRR (54)
Other payables and accruals H b BRI ET B A (34)
Tax payables FERT IR (40)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIABE 30 (1,451)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATE 2 IH B EEFE
BEE 21,443
Non-controlling interests IR (7,5095)
Goodwill on acquisition W RE RS 2 2 17 9,267
23,205

Satisfied by: ATFIAERER
Cash He 5,382
Fair value of equity interest previously FEER—BEE R RRER

held as investment in an associate a2 AN FE 17,823
Total purchase consideration LEENRE 23,205

ItREREFEXEERBRAR —B-AFFR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(4)

Acquisition of Top-Doctors (the "Top-Doctors (4)

Acquisition”) (continued)

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$287,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in administrative expenses
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition

34. WEKMBAT(E)
WEBEREHA(REHRBEWES
17 ])(48)
REERLWEETEEEZRFHK
7N £287,0008 70 c ZER ZKA
ERfpeEakEMmrEEERE
8 - WAt ATTHAX -

HRUEEREBMBNRSRED TN

of Top-Doctors is as follows: K
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration ReNRE (5,382)
Cash and bank balances acquired BUiE R ® RIRITAER 9,483
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included AAREEHMERERECZHS
in cash flows from investing activities KR eEEMRNFRE 4,101
Transaction costs of the acquisition included AL EB GRS NE 2 W
in cash flows from operating activities FIERGKA (287)
3,814

Since the acquisition, Top-Doctor contributed HK$679,000
to the Group's revenue and caused a loss of HK$1,403,000
to the consolidated results for the year ended 31

December 2016.

BWEEELE REBEHBEAREEH
BRI A 679,000 7T © WEHEE
TE-—XFEt+-_A=t+—HItEE
ZHERA EEEE1,403,000/8 7T 2 6

8o
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(5)

Acquisition of Choice Development Inc. (the “Choice
Acquisition”)

On 9 May 2016, the Group acquired a 100% interest in
Choice Development Inc. (“Choice”) from an independent
third party, at cash consideration of RMB128,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$153,207,000). A
subsidiary of Choice owns certain lands located in the
PRC. The Choice Acquisition has been accounted for
by the Group as an acquisition of assets as the entity
acquired by the Group does not constitute a business.
Cash consideration of RMB122,100,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$145,520,000) was paid by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the remaining consideration payable of RMB6,400,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$7,155,000) was included
in the Group's other payables and accruals at 31
December 2016.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z =%

—AEFZASF—ALEE

34. WEKMBAT(E)

(5) WEBHNRAFROERAT(TUE
WEg=E )
R=ZFE—X"FRANA "&EEH
— BB E=HWENFEEIF R
MBERABI(IME])  BEKE
A A R #128,500,0007T (HBE R4
153,207,000/ 7T) » TR —FEIMT B A
AEEE TMNRPEMNLH - AR
NEFEFTUE 2 BREYEK—IB
X% AEEBMNRKESEENE
ERBERAAR A£EEEREE
—E-—RE+-_A=t+—BHILEE
>+ AR %122,100,0007T (B E A4
145,520,000/ 7T ) F3E R - Mk
TER B A R #6,400,0007C (FHE
R #97,155,0008 L) ERN =F —~F
+ZA=+—RHsFAREERNHA
R R IEFTER ©

MAREE Rz AZAIEENRE

Choice as at the date of acquisition were as follows: BERAFEWT :

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

Fﬂiﬁﬁﬁ—rﬁﬁw

NEE

Notes HK$'000

ik FET

Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMERE 14 1,647

Prepaid land lease payments TEfT i S 16 151,560

Inventories 7E 1,779

Trade receivables FEUL BAE A BIRIE 3,382

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{FUIE - &d K& E 0 EUGK 3,628

Trade payables ERE SRR (157)

Receipt in advance Bk (53)

Other payables and accruals H A eI RIE R T B A (7,438)

Tax payable FERTBEK (1,141

Total identifiable net assets at fair value RATFERHREEFEERE 153,207
Satisfied by: ATEIRRER

Cash Be 153,207

ItEREEFEXSBERAR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WHEEKIB AT (E)
(5) Acquisition of Choice Development Inc. (the “Choice (5) WEBNRAFRAERDIA([TKE
Acquisition”) (continued) WEE=EE]) (&)
The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$276,000 AEBEFLKEBTEEEZR K
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been N 7276,000% JT ° % FE R H KA
expensed and are included in administrative expenses ERGEREmREMEERERX
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other i Wt ATTHFAX -
comprehensive income.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition BN RKBEEBRZ2REREON
of Choice is as follows: UM
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration HeNE (153,207)
Cash and bank balances acquired BUiE 2R ® RIRITAER -
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included AAREEHMERERECZHS
in cash flows from investing activities KR eEEDREFRE (153,207)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included AL EB GRS NE 2 W
in cash flows from operating activities FIERGKA (276)
(153,483)
(6) Acquisition of Zhi Jian Limited (the “Zhi Jian (6) WEERERAGD(ERUES

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Acquisition”)

On 29 May 2015, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Zhi Jian Limited from a wholly-owned subsidiary
of BPHL. Zhi Jian Limited indirectly owns approximately
an 82.24% equity interest in Lugang. Lugang owns four
parcels of industrial land with a total area of 161,498.66
square meters for a common term expiring on 17 May
2050 for warehouse and office uses. Zhi Jian Limited and
its subsidiaries (together, “Zhi Jian Group”) are principally
engaged in the logistic services, property leasing and
property management services in the PRC.

After completion of the Zhi Jian Acquisition, the Group
intends to demolish the buildings and structures on such
land and change the use of such land to non-logistics
function. The Zhi Jian Acquisition was made as part of
the Group's strategy to expand its medical and geriatric
care business. The purchase consideration for the Zhi Jian
Acquisition was in the form of cash, with HK$408,000,000
paid at the acquisition date.

15 )
R-ZZE—RAFRA-_TNB &&E
EEltRER—HME2ENBRAK
BERARQAI00BKE - ZEH
fRA ) FEERS A EA482.24% %
W o PEBHERBEIER161,498.66F
HARRIE TEA(EEERBA
=B ZETHMEAR-_ZERTHE
FATERER EREBRAFAR
HMIBAR(5HE [ EREE]EE
RAEBEREMRRE  WEBRER
MEER R o

RERWIEEETKEK » AEEH
KhEzELi E2BFRBEY
izt BEERSIEDRY
B BRUBERNAAEEER
HEBEREREEZXBOREZ 3
Do BREBERCBERERR
408,000,000/ 7T - B U EE B &
A e
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(6)

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

34.

Acquisition of Zhi Jian Limited (the “Zhi Jian

Acquisition”) (continued)

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Zhi Jian Group at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of Zhi Jian Group's identifiable net

assets.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Zhi Jian Group as at the date of acquisition were as

follows:

Wy B B B 2 B ()
(6) WEERERLAA(IERUESE

5 ]) (&)
AEERERERER 2 IFERE
73 BB EEREERERZ
BB EEFEZLPIFE -

BREENWERRZAIRBEE
MEERFERAT :

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

T B R TR B

ATE

Notes HK$'000

gz FHET

Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMERE 14 3,846

Investment properties &Y 15 318,259

Prepaid land lease payments BN LTS 16 582,539

Available-for-sale equity investments AJ LS E AR E 3,591

Trade receivables FEUE 5 R R 170

Due from related companies JE Uy A3 A RIFRIA 3,801
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - e KA E W FIE

receivables 25,403

Cash and bank balances e RIRIT4E65 31,502

Trade payables ERTE SRR (331

Due to related companies JERTRAE A RIRIE (384,721)

Other borrowings HAibfE R (5,983)

Other payables and accruals H At eI RIE R AT B A (57,593)

Tax payable FERTBEK (301)

Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 30 (164,391)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value RATEAHNEEFELR 355,791

Non-controlling interests SEFE IR R (63,161)

Goodwill on acquisition U BB B 2 17 115,370

Satisfied by cash R & EN 408,000

ItEREEFEXEBERAR —E—AFFH 183
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WHEEKIB AT (E)
(6) Acquisition of Zhi Jian Limited (the “Zhi Jian 6) WEERERERAR(ERKES
Acquisition”) (continued) 15 ) (48)
The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$736,000 for AEERERUBSEEAZRS
the Zhi Jian Acquisition. These transaction costs have AR A&736,0008 7T © BB S A
been expensed and were included in administrative ERBE_ZT—AF+=-_A=+—
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss HIEFEZHEB= REMEEE
and other comprehensive income for the year ended mR X WEFATTHAX ©
31 December 2015.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be BEEER CEEBEH B ENR
deductible for income tax purposes. Frig%t
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Zhi Jian FHESRKEERCREREDN
Acquisition is as follows: UM
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration ReNRE (408,000
Cash and bank balances acquired BUiE 2R ® RIRITAER 31,502
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included AAREEHMERERECZHS
in cash flows from investing activities KR eEEDREFRE (376,498)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included AL EBMERENE 2 W
in cash flows from operating activities FIERGKA (736)
(377,234)
(7)  Acquisition of Great Delight (the “Great Delight (7) WEEZ(EZWHEEE])

Acquisition”)

On 29 May 2015, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Great Delight from Mr. Xu Wenze, an
independent third party. Great Delight indirectly
owns approximately a 5.56% equity interest in a high-
technology enterprise specialised in the research,
manufacture, demonstration and promotion of products
in relation to boron neutron capture therapy. The Great
Delight Acquisition was made as part of the Group's
strategy to expand its medical and geriatric care business.
The purchase consideration for the Great Delight
Acquisition was in the form of cash, with HK$20,000,000
paid at the acquisition date.
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Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z =%

—NFTZA=1—HIEFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WEKMBAT(E)
(7) Acquisition of Great Delight (the “Great Delight (7) WEEZ(EZEZRWEZEE]) (E)
Acquisition”) (continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities SR RENEARRUEB B2
of Great Delight and its subsidiaries as at the date of BRIEERBEATERT :
acquisition were as follows:
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Fﬂiﬁﬁﬁ—rﬁﬁw
NEE
Note HK$'000
ik FET
Available-for-sale equity investments AJ LS E ARG E 19,004
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHE 1,249
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RN E ZTHBEEFE
“ah 20,253
Gain on bargain purchase recognised in RiREER A IR RS
other income and gains in the consolidated ~ HAhg A R E=TE T ER A E
statement of profit or loss and other BEEWRE
comprehensive income 5 (253)
Satisfied by cash R & EN 20,000
The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$21,000 for AEBERBELZWEFTHELEZRS

the Great Delight Acquisition. These transaction costs
have been expensed and were included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of
approximately HK$253,000 in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2015, which was, in the opinion
of the directors, primarily attributable to the Group's
ability in negotiating the agreed terms of the transaction
with Mr. Xu Wenze, as the Group has good reputation and
sufficient available funds for the ongoing development of
the project.

bR R R

FXZ%521,0008 7T - B ZKAE

RBE-_T-—HF+-_HA=+—H
tEEzGeBEakEtEmis

R - WAt ATTRFT

AEEBRBE T -—HF+ A
=t -RUEFENKREBRREM
i@”& %*ﬁuu%ﬁgﬁ,\ﬂﬁmﬂ
253000/%71: é%uuﬁigﬂmﬁ/\
7N 52 [ B 5 SO St A TE 7R 16D 5E (R AK
MEENRE  ARAEEEE R
BENMEBRBEREZRAGRA
HES -

XEEBRRAR =%

—ANFFH

185



186

Notes to Financial Statements @ 87 s®& M

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WEKMBAT(E)
(7) Acquisition of Great Delight (the “Great Delight (7) WEEZ(EZEZRWEZEE]) (E)
Acquisition”) (continued)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Great FRELTHREZTEZRERESM
Delight Acquisition is as follows: N
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration RERE (20,000
Cash and bank balances acquired EUEEIR & R RITAEER 1,249
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included AAREEHMERERECZHS
in cash flows from investing activities KR eEEYREFRE (18,751)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included AL EHMERENE W
in cash flows from operating activities TS (21)
(18,772)

(8)

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Acquisition of Jing Tou Holding (the “Jing Tou Holding
Acquisition”)

On 31 July 2015, the Group acquired 100% equity interest
in Jing Tou Holding from Mr. Xu Wenze, an independent
third party. Jing Tou Holding indirectly owns a 70%
equity interest in Dragon Ground. Dragon Ground
owns a property in Beijing and is mainly engaged in the
property development and leasing in Mainland China.
After completion of the Jing Tou Holding Acquisition, the
Group intends to use such property for specialist medical
purposes such as orthopaedic surgeons. The purchase
consideration for the Jing Tou Holding Acquisition was
in the form of the allotment and issue of 138,300,000
ordinary shares by the Company at HK$0.77 per share
at the date of acquisition (note 31(c)), amounting to
HK$106,491,000 in aggregate.

(8)

BWBEERER([ZRERKES
17 )

R=ZF—RAFtA=+—8 &%
BB E=AHAOREEWRER
IR 1009% M e o IR P2 IR A 52
BEEH 2 70% A% - BEM A0 JL R
E—HEHYE TEERFREAMHE
EMEBREAE - RRIEERIK
BEIETKE  ASEBRBEEEY
XAEENEESEREERASE -
REEERKESHECEERERLR
BARARRIKEE B BHIAFR0.7775
7T 2 B & B 3% & # 17 138,300,000
B E AL (KT E31(c)) » AL R A
106,491,000/ 7T °
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34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(8)

Acquisition of Jing Tou Holding (the “Jing Tou Holding
Acquisition”) (continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Jing Tou Holding and its subsidiaries as at the date of
acquisition were as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

34.

Wy B B B 2 B ()

(8) WEERER(IZRERUESE

5 ]) (&)

AR R BB A RS A8
ZA B EERBBEAFELT

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

T B R TR B

NEE

Notes HK$'000

ik FET

Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMERE 14 1,093
Investment properties &Y 15 318,084
Trade receivables JEWE 5 R 1,647
Other receivables H A fE U BR K 1,267
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTH B 1,248
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 58 ER17 R H M E R (97,580)
Other payables and accruals H A eI RIE KT B A (68,161)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 30 (63,867)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value RATEAHNEEFELR 93,731
Non-controlling interests SEFE IR R (27,974)
Goodwill on acquisition U BB B 2 17 40,734
Satisfied by shares VAR 13 (81 106,491

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$300,000 for
the Jing Tou Holding Acquisition. These transaction costs
have been expensed and are included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended
31 December 2015.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

AEERRRERRBEREEZ
R 5 K7 /300,000 7T © AR
SRAERBE_T—HF+_H
St-BUEFEZGEaBaAKEM
PEWERIHE - WA ATRAX

B E B R 2 B TR A A A (E 0 ER

FSH -

ItERBREEFEXEBERAR —B—AFFR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WHEEKIB AT (E)
(8) Acquisition of Jing Tou Holding (the “Jing Tou Holding 8) WEERER(IEZRERWES
Acquisition”) (continued) 15 ) (48)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Jing Tou FERRKBEERE RS REON
Acquisition is as follows: UM
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration RERE -
Cash and bank balances acquired BUiE 2R ® RIRITAER 1,248
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included AAREEHMERERECZHS
in cash flows from investing activities MR EEWRANFE 1,248
Transaction costs of the acquisition included AL EHMERENE W
in cash flows from operating activities FIERGKA (300)
948
(9) Acquisition of Nobletree Limited (the “Nobletree (9) UWENobletree Limited([ Nobletree

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Acquisition”)

On 19 June 2015, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Nobletree Limited from Well Treasure
Investment Limited, an independent third party, at a
cash consideration of HK$90,500,800. Nobletree Limited
owns certain office premises located in Hong Kong. The
Nobletree Acquisition has been accounted for by the
Group as an acquisition of assets as the entity acquired by
the Group does not constitute a business.

The fair values of the identifiable assets of Nobletree as at
the date of acquisition were as follows:

WiE=EE )
RZZE—AF<ATNLE x5E
BE—RBYE=Tns8REGRA
7] Y BE Nobletree Limited 100% #
%z - B &K {E /90,500,800 7T °
Nobletree Limited REBH#HA & T
WAEYE - BRAEBEFTIREZ
BRI IEN —EHER  ~AEB
Nobletreeli i = 18 LA & E W
AR ©

Nobletree /AU EE B Hi 2 7] s Bl & &
FEBERAFENT

Fair value
recognised

on acquisition
T UK BE B R RR A
~E
HK$'000
THET

Note
P&

Property, plant and equipment

14 90,501

Total identifiable net assets at fair value
FERE]

Satisfied by cash

IR EER

B ER Z BRI EERE

90,501

90,501
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. WHEKEB QR ()
(9) Acquisition of Nobletree Limited (the “Nobletree (9) UEBNobletree Limited ([ Nobletree
Acquisition”) (continued) WEE=ETE |) ()

(10)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Nobletree
Acquisition is as follows:

Nobletree Z I & RENMTAT -

HK$'000

FET

Cash consideration weNRE (90,501)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included AAREEHMERERECZHS

in cash flows from investing activities KR eEEYREFRE (90,501)

Acquisition of Shanghai Junbo (the “Shanghai Junbo
Acquisition”)

On 4 December 2015, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Shanghai Junbo from Mr. Ding Yerong and
Mr. Xia Guohai, independent third parties, at a cash
consideration of HK$109,931,000. Shanghai Junbo
owns one piece of industrial land with a total area of
20,480 square meters for a common term expiring on 4
March 2065. The Shanghai Junbo Acquisition has been
accounted for by the Group as an acquisition of assets as
the entity acquired by the Group does not constitute a
business.

(10) WIBE L BRB(TLEERRUERE

1H )

R-ZE—RAFE+-_AMAB  ~&EE
B %83 % = 77 Ding Yerong %t & &
Xia Guohai%t £ Yt f#E E/FEL S 100%
f&#E - ] K E A 109,931,000 %5
Lo LBRESHEE—RAEER
20,480F 5Kz T#AH - %L HF
REZTXRNAF=AWBHR - AR
REBWEZEBT IEK—IEE
% AEEE BB WEEEMN
EEWRERAAR -

ItERBREEFEXEBERAR —B—AFFR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34.

(10) Acquisition of Shanghai Junbo (the “Shanghai Junbo
Acquisition”) (continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets of Shanghai Junbo
as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

s B s B A B ()
(10) WIB L BRR(TLEBERRURE

15 ) (&)
LERRR KB AR ZATHAEE
REBERFENAT

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

L B s FE TR

AE

Notes HK$'000

ks FHET

Prepaid land lease payments BN LRSS 16 109,326
Property, plant and equipment M - BREREHE 14 569
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEffFUIE - & & M E A ERFIE 35
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTHEER 1
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRATEHNEEFELTE 109,931
Satisfied by cash” AR S E R 109,931

* Cash consideration of HK$19,726,000 and HK$84,615,000 was
paid by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, respectively, and the remaining consideration payable of
HK$5,590,000 was included in the Group’s other payables and
accruals at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$25,316,000).

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$202,000 for
the Shanghai Junbo Acquisition. These transaction have
been expensed and were included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2015.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the Shanghai
Junbo Acquisition is as follows:

& AREBRBZE-T—A"FR=-ZT—H
F+-ZA=t—BHLEFEFRILZH
19,726,000 7t } 84,615,000/ T 2
WERE - 5,590,000 T2 & T
ERREFARNEER=_Z— A F
+Z A=+ —AZEMEMNRERE
FFEB(ZZ—AF : 25316,00078
JT) e

AEERLESHBBRESEEEL
202,000 B TR BKRA c ZEXR
DIEB LI ATBE-_ZE—RF
+_ A=+ BLFENGELEER
LEMEEmKSER ZITHAS

ERLERERBEEE2HERE
DITEAT :

HK$'000

FHET

Cash consideration RERE (84,615)

Cash and bank balances acquired BUEE 2R e RIRTTER 1
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included ARERYMEReREZRS

in cash flows from investing activities KR EEDREFRE (84,614)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included AL EHMEReRE 2 WS

in cash flows from operating activities FIERGKA (202)

(84,816)
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. HEKMBAT
2016 2015
—E—AE —E—NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LiEss THET FET
Net assets disposed of: BEHEZEE :
Property, plant and equipment W - = K& 14 543 89,508
Investments properties wEMHE 15 - 28,957
Goodwill kS 17 31,618 -
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 17,550 49,302
Prepayments and other receivables TR RRIA B H A fE UL
IR 10,379 23,215
Inventories TE 18,837 -
Cash and bank balances [ MIRTTAE R 2,292 56,867
Trade receivables JEIE Z RN 26,707 2,364
Trade payables FETTE SRR (11,164) (11,829
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNRR M ERE
=2 (12,662) (52,015)
Receipt in advance B ;R (28,814) -
Interest-bearing bank and other FHEERTT R EMER
borrowings (3,604) —
Tax payables FERIRE R (476) (88,572)
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBAE = (4,147)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M SR (369) -
Assets of disposal groups classified PEAEBELEZEE
as held for sale EEEE 679,145
772,801
Exchange fluctuation reserve HNEE R B 5% (58,925)
713,876
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HEMHBAR W~
(&) 5 6,876
Gain on disposal of the discontinued ~ HEDRIMHELE ¥
operations & 11 62,921
783,673
Satisfied by: AR 73 R EST
Cash” Ha* 688,043
Consideration shares issued BEITRERK 95,630
Waive of contingent consideration REEMANNARE
payable -
Remaining interest recognised as HRAEMHIEERE 2
available-for-sale investment R T i 34 -
43,670 783,673
* Consideration receivable of HK$108,900 000 (2015: HK$248,900,000) * 108,900,000 7 ( =F — R 4 : 248,900,000/ 7T )
was included in the Group’s amount due from a related company as at REKR B ARESER _E—AF+A=1—
31 December 2016. HEEK—ABEARA -
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

558

36.

37.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEMBELQTE )
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in EREE—HBARZRE kRS E
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: MR FRZ AT
2016 2015
—E-AE —T—R%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FExT
Cash consideration ReNRE 439,143
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHE RS RRITER (56,867)
Cash and bank balances, which were included BHEZIR& NMIRTTESGH
in assets of disposal groups classified as ADBRIFIEHEZHE
held for sale, disposed of SEEE) (52,477)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FRARE—MWBARZEE
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary KR eEEMRAFRE 329,799
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36. RAREE

On 26 May 2015, the Company received a writ issued by
Lucky Creation Limited (the “Plaintiff”) in the High Court (the
“Action”) against the Company and Mr. Wang Zheng Chun,
an executive director of the Company. In the Action, the
Plaintiff claims against the Company for specific performance
of an alleged agreement to issue and allot 1,236,615,482 new
shares at the price of HK$0.25 per share, loss and damages
to be assessed for the alleged breaches, interest, costs of the
Action and further and/or other relief. The Company filed its
defence on 20 July 2015. Due to the inherent uncertainties of
litigation, the directors of the Company, based on the advice
from the Group's legal counsel, believe that the Company has
a valid defence against the allegation and, accordingly, has not
provided for any claim arising from litigation, other than the
related legal and other costs.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s bank loans, which are secured by the
assets of the Group, are included in note 29 to the financial
statements.

37.

RZZE—RAFRAZ+B  RAREE
WEARAR(TREADSEAARRA
REIMTESTFERRER L 2RFER
SHRTZFARLD) - REZFAF - REA
PIEEBITIEBRRHD0.258 T 2 (B5 5
17 N BE 3£1,236,615,482 % #7 B% 17 #9 45 78
e BRERERFHZEBAREE
FE - ZFRZEAARE—F RS H
EERARARELRE - ARARZZE
—AFLtAZTARREHE - ARFA
ZEBTHEERE REASEEAEERN
ZER  ARRAREERANRA BT EZ
RO A RIE - FBREEEERE
B SN o I 4 B R AR 5 T 3| Bk A9 R (A BB
RIEL B -

BEERA
AEBZBRTER(BAREZEEER)
NN R e
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38. OPERATING LEASES ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to
twenty years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

38. KEHERH

(a)

Within one year —&FR

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

HER

After five years

E_EEFRF(BREEWNS)

ERHBEA

AEERBLEMEERFHEER
EME(HBHARMES) - KHEE
WEBNF —FE=+F - BHK
R—RTERKAPXNREE KA]
RAIRBER TR ERAHBESE

B -

R-ZE—RFE+-A=+—H ' &
& B4R I5 81 H 1 5 5] 37 #9 7 A
LEAER T EAE S B A R R &
KR ERKFIBBENT -

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—F1E
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FHBT
12,343 8,326
39,811 28,442
120,731 123,091
172,885 159,859

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties and staff
quarters under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

(b)

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

F_EFNF(BHEEAREWEF)

EREBEA
AEBRBELEMELHERET
WAEMERBIRS @ KHEHHE

HNF—==%F-

RZF-—RFETZA=t—B" &
SERBETARBELEHEER T
MR MR KK EHEENHAR
LI

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
1,031

216

1,247

IEBREFEXEBERDR —B—AFFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

39. COMMITMENTS 39. EiE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note M b B sE38(b) sl Y 48 & T B AAE - AN
38(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments EFENREERAFEENT ¢

at the end of the reporting period:

2016 2015
—E-RE “T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRTA1B KRB -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BB A 7 117,928
Capital contribution payable to an associate et —fEHE R R 2 & 21,485
Land and buildings Ty R HEF 11,404
150,817
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BABELXS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere (a) BRIEUBBREMBHFLZR
in these financial statements, the Group had the 25 ARERFREBEALE
following transactions with related parties during the TATRS
year:
2016 2015
ZEBE-RF —T—AhfF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s THERT FAET
Interest income from a director RKE—RKEZEZFEUA (i) -
Handling income from a director RE—RESFZFEE
N (i) -
Disposal of a subsidiary to a M—EBARARESEL
company of which a director of  JZRBREM AR HE
the Company is a controlling SEPNGT
shareholder (ii) 668,900
Interest income from a company KB —RBEARATSEEHE
of which a director of the EEBRRRENARZ
Company is a controlling L BUTA
shareholder (ii) 8,611
Acquisition of a company from M—EBERNAREEEE
a major shareholder of the ERBRENDATZ N2
Company HEH% (iii) 408,000
Rental expense to a company WE—BRARAREE
of which a director of the BRE2EEBNRA
Company is a controlling
shareholder (iv) 318
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (continued)

(i)

(iii)

On 28 October 2016, the Group entered into a loan
facility agreement with Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, a
director of the Company, pursuant to which, the
Group provided a loan of HK$135,000,000 for a
term of twelve months, bearing interest at 4.5% per
annum. A handling fee of HK$1,200,000 was charged
and deducted upon the first drawing of loan facility.
Relevant interest receivable of HK$1,012,000 as at
31 December 2016 was included in due from related
parties in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

On 31 March 2015, the Group disposed of World
Wisdom to Jingjun Global,
owned by Mr. Wang Zheng Chun, an executive

a company wholly

director of the Company, for a total consideration of
HK$668,900,000.

The remaining consideration receivable of
HK$108,900,000 (2015: HK$248,900,000) was
pledged with certain land and buildings of Jingjun
Global located in Shanghai and bore interest at a
rate of 3% per annum. During the year, the Group
earned interest income of HK$4,847,000 on the
consideration receivable from Jingjun Global
(2015: HK$8,611,000). The remaining consideration
receivable of HK$108,900,000 and the relevant
interest receivable of HK$2,975,000 as at 31
December 2016 shall be received on 1 April 2017.

On 29 May 2015, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Zhi Jian Limited, a company wholly owned
by BPHL, a major shareholder of the Company, at
the consideration of HK$408,000,000. Further details
of the transactions are included in note 34 to the
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group paid rental expenses of HK$318,000 to

EEEIEEXHFRRAF (Shanghai Caofeng Properties
Company Limited*), which is wholly owned by
Mr. Wang Zheng Chun. The rental expenses were
determined with reference to the prevailing market
rental.

For identification only

Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z =%

40. FEAEE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

AL B8 7 G

—NFTZA=1—HIEFE

X5 (&)
(@) (&)

R—_ZE—XRNF+A=-+N\8"
AEBEAQAREETEERE
SRV ERBE B 0 Bt
ZISEIM —£5135,000,00058
TZER FHAE+ A

Wz4.5% 2 FHEET B o B
HY1,200,000/8 2 FEE - I
RE R EREE BN -

R-_ZE—XR"F+-_A=+—H
AE1,012,0005 7T 2 48 B8 FE Uk
FIEFFAGZE BRI R ZE
UG BAE 5 308 o

R-_ZE—RF=A=+—8"
AEERARRMITESELE
EEREZERBZARIREIR
Ik & World Wisdom » #1%
{8 75668,900,0007% 7T °

JFEULAAE 2 #258108,900,0005%
JL(—Z — F4F : 248,900,000
BIL) B AR HRRAN LE
ZET I REFIRA I
3% 2 FFEFTE - FR -
AEBARBKSHRKEZR
{8 15 4,847,000 7T 2 F &
WA(ZZ—F % : 8,611,000
BIL) R_T—XRE+_F8
=+—8 BRABZHE
108,900,000 7T 2 48 8 & L F)
52,975,000 = —+F Y
A—BUgER -

R-_ZE—RAFRA-+HAE
AEBBBERERAE (A
ARRIEERFILREREE
BAEZRAR)Z100%#E - K
{8 /5408,000,000/87C ° X5 <
HE— B F BRI IR R W
34 0

HE_ZT—RF+=-A=+—
AIEFEHM - AEBMIELE
EhRE2EREZ LEEEE
¥ B R A A X 11318,000% T
ZHEMAY - MERAI KR
ERTMHBAERET -

SEBRAE —EB—XREFEFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 40. BABEA RS (&)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) AEETFTEZEASHME:
Group:
In the opinion of the directors, the directors and the EERR ARAAEEREETH
chief executive of the Company represented the key ABEIAEEFTZERAE - B
management personnel of the Group. Further details EERFETHRAEME 2E—F
of directors’ and the chief executive’s emoluments are BRI SRR T EES o

included in note 8 to the financial statements.

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. BRERES2EMTA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial R|EHR > SERERTEZERAEAN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
2016 —E—RE
Financial assets EWMEE
Financial
assets
measured at Available-
fair value for-sale
through  Loans and financial
profit or loss receivables assets Total
BATE
REZIE ERRER e
ZEREE R SREE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT TET FTET FHET
Available-for-sale AEHERE
investments - 11,295
Trade receivables EUE FEER 12,013 12,013
Due from related parties fEUR s 7 708 247,887 247,887

Financial assets included in 5+ ATEFUE « & &
prepayments, deposits and ~ HAhEWBEF 2

other receivables ERMEE 188,295 188,295
Financial assets at fair value  #EiBiEz AR FESERE 2

through profit or loss TmmEE - 134,687
Pledged deposits [ e 21,900 21,900

Cash and cash equivalents B kBEEEY 298,204 298,204

134,687 768,299 11,295 914,281
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 41.

2016 (continued)

Financial liabilities

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

BRERS S 2EMT A
—B—AF(H)

ERaE

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit or loss
Designated

as such

upon initial
recognition
FEBBzmN
AFESRZ
THasE

R BRBEIEE
HK$'000

THET

Trade payables

Financial liabilities included
in other payables and
accruals

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

AN L,
FHAE A AR SR M AT
ERzEemAE

FHRIRIT R E A SR

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
RIS R ARG
ZEeEAaE
HK$'000
FET

10,007

135,614

182,835

328,456

Total
@it
HK$'000
F#&xT
10,007

153,233

182,835

346,075

2015

Financial assets

Financial
assets
measured at
fair value Available-
through for-sale
profit or loss Loans and financial
BiBEmIL receivables assets
ANEESE  ERREY AN E Total
ZEMEE BRIX CREE FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT
Available-for-sale AR E A
investments - - 21,288 21,288
Due from a related company fEUx— &8 A &) 7038 - 257,511 - 257,511
Financial assets include in FTATEMFUE - ek
prepayments, deposits and ~ HAhEURBRF 2
other receivables TREE - 100,432 - 100,432
Financial assets at fair value & iB1BZ AR FEDEE
through profit or loss ZEREE 47,996 - - 47,996
Cash and cash equivalents WENRREEEY - 628,952 - 628,952
47,996 986,895 21,288 1,056,179

IEBREFEXEBERDR —B—AFFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 41. RERESZEMTA(E)
2015 (continued) —E-—RF(E)
Financial liabilities SHas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
REIERAGTTE
ZERBE
HK$'000
FET
Financial liabilities included in other payables FFAEMENERREFER S/
and accruals BE 76,360
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERTT R HEAME R 127,384
203,744

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 42.

INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments not measured at fair value, other than available-
for-sale investments measured at cost included in non-current
assets, of which the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that fair value
cannot be measured reliably, and those with carrying amounts
approximated to their fair values largely due to the short term
maturities or floating interest-bearing of these instruments, are

as follows:

Carrying amounts

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial liabilities

Consideration payable
included in other payables
and accruals

EMTAZAFERAFERER

BREIRIFRBDEEZRKATENAH
HECRERNGEMNAFEAFHEE
RN EEZRREQXFETEASETFE N
REEHNZETAREHRATHRIZT
B X EMEREREAEENFERSE
AON  AEBEWIFUNRFEFEZEHBT
AZREEEEQNFESIROT

Fair values

SREE A¥E
2016 2015 2016 2015
=EB-AF —FT-AF ZFB-AF —TIF
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr THT TR AT
THEE
BBBRANTFEGIR
ZEMEE 134,687 134,687
i
AT AH A W R R R
BRZENE
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42.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 42. EMIAZAFERIFEER(E)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included RECASEREEN  eREERBEDN
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged N EEHBRITNT ZEETREERS
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than RA R SR - U FAERRZEAR
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and fhEt A FE(E -
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The fair values of the listed equity investments are based on FTRAREN R FEDENTE © 3E L
market prices. The fair values of unlisted investments are based MRAIRE BN AT ETIBBEER € R
on values quoted by the relevant financial institutions. HYSR(E °
The fair values of the contingent consideration payables are ERNFIAREBZRAFEDRBANET ZE
determined using the Monte Carlo Simulation model under the RRERBIEIETE -
income approach.
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the NTARZE—R"FT_A=T—H%H=®
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative MTAGBEBNEATNTERGABRLES
sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2016: BRE DT -

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair value

techniques unobservable inputs Range to the input

EXATAHE AFEHBAEZ
fEER WAE & HRE

Contingent consideration Monte Carlo FX spot rate

payables Simulation model GNEIR EIE R
B AR ETe T

Discount rate
B3

1.0610 to 1.1726
1.0610%1.1726

0.9863% to 1.0063%
0.9863%%1.0063%

5% increase (decrease)
in FX spot rate would
result in decrease
(increase) in fair
value by HK$771,000
(HK$831,000)

HNEIR EE R EF(TRBE)
5% EBATETRE
(310)771,0007 T
(831,00077T)

1% increase (decrease)
in discount rate would
result in decrease
(increase) in fair value
by HK$2,000 (HK$2,000)

BEIRE EA(CRFE) 1%
BERAFETRE
(3870)2,000% 7T
(2,000%7T)

ItERBREEFEXEBERAR —B—AFFR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2016

Financial assets at fair value through & BB A A FEFIER 2
profit or loss SREE

42.

SRMIAZATERAFERS(E)
AT EER
TRHUBALE SMIAY ATENE
B

AT E 82 AE -

RZB—RE+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ERAUTBHAENATETE

Quoted prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
ER
hiZRE
(B—%)
HK$'000
TET

134,687

Significant Significant
observable unobservable

inputs inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EATEE EATUEE

BAE BAE

(E=4) (B=%) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET THT

134,687

As at 31 December 2015

Financial assets at fair value through E@EFNAFLETIEZ
profit or loss SREBE

R=-ZE—HF+=-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using
ERAUATHAENA L EE

Quoted prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
BB
hERE
(B—%)
HK$'000
TERT

47,996

Significant Significant
observable unobservable

inputs inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EAATBEE EATUHEE

BAR BAE

(B=&) (B=R) @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TEr TET

47,996
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42.

43.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2016

SARMEMER L ESER
SRAR

Financial liabilities include in other
payables and accruals

Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z =%

42.

—NFTZA=1—HIEFE

EMTAECZAVPERAVFEER(E)

"¥f§ &% (&)
NHEFEZEE

R=ZFB-A"F+=HA=+—8H

Fair value measurement using
EANTHAEZAVFENE

Quoted prices

in active
markets
(Level 1)
ER
mERE
(B—%)
HK$’'000
TER

Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEAUEBE EBEAFUEE
BAE WAE
(B=&) (F=4) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, available-for-sale investments,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, amounts due
from related parties and deposits and other receivables, which
arise directly from its operations. Financial liabilities of the
Group mainly include other payables and accruals and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risks, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings with floating interest rates.

At present, the Group does not intend to hedge its exposure
to interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly
review the economic situation and its interest rate risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in future as
may be necessary.

43.

RZZE—AF+=-RA=+—H AEEYL
BEEEAFEFECSHRAR

MBRREERE B BERBE

AEESREETERREERBELER
BzRERAEFEY ﬁ%%%@%
AHRHERE  BEBaRUAFEINRZ
TREE  RUEELTFRBEARZERE
Y RIE - REBEPBABEIERRE
T RR K ISt B ARG BR1T R E
&R -

$E@%%IEZI%HAEHWHA*

SNERPR - EERREBBESRR - =
=g iHE @M%HMZﬁ A
BT o
FI == = b

AEEEmHFERANK BRI RFAE
ZEFBRITREME AR TS R
Ej]}_uﬂuu o

e - AEEE TR EBHER - A
T AR EE — BB R R
REBRA - BAMEBE - 8% ERN
7 G -

ItREREFEXEERBRAR —B-AFFR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

43.

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

With all other variables held constant, a change in interest rates
of 50 basis points per annum would cause a responding change
in the Group's loss before tax by approximately HK$473,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$331,000).

Foreign currency risk
The Group's businesses are located in the PRC and most of the
transactions are conducted in RMB.

The Group's exposure to foreign exchange risks was primarily
related to bank balances and other receivables denominated
in RMB and CAD. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. It manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movements in the foreign currency rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB and CAD exchange rates (against HK$) on the Group's
loss before tax for the year ended 31 December 2016 (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets).

43.

MEERAREE B RERBEE)

F 2= [ B (48)
REMESRBIENBERT @ FREF
HIRS0EZ Z E#HFERAEE 2 BRH
AEFREBEE—T— X "F+=-A=+—H
IFEEHIRK473,0008 T (ZE— R & :
331,000/ 7T ) 2 tEFEFA % -

S B
AEENEBURTEBRBLAIRZHAA
R¥HEST -

AR [ P S O S BE LB 22 R 2R B R A A
R R 0T 48 5 e SR1T7 45 i e E At B W BR
Ko AEE B AL EIMNEEIPEE - BB
BEY)EERIMNEE R 2 B F)E IR H MK,

G o
N

TRINHRBERRAEEARBE_T
—RFT A=+ B IFEZBRTAE
BHRARERITEER(EET)ERIE
HEARNEEEE 2 AT EEB T A
B2 BB GURE -
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. MXRREEBECZBERBE(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) NS B (48
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease)
RMB CAD in loss
rate rate before tax
ARKEZR hncE = RRBLATE B
EFA (T E) EH (T ) #in, Cr)
% % HK$'000
FET
2016 ZE—RF
If the HK$ weakens HMEBTHARKRZE
against the RMB
If the HK$ strengthens B TEARBHE
against the RMB
If the HK$ weakens against /B T3 MLz (E
the CAD
If the HK$ strengthens w7 T 5 T AHE

against the Canadian CAD

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to
bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables,
available-for-sale investments, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets and
projected cash flows from operations.

FERR
AEEERANBERRFEEZE=T
ETRS - EAKEZBET @ BUEFKA
ERDEBEEEES  HAKEMAR
ZEERRARITERX o

AEEEpEREE(BRRAERASEFE
Y BRE SRR HEERE - B8
BaENAFEIRZEBREEREMER
RBZEERRREHFHZH/RIER
HEXRBRHEERZELAZKREE -

REBE & mR
AEEBRAERAECFERBDESRETA
ERESERNER AEILAZEHES
BTARSHMEENIMA  REEMS
MIERARERE -

IEBREFEXEBERDR —B—AFFER
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, HiIXEBREEZEERBEK(E)
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REE SRR (E)
The maturity profile of the Group's as at the end of the reporting AREBNREHRBIED T ARMIR SR
period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as STEMEIBERAT ¢
follows:
2016
ZE-RE
On demand or 1to5
within 1 year years Total
RERF—FR —Z1% @At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 583877 R E fbfE & 83,080 114,874 197,954
Trade payables [ENE BERT 10,007 = 10,007

Other payables HibENERR 141,156 12,077 153,233

234,243 126,951 361,194

2015
—Z-AF

On demand or 1tob
within 1 year years Total
RERE—FA —ZhE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT T T
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SEBITREMED 62,683 90,368 153,051
Other payables Hib AR 76,360 - 76,360
139,043 90,368 229,411
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43.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

43.

MEERAREE B RERBEE)

ErEH
AEEETEAEENTIEARRREAR
SEEAFELERRFRRERL XA
SFEEEBERRCRREESRAL

AEERBOERINES REBEEDN
EREREBEEEARETHE LR
B o B ABREARRE  AEEA R
FEEBPERMFOKE  MEREREEAR
T - REBEBAZTAMINBE
KERBER - REE_FT—A~F+=-HA
=t+—AER=E—HFF+=ZA=1+—H1iE
FE  EAEEMNBE  BURKEFHE
fEH a2k o

ItERBREEFEXEBERAR —B—AFFR
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Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HIFFE

44.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 44,
Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

AR E 2 ISR R R
T

2016

—E—RE

HK$'000

FTET

1,462
147,849
5,143

154,454

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE

Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE
Investment in an associate R—EBERE 2 E
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RAAZ&E
Total non-current assets IEMBEERE
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE

Due from subsidiaries JEUR M /B A R FRI8

Prepayments and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

TEAN BRIB R H At B YR 3K
FRBEARTEIIEZ
ERMEE

2,320,679
19,742

122,111
20,000
59,314

2,541,846

Pledged deposits [mEEHPES

Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY
Total current assets MENEERE
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE

Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Other payables and accruals

FHRIRITRER
Hip BRI [ERTE

53,000
6,460

59,460

2,482,386

2,636,840

2,636,840

1,234,578
1,402,262

Total current liabilities mENEEFE
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES HEERARBAERS
Net assets AEFE

EQUITY ER

Share capital [N

Reserves [EEe]

Total equity s

2,636,840

RBERRBAARRFBEREK 2 E RN

2015
—T—AF
HK$'000
FHT

3,692
94,387
1,067

99,146

2,198,738
20,998

47,996

355,922

2,623,654

3,502
3,506
2,620,148
2,719,294

2,719,294

1,248,527
1,470,767

2,719,294

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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44.

45.

Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 —ZF—NF+—A=1+—HILFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 44, KA TF ZBBEMRRR(E)
(continued)
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RAT 2 HEREWT :
Equity-settled ~ Share held
Share share-based for the
premium Merger payment  share award  Accumulated
account reserve reserve scheme losses Total
REEEN  REGZR
RHRER it
R EER AHGE ke &ENRG ZitkR &3t
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
T Tin Thn T TEn Thn
At 1 January 2015 R2-EF-A-A 1,030,370 (200) 4691 - (231523) 797,338
Total comprehensive loss for the year EECEERLE - - - - (157,665) (157,665)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHEAA 78831 - - - - 78831
Issue of shares upon placing REREARR 851476 - - - - 851476
Issue of consideration shares EIRERG 5,816 - - - - 5,816
Issue of shares upon exercise of fIRERERERD
share options 5139 - 2193 - - 3016
Eoity-settled share-based payment arrangements RELEN AR HRS - - 0nMm - - QM
Shares purchased for the share award scheme AR REEEENRR - - - (1,257) - (1.250)

At 31 December 2015

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Shares repurchased

Issue of shares

Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements

Release of awarded shares under the share award scheme
Transfer of share option reserve upon the forfeiture or

expiry of share options

R-F-BFt-Azt-R

FREEARAR

BB

kb
RESENRMAERRTTS
BRRDRBEET L 2ARD

B E R ERRRERR

At 31 December 2016

NF-7E+Az1-A

1,822,632

(22,881)
6,655

(1,25)

1,805,149

(200)

(200)

44,780 (1,257)

(3,966)

81,876

(395,188)

(93,341)

1,470,767

(93,431)
(22,881)

6,655
41,062

- (484,563) 1,402,262

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2017.

45.

BT 2 H

BHEBREN_F—LF=A-_+LA#E

BEEEHENREETIE -

EEFREFEXERERAR —B-RFER
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E5
=

Particulars of Investment Properties
REMEF

31 December 2016 —E—~ NF+=H=+—H

Percentage
of interest
attributable

Location Use Tenure to the Group
ML,
A= R® I BEEDL
No.2, Zheng Fu Jie West Road, Office and Retail ~ Long term lease 70%
Changping District, Beijing, China MRAERTE REEL
T ElIE R S T R R 1 78 B 25
No. 2518 and No.2538 Dongchuan Road, Retail and Medium term 100%
Minhang District, Shanghai, China Car parking spaces lease
B L RITTIE 1138 25185% K 25385% TEREEN AR A
No. 2-16, Lane 480 Ruili Road, Minhang Retail Medium term 100%
District, Shanghai, China =& lease
Bl L RITTIER iR R RE 480 R 22 1657 AT

Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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